

# Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan Amendment Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility

Lincoln, North Dakota LINND 141680 | January 18, 2021



Building a Better World for All of Us<sup>®</sup> Engineers | Architects | Planners | Scientists



January 18, 2021

RE: Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan Amendment Lincoln, North Dakota SEH No. LINND 141680 4.00

Mr. Gerarld Wise Mayor City of Lincoln 74 Santee Road Lincoln, ND 58504

Dear Mr. Mayor:

Enclosed is the City of Lincoln's Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan Amendment in regards to the future planning of the wastewater treatment system. This amendment replaces chapters 6, 7, and 8 of the Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan, submitted March 25, 2020.

The existing wastewater system is inadequate for future flows and loads and is in need of upgrades or replacement. Flow data collected and population projections were used to size four alternatives. The Do Nothing alternative is not being considered due to future failure of the system if not addressed. Other alternatives were developed for expansion of the existing lagoon system, regionalization with Bismarck, or mechanical treatment options. All options were evaluated based on cost, City input, public comments, and site requirements.

Alternatives 5.1, 5.2, and 5.3.1. were presented to the City of Lincoln council on March 7, 2019, where the council decided to include a fourth alternate, a BNR mechanical system. The revised Facility Plan was forwarded to the City council members for preliminary review. A public meeting was held on May 14, 2019 to include public input on project selection. Two of the main comments by the public were 1) there is a desired to eliminate odor from the pond system, and 2) the next improvement should not result in larger expansion of ponds.

Alternative 5.3.2 Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility was selected by the City Council on June 6, 2019 as the recommended alternative. After a review of the completed Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan, the City chose to change to the Regionalization with Bismarck alternative in June 4, 2020 council meeting. This alternate was selected due to the reduced capital cost and the compliance with the public comments noted above regarding pond size and odors.

Mr. Gerarld Wise January 18, 2021 Page 2

The cost of the project is estimated at \$7.2 million for all construction, engineering, permitting and other soft costs. To finance this project, a North Dakota Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan is anticipated to be used. Financing this project at current 2.5% interest rates, along with operation and maintenance costs is estimated to increase user monthly fees initially. The monthly user fee is predicted to reduce as the population increases and more users contribute to paying of the capital investment.

Solicitation for review letters for were sent out to federal, state, and local agencies in preparation for start of design for this project. Per the responses, environmental studies and documents will need to be completed for this project prior to construction bidding. The current system is experiencing maximum loading, stressing the system for discharge requirements.

Upon approval of this amendment, the next steps are to submit this document to funding agencies for review and processing. After the funding agencies have reviewed and provided comment, the City will authorize final design. The environmental documents and design can then be initiated to complete the new City of Lincoln wastewater pumping system.

On behalf of the SEH team, thank you for the opportunity to work alongside the City's staff and Council in completing this report. We believe the steps taken in conducting this report will benefit the City in improvements to health and sanitation and will allow continued growth in the community for years to come.

Sincerely,

Istin Marcusen

Colin Marcusen, PE Project Manager

ejm/mrb \\sehbk1\projects\ko\\\linnd\141680\4-prelim-dsgn-rpts\amendment documents\amendment - wastewater treatment facilities plan - 2021.01.18.docx

### Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan Amendment

Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility Lincoln, North Dakota

SEH No. LINND 141680

January 18, 2021

I hereby certify that this report was prepared by me or under my direct supervision, and that I am a duly Licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of North Dakota.

Narcuser

Colin Marcusen, PE

Date: January 18, 2021

License No.: PE-9934

Reviewed By: <u>Matt Schaible, PE</u>

Date: <u>January 18, 2021</u>

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, ND 58503-5677 701.354.7121

OFES MARCUSEN ัด PE-9934 ž m DATE 1-18-2 ATHDAY



#### Contents

Letter of Transmittal Certification Page Contents

6	Sel	lection of an Alternate	1
7	Pro	pposed Project	2
	7.1	Project Design	2
	7.2	Solicitation Letter Responses	14
8	Со	nclusions and Recommendations	16

#### **List of Tables**

Table 1 – Probable Cost for Evaluated Alternatives	1
Table 2 – Projected Flows	3
Table 3 – Maximum Concentrations	7
Table 4 – Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost	8
Table 5 – Annual Sewer Budget	8
Table 6 – Past Operation & Maintenance Costs	9
Table 7 – Future Operation & Maintenance Costs	.10
Table 8 – Preliminary Estimate of Loan Financing for Capital Improvements	.11
Table 9 – Additional Sewer Budget Expenses	.11
Table 10 - Estimated Monthly User Account Fees to Meet Loan Repayment and Annual Operating Costs	s12
Table 11 - Estimated Monthly User Account Fees to Meet Loan Repayment and Annual Operating Costs	s13
Table 12 – Preliminary Project Schedule	.14

#### List of Figures

Figure 1 – Equalization Pond Design	4
Figure 2 – Preliminary Layout for Regionalization with Bismarck Alternative	6

#### List of Appendices

Appendix A	Solicitation Response Letters
Appendix B	Public Input Meeting

# Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan Amendment

#### Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility

Prepared for City of Lincoln, North Dakota

# 6 | Selection of an Alternate

The selection of an alternative can be accomplished by evaluating the construction cost, ongoing operation and maintenance, and lowest overall cost during the service life of the project. Operations and Maintenance associated with the wastewater treatment alternatives varies by alternative. In order to compare the alternatives, an annual cost was calculated for each of the proposed alternatives. The annual cost was used to develop a 20 year net present value for each alternative which allows for a cost comparison for both initial capital expense and ongoing operation and maintenance costs. Table 20 shows the present worth analysis.

	Anticipated	Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost			
Alternative	Annual Operator Labor Hours	Capital Cost <sup>1</sup>	Annual O&M Cost <sup>2</sup>	20 Year Present Value <sup>3</sup>	
5.1 - Expansion of Stabilization Pond System	960	\$10,270,000	\$106,000	\$11,847,000	
5.2 - Regionalization with Bismarck	730	\$7,212,000	\$547,000 <sup>4</sup>	\$15,338,000	
5.3.1 - Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility	1,630	\$12,420,000	\$210,000	\$15,539,000	
5.3.2 - Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility	2,290	\$17,260,000	\$224,000	\$20,589,000	

Table 1 – Probable Cost for Evaluated Alternatives

1 Includes the following:

30% construction contingency

16% for engineering design, construction administration, and construction field services.

2 Assumes operator total compensation labor rate of \$35.00 per hour for 5.1, 5.3.1, and 5.3.2 and \$25/hour for 5.2.

3 20 year period at 3.0% rate.

4 Wastewater user fee paid to Bismarck is \$522,145 per year at year one, increasing by 3% per year due to inflation. Assumes current flow and population for annual O&M costs. Alternatives 5.1, 5.2, and 5.3.1 were presented to the City of Lincoln council at the March 7, 2019 council meeting, where it was decided to include a fourth option of a BNR mechanical system. This fourth option was added, and the revised Facility Plan was forwarded to the City council members for preliminary review. Due to the cost of the alternatives, a public meeting was also held on May 14, 2019 to include public input on project selection. Two of the main comments by the public were 1) that wastewater ponds odor was unpleasant at certain times of the year , and there was desired to eliminate these odors and 2) that the next improvement should not result in larger expansion of ponds.

Once public input meeting was completed, the City council members reviewed the alternatives once again, and at the June 6, 2019 City council meeting it was motioned and carried to move forward with Alternative 5.3.2, Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility. The original Facilities Plan was submitted to the State with this being the recommended alternative.

After reviewing the costs of the BNR Mechanical Facility, the City chose to change to the Regionalization with Bismarck alternative at the June 4, 2020 council meeting. This alternate was selected due to the reduced capital cost and the compliance with the public comments noted above regarding pond size and odors. The following sections outline the preliminary project design and cost associated with the Regionalization with Bismarck alternative.

# 7 Proposed Project7.1 Project Design

The City of Lincoln has selected Alternate 5.2, regionalization with the Bismarck WWTP. The Bismarck WWTP is located approximately 4.7 miles west of the Lincoln wastewater pond system. The Bismarck facility has an average day flow treatment capacity of 9.25 MGD with 11 plant operators. The plant was recently upgraded in 2009 and has additional upgrades scheduled in 2021 to increase the BOD capacity. The Bismarck WWTP will be available for City of Lincoln flows starting in 2022.

In order to discharge to Bismarck's sanitary sewer, Lincoln will need to meet Title 11.1 Pretreatment Program Ordinance Bismarck uses to manage wastewater. Lincoln does not have categorical industrial users or significant industrial users and is not anticipated to need additional treatment prior to discharging to the Bismarck collection system. A sampling program is planned to further characterize Lincoln's wastewater characteristics as it pertains to pretreatment.

The proposed project is a conversion of the existing lagoon system to a regionalization system with City of Bismarck. The proposed system will decommission cells 1, 3 and 4 and re-purpose cell 2 as an equalization basin. A regionalization lift station would be constructed to pump wastewater to Bismarck's Hay Creek lift station utilizing a duplex submersible station in a precast concrete structure. Prior to entering the lift station, the influent will pass through a basket screen and grease trap to reduce ragging and grease buildup.

#### 7.1.1 Flow Projections

A flow study was completed based on 2018 flows and a linear population projection (4,152 persons in 2020, 6,772 persons in 2040). The flow study produced the following 20 year design flows presented in Table 2.

Table 2 – Projected Flows
---------------------------

	Parameter	Units	Value
	Average Dry Weather Flow	gpd	313,000
Flow Design	Average Wet Weather Flow	gpd	355,000
Demand	Peak Hour Wet Weather Flow	gpm	589
	Peak Instantaneous Wet Weather Flow	gpd	848,000

### 7.1.2 Cell 2 Design

Cell 2 will be converted to an equalization basin to hold excess wastewater during high flow events. The cell will be divided by a berm, which will allow for one half to be taken offline for maintenance as needed. The cell will be filled and drained by gravity along the east side of the cells based on the water elevation in the wetwell: during peak flow conditions the water in the wetwell will back up into the pond cells by gravity. A manual valve on each EQ cell will control which cell is filled. When the wetwell has emptied to a low enough level, wastewater from the EQ cell will drain into the wetwell also by gravity. A check valve on the drainpipe will prevent backflow from the wetwell to the drain pipes. A 0.5% slope will be added to the floor of the cells to aid in gravity draining of the pond (Slopes west to east). Figure 1 presents the proposed layout of the EQ basins and lift station.



Figure 1 – Equalization Pond Design

### 7.1.3 Lift Station Design

The duplex lift station is designed to meet the current peak flows of 421 gpm with one pump running, and the other as a backup. The wetwell is sized large enough to allow for future pump upsizing and for a potential third pump in the future.

The city indicated the need for both screening and grease removal. A basket screen with a railing system and a 20,000-gallon septic tank grease trap are recommended. Operators will need to empty the basket screen at least once per day, which will increase the required operation cost.

A chemical addition station and composite sampling station will be placed the lift station to monitor wastewater parameters and allow for chemical addition as required by the City of Bismarck.

#### 7.1.4 Forcemain Route

The selected route for Regionalization is shown in Figure 2 and is approximately 12,500 linear feet. The route passes under Apple Creek and through residential, commercial, and city property. The route proposed in Figure 2 is longer than the presented route in Section 5.2 in order to minimize the length of forcemain under Apple Creek. The route may be altered during the design process based on the responses to the solicitation of views letters. The option of dual lines was also discussed in Section 5.2 in order to increase the capacity of the forcemain. After discussions with the City of Lincoln, it was determined that dual lines are not required for the flows at the current population, and therefore is not cost effective at this time. However, planning for the parallel forcemain will be considered in the design of the first forcemain to allow for simpler installation of the second line down the road.

A single 8" HDPE forcemain is proposed. The pipe can be installed open cut or directionally drilled based on the location characteristics. A jack and bore casing is required for the crossing under Apple Creek. The casing will add extra protection for the forcemain and will significantly reduce future maintenance costs in the event of a failure. Although only one forcemain is being constructed at this time, the City may install a parallel line in the future for added pumping capacity. In order to reduce future costs and construction complications, a parallel section of forcemain will be installed in the casing section and will be temporarily capped until future use.



Figure 2 – Preliminary Layout for Regionalization with Bismarck Alternative

### 7.1.5 Supplemental Parameter Monitoring

The Bismarck WWTP requires incoming wastewater to meet specific requirements. The City of Bismarck Title 11.1 Pretreatment Program ordinance states the maximum concentrations of parameters and potentially hazardous compounds. Table 2 lists the maximum concentrations of certain parameters that can be discharged to the sanitary sewer system, based on the Pretreatment Program.

Parameter	Limit
рН	Must not be less than 6.0
Total BOD	250 mg/L
TSS	250 mg/L
Benzene	0.05
BETX	0.75
Cadmium	0.09
Chromium (Total)	4.39
Chromium (IV)	4.39
Copper	2.5
Lead	0.94
Mercury	0.06
Nickel	0.79
Selenium	0.20
Silver	0.94
Zinc	7.93

#### Table 3 – Maximum Concentrations

On November 28, 2018, SEH met with the City of Bismarck regarding the potential connection of the Lincoln WWTF to the Bismarck sanitary sewer. Bismarck WWTP staff indicated that the TSS and ammonia levels were slightly above normal, and that additional testing may be required prior to connection. In addition, Bismarck may require a permanently will require flow metering of the pumped wastewater that enters their system. Therefore, the lift station will also have a metering vault with a magnetic flow meter downstream of the wetwell and valve vault.

Bismarck officials also noted that Lincoln may be required to conduct regular inspections (biannual or quarterly) on restaurant grease/sand traps to ensure traps are properly maintained.

### 7.1.6 Total Cost Summary

The proposed project requires new construction in addition to decommissioning and updating existing facilities. The costs associated with this alternative are estimated in Table 4.

Total Cost Summary	Estimate of Probable Capital Cost
Duplex submersible lift station, controls, generator, grease removal, basket screen, chemical addition station, sampling station	\$803,000
8-inch forcemain, cleanouts, air release and cleanout manholes, and river crossing	\$2,106,400
Decommission and dredging of cells 1, 3, and 4	\$890,000
Repair cell 2 and conversion to equalization	\$625,000
Subtotal	\$4,424,000
Engineering	\$995,000
Material Testing	\$106,000
Land/Easement Acquisition	\$50,000
Mobilization, Bonding, Insurance	\$221,000
Contract, Permitting, etc.	\$88,000
Contingency	\$1,318,000
Total Capital Cost	\$7,212,000
<sup>1</sup> All values provided in 2020 dollar amounts	

The cost estimate is in terms of 2020 dollar amounts. Inflation should be considering when estimating the project cost in the future.

### 7.1.7 City Annual Operating Budget

As shown in Table 5 below, sewer charges account for over 99% of the City's sewer budget revenue with the remaining collected via penalties and late fees. Neglecting late fees, the City's annual sewer revenue for sewer charges in 2017 was \$231,197 and 2018 was \$262,053. 2019 and 2020 have similar and steadily increasing projections of \$279,740 and \$294,066 respectively. After expenses, the City consistently maintains revenue overages from \$27,402 in 2017, \$124,964 in 2018, and projected overages in 2019/2020 of \$49,170 and \$56,946 respectively. These budget numbers do not include hookup fees revenue.

Category	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
Sewer Charges	\$220,634	\$231,197	\$262,053	\$279,740	\$294,066
Late Fees/Misc.	\$2,267	\$489	\$728	\$700	\$7,000
Total Revenue	\$222,901	\$231,686	\$262,781	\$280,440	\$301,066
Total Expenses	\$188,278	\$204,284	\$137,817	\$231,270	\$244,120
Net Revenue	\$34,623	\$27,402	\$124,964	\$49,170	\$56,946

#### Table 5 – Annual Sewer Budget

### 7.1.8 City Operations and Maintenance

Below, Table 6 details the total expenses in the annual sewer budget for the City. Costs vary from year to year, but repairs, maintenance, and employee costs all play a large factor in the overall costs.

Category	2016	2017	2018	2019
Staff	\$36,965	\$62,766	\$60,610	\$90,770
Contractual Services	\$0	\$219	\$0	\$0
Training	\$0	\$0	\$138	\$1,000
Engineering Services	\$13,612	\$0	\$27,505	\$0
Utilities	\$3,521	\$4,130	\$4,679	\$4,300
Repairs and Maintenance	\$110,220	\$72,332	\$30,969	\$100,000
Supplies	\$8,717	\$7,835	\$4,361	\$10,000
Parts/Fuel	\$15,000	\$57,000	\$9,555	\$21,200
Miscellaneous expenses	\$242	\$1	\$0	\$4,000
Total Annual O&M	\$188,278	\$204,284	\$137,817	\$231,270

Table /	Deet	0	0	Maintananaa	Cooke
	Past	Operation	Č(	waintenance	COSIS

The annual operation and maintenance costs will likely change as a result of the proposed upgrades. While in past years the operation and maintenance cost was comprised of directly operating and maintaining equipment owned by the City of Lincoln, the proposed plan splits the operation and maintenance cost into two categories: the operation and maintenance cost associated with the City of Lincoln equipment and the sewer rate paid to the City of Bismarck. Table 7 presents the preliminary cost estimate for the annual operation and maintenance for the City of Lincoln WWTF, not including the sewer rate charge from the City of Bismarck.

Category	Hours/Year	Yearly Cost			
Operation					
Equalization Pond	24	\$600			
Basket Screen	365	\$9,125			
Maintenance					
Pumps (2)	24	\$1,200			
Air Relief Valves (4)	2	\$200			
Lift Station	26	\$700			
Basket Screen	12	\$300			
Grease Tank	12	\$300			
Site Work					
Snow Removal	60	\$1,500			
Mowing	100	\$2,500			
Vehicle Maintenance	25	\$625			
Utilities					
Pumps (45 hp, 5 hr/day)	1825	\$5,000			
Total Annual O&M		\$23,950			
1. Labor is assumed at \$25/hr					
2. Electricity costs assumed 0.0773 \$/kWhr					

Table 7 – Future Operation & Maintenance Costs

The sewer rate charged by the City of Bismarck is based on the volume of flow sent to the plant and was estimate at \$4.44 per 100 cubic feet in 2020. The annual operation and maintenance value will increase annually based on the sewer rate (estimated to increase approximately 3% per year) and as the population increases. However, even as the total annual operation and maintenance cost will increase with population, the number of users to share the cost increases, therefore maintaining a relatively stable user fee. The City of Lincoln should have a more detailed rate study performed to accurately estimate the user fees over the 20-year design life.

### 7.1.9 City Debt Repayment

The City currently has no debt associated with the sanitary sewer system, however it does collect roughly \$20,000 annually through sewer improvement district 2004, and will continue to do so for the next few years. Ideally, the City could qualify for grants to pay for a portion of the project and obtain a loan via the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) to finance the remainder. However, since grants are not a guaranteed source of revenue, this section will discuss financing for both scenarios, using a grant estimate of 40% of project costs, and financing 100% strictly through the CWSRF.

Loans provided through the CWSRF have an effective interest rate of 2.5% for up to 30 years currently. Table 7 below summarizes a few different financing options and outcomes, showing the differences between 20 and 30 year loans and with or without a 40% grant contribution. Examples of this financing have been listed for the straight line projected growth through 2040.

The preliminary cost estimate for the suggested capital improvements was \$7,212,000. Considering the loan period and interest rate, possible monthly payment rates and project total interests are shown in Table 8.

Financed	Amount Financed	Years	Total Interest <sup>1</sup>	Monthly Payment	Annual Cost	Total Cost
100%	\$7,212,000	30	\$3,046,603	\$28,496	\$341,953	\$10,258,603
60%	\$4,327,200	30	\$1,827,962	\$17,098	\$205,172	\$6,155,162
100%	\$7,212,000	20	\$6,545,975	\$38,217	\$458,599	\$9,171,983
60%	\$4,327,200	20	\$3,927,585	\$22,930	\$275,159	\$5,503,190
<sup>1</sup> Interest cal	<sup>1</sup> Interest calculated at 2.5% over life of loan					

Table 8 – Preliminary Estimate of Loan Financing for Capital Improvements

Adding the annual cost of the financing provided in Table 8 with the annual operations and maintenance budget (both the sewer rate and City of Lincoln expenses) yields an estimated 20 Year Present Value of the regionalization alternative, shown in Table 9. The annual O&M cost includes both the costs of operating and maintenance City of Lincoln owned equipment in addition to the sewer fee charged by the City of Bismarck. The 2020 sewer fee is based on the estimated current average flow of 241,000 gpd and the 2020 population.

Amount Financed	Years	Annual Loan Repayment	Annual O&M <sup>1</sup>	Present Value <sup>2</sup>
\$7,212,000	30	\$341,953	\$546,950	\$17,877,647
\$4,327,200	30	\$205,172	\$546,950	\$15,014,773
\$7,212,000	20	\$458,599	\$546,950	\$15,286,412
\$4,327,200	20	\$275,159	\$546,950	\$12,426,741
	Amount Financed \$7,212,000 \$4,327,200 \$7,212,000 \$4,327,200	Amount FinancedYears\$7,212,00030\$4,327,20030\$7,212,00020\$4,327,20020	Amount FinancedYearsAnnual Loan Repayment\$7,212,00030\$341,953\$4,327,20030\$205,172\$7,212,00020\$458,599\$4,327,20020\$275,159	Amount FinancedYearsAnnual Loan RepaymentAnnual O&M1\$7,212,00030\$341,953\$546,950\$4,327,20030\$205,172\$546,950\$7,212,00020\$458,599\$546,950\$4,327,20020\$275,159\$546,950

Table 9 – Additional Sewer Budget Expenses

<sup>1</sup> Assumes operator total compensation labor rate of \$25.00 per hour. Calculations based on 2020 population and flows. This value will increase as population increases; however the user fees will cover the cost difference. Includes both City of Lincoln equipment costs and the City of Bismarck sewer fee.

<sup>2</sup> O&M costs evaluated yearly at a 3.0% rate increase (3% inflation for City of Lincoln OM and 3% increase in costs in City of Bismarck sewer fee)

The additional revenue needed to finance the project and to cover the sewer service fee will need to be generated in the monthly sewer account fees. The City of Lincoln currently charges a user fee of \$15.50 per month per user which provides a steady flow of funds that has been consistently net positive balance in the sewer budget each year. The City of Bismarck plans to charge \$4.44 per 100 cubic feet of wastewater from the City of Lincoln, and plans for a 3% increase in that rate per year. The estimated sewer service fee charged by the City of Bismarck will be \$522,145 (in 2020 dollars), based on the estimated average flow of 241,000 gpd. This value will increase yearly by both the sewer rate increase and as the population, and therefore total flow, increases. An estimate of the Monthly user costs assuming the 2020 population and flows is presented in Table 10.

Year	Population	# of Accounts	100% 30 years	60% 30 years	100% 20 years	60% 20 years
2020	4152	1585	\$46.70	\$39.51	\$52.83	\$43.19
2021	4152	1635	\$47.56	\$40.37	\$53.69	\$44.05
2022	4152	1685	\$48.45	\$41.25	\$54.58	\$44.93
2023	4152	1735	\$49.36	\$42.17	\$55.49	\$45.85
2024	4152	1785	\$50.30	\$43.11	\$56.44	\$46.79
2025	4152	1835	\$51.27	\$44.08	\$57.41	\$47.76
2026	4152	1885	\$52.27	\$45.08	\$58.40	\$48.76
2027	4152	1935	\$53.30	\$46.11	\$59.43	\$49.79
2028	4152	1985	\$54.36	\$47.17	\$60.49	\$50.85
2029	4152	2035	\$55.45	\$48.26	\$61.58	\$51.94
2030	4152	2085	\$56.57	\$49.38	\$62.71	\$53.06
2031	4152	2135	\$57.73	\$50.54	\$63.87	\$54.22
2032	4152	2185	\$58.92	\$51.73	\$65.06	\$55.41
2033	4152	2235	\$60.15	\$52.96	\$66.29	\$56.64
2034	4152	2285	\$61.42	\$54.23	\$67.55	\$57.91
2035	4152	2335	\$62.72	\$55.53	\$68.85	\$59.21
2036	4152	2385	\$64.06	\$56.87	\$70.20	\$60.55
2037	4152	2435	\$65.45	\$58.25	\$71.58	\$61.93
2038	4152	2485	\$66.87	\$59.68	\$73.00	\$63.36
2039	4152	2535	\$68.34	\$61.14	\$74.47	\$64.82
2040	4152	2585	\$69.85	\$62.65	\$75.98	\$66.33

Table 10 – Estimated Monthly User Account Fees to Meet Loan Repayment and Annual Operating Costs

Table 11 shows a user fee estimate considering a linear population increase as presented in the Facility Plan. The sewer rate charged by the City of Bismarck in 2020 is \$4.44 per 100 cubic feet and is predicted to increase by 3% each year. The sewer fees presented in the table below cover the loans for the capital improvements, including interest, and the yearly operation and maintenance of the City of Lincoln Facility and Bismarck sewer charge.

Year	Population	# of Accounts	100% 30 years	60% 30 years	100% 20 years	60% 20 years
2020	4152	1585	\$46.70	\$39.51	\$52.83	\$43.19
2021	4283	1635	\$46.97	\$40.00	\$52.92	\$43.57
2022	4414	1685	\$47.30	\$40.53	\$53.07	\$44.00
2023	4545	1735	\$47.69	\$41.12	\$53.29	\$44.48
2024	4676	1785	\$48.13	\$41.74	\$53.57	\$45.01
2025	4807	1835	\$48.62	\$42.41	\$53.92	\$45.59
2026	4938	1885	\$49.17	\$43.12	\$54.33	\$46.22
2027	5069	1935	\$49.77	\$43.87	\$54.79	\$46.89
2028	5200	1985	\$50.41	\$44.67	\$55.31	\$47.61
2029	5331	2035	\$51.11	\$45.51	\$55.89	\$48.37
2030	5462	2085	\$51.86	\$46.39	\$56.52	\$49.19
2031	5593	2135	\$52.65	\$47.31	\$57.20	\$50.04
2032	5724	2185	\$53.49	\$48.28	\$57.94	\$50.95
2033	5855	2235	\$54.38	\$49.28	\$58.73	\$51.89
2034	5986	2285	\$55.32	\$50.34	\$59.58	\$52.89
2035	6117	2335	\$56.31	\$51.43	\$60.48	\$53.93
2036	6248	2385	\$57.35	\$52.57	\$61.43	\$55.02
2037	6379	2435	\$58.44	\$53.76	\$62.43	\$56.16
2038	6510	2485	\$59.58	\$54.99	\$63.49	\$57.34
2039	6641	2535	\$60.77	\$56.27	\$64.60	\$58.57
2040	6772	2585	\$62.01	\$57.60	\$65.77	\$59.86

Table 11 – Estimated Monthly User Account Fees to Meet Loan Repayment and Annual Operating Costs

A more detailed rate study should be performed to determine the most cost-effective way to pay back the loans for the capital improvements and the annual operation and maintenance costs. This study should consider:

- Rates based on several predictions of population growth.
- The impact of adding additional capital improvements within the 20-year design life, such as installing a parallel forcemain if the population demands increase significantly.
- Distributing the initial capital costs across the 20-year service life (to avoid the current population overpaying for the system which could serve a much higher future population)

The user fees required to pay back the loan and cover the O&M costs would be affected by a number of items as the project planning takes place. Factors that would affect the total loan requirements and user fees include, but are not limited to: actual construction and engineering costs, industry pricing, inflation, population growth, and City funding amounts. It is advised that the City review the anticipated final user fee rates at multiple points through the project phases.

#### 7.1.10 Discharge Permit Requirements

No discharge permits are required for this alternative.

### 7.1.11 | Project Schedule

Knowing the City of Lincoln would like to move forward to improve their sanitary sewer capacity as quickly as possible an aggressive schedule is shown below. Project delays may occur for several different reasons, including environmental and regulatory reviews and permitting, cost considerations, discussions or negotiations with the City of Bismarck.

Task	Date
Completion of Facilities Plan and Submittal to ND DEQ	January 2021
City of Lincoln Public Hearing to Discuss Findings of Report	January 2021
ND DEQ Approval of Facility Plan	February 2021
Discussion with Bismarck City Commission to Gain Approval of Regionalization	February – March 2021
Submit Updated Intended Use Plan Request for State CWRF	March 2021
Design of Improvements for the Recommended Alternative	April – June 2021
Preparation, Submittal, Agency Review Time for Corps of Engineers Section 404 Permit	April – September 2021
Project Bidding	June/July 2021
Award of Project and Issuance of Notice to Proceed	July/August 2021
Construction Substantial Completion	September 2022
Construction Final Completion	October 2022

#### Table 12 – Preliminary Project Schedule

#### 7.2 Solicitation Letter Responses

As discussed in Section 1 of this report, letters of solicitation were sent to major agencies and authorities relevant to the project and/or location to help identify any potential environmental impacts related to construction and operations of the proposed forcemain, lift station, and equalization basin. Letters were sent to The North Dakota Department of Health, Game and Fish Department, State Historical Society, State Water Commission, the US Fish and Wildlife Service, Army Corps of Engineers, and Department of Agriculture National Resource Conservation Service. The following is a summary of their responses to the letters of solicitation, which are also included in Appendix A.

7.2.1 ND Department of Environmental Quality

The North Dakota Department of Environmental Quality provided no comments to the proposed project.

7.2.2 ND Game and Fish Department

The U.S. Game and Fish Department have no objection to the proposed project.

7.2.3 ND State Historical Society

The State Historical Society of North Dakota indicated that if consulted by a federal agency, they would concur with the need for a Class III Cultural Resource Inventory of the Area of Potential Effects (APE).

### 7.2.4 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service have no objection to the proposed project.

#### 7.2.5 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Regulatory Office administers Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, and noted that a Section 404 permit would be required for the discharge of dredge or fill material (temporary or permanently) to waters in the U.S., including wastewater stabilization ponds. This permit will be required for dredging the pond cells and for adding additional fill material to Cell 2.

#### 7.2.6 ND State Water Commission

The State Water Commission commented on the following items:

- Areas of the proposed project fall within a Zone AE floodplain. As North Dakota does not have a permitting authority at the state level regarding floodplains, they indicted to work closely with the local Floodplain Administrator regarding permitting for the project.
- Construction involving or modifying the existing City of Lincoln Lagoon cells may require a construction permit from the Office of the State Engineer.
- Initial review indicates that a conditional or temporary permit for water appropriation is not required. If surface water or groundwater will be diverted for the construction project, a water permit will be required per North Dakota Century Code Section 61-04-02.

#### 7.2.7 U.S. Department of Agriculture

The U.S. Department of Agriculture provided no comments to the proposed project.

#### 7.2.8 Federal Aviation Administration

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) noted that the proposed project appears not to increase hazardous wildlife attractants. However, they also noted that FAA Advisory Circular 150/5200-33B advises that a 10,000 foot separation distance be maintained between airports and hazardous wildlife attractant. As Cell 2 falls within the 10,000 foot radius, the FAA recommends a wildlife biologist consult on the final design of the project.

#### 7.2.8.1 Bismarck Airport

The Bismarck Airport was forwarded the SOV by the FAA for comment. The Bismarck Airport commented that the routing of the sewer line should follow the road to stay within road easements.

#### 7.2.9 City of Bismarck

The City of Bismarck offered no comments to the solicitation of views letter. However, the City indicated that the completed facility plan should be presented to the Bismarck City Commission soon after completion so the City of Bismarck can begin drafting a contract for providing sewer services to the City of Lincoln. The initial support of the City of Bismarck on record will provide security for the City of Lincoln as they enter the project planning stage.

## 8 Conclusions and Recommendations

After establishing the project need and reviewing multiple alternatives, we believe the proposed project is in the best interest of the City of Lincoln. The proposed project is necessary, comparably modest in scope and cost, and should be considered for funding. Following construction, the City will have a sanitary sewer and wastewater treatment system that will serve them well for the 20 year planning period.

# Appendix A

Solicitation Response Letters





January 4, 2021

Mr. Mattew Schaible Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 4719 Shelbourne St, Ste 6 Bismarck, ND 58503-5677

president lange data and the	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	200306-20020-020	C THE COURSE OF	2. S. S. L. LANDERS CO. S. LANDERS CO. LANDERS CO. S. LANDERS CO.
R	$\mathbb{E}(\mathbb{C})$	Nº U	VE	delater 1
	JAN	- 7	2021	OF THE REAL PROPERTY OF A DESIGNATION
2ž	r 8 8 80855555	*******		resolution of the second s

ND SHPO Ref.: 21-5299 City of Lincoln construction and operation of a new forcemain and converted treatment pond to equalization basin

Dear Mr. Schaible,

We reviewed ND SHPO Ref.: 21-5299 City of Lincoln construction and operation of a new forcemain and converted treatment pond to equalization basin and if consulted by a federal agency we would concur with the need for a Class III Cultural Resource Inventory of the APE and look forward to reading the report.

Thank you for the opportunity to review this project. If you have any questions please contact Lisa Steckler, Historic Preservation Specialist at (701) 328-3577, e-mail <u>lsteckler@nd.gov</u>

Sincerely,

in Clede

for William D. Peterson PhD State Historic Preservation Officer (North Dakota)

21-5299

North Dakota Heritage Center & State Museum 612 East Boulevard Avenue Bismarck, ND 58505-0830

701.328.2666 histsoc@nd.gov

history.nd.gov statemuseum.nd.gov



This Constitutes a report of the Department of the Interior prepared in accordance with the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (16 U.S.C. 661 et seq). We have reviewed and have NO OBJECTION to this proposed project.

Field Supervisor

December 15, 2020

Drew Becker Ecological Services U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 3425 Miriam Avenue Bismarck, ND 58501

Dear Mr. Becker:

The City of Lincoln is in the process of performing a Preliminary Environmental Review pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act in order that it may assess the environmental impacts due to construction and operation of a new forcemain and converted treatment pond to equalization basin that will replace the City's existing lagoon system.

The funding for this project consists of State Revolving Fund through the ND Department of Health and City of Lincoln funds.

This project will involve construction of a new forcemain and the conversion of one existing lagoon to an equalization basin to increase the city's capacity. The wastewater will be pumped to the City of Bismarck sanitary sewer and be treated by the Bismarck WWTP. No effluent will be discharged to waterbodies by the City of Lincoln. The forcemain will be routed under public and private land, including underneath Apple Creek. See attached exhibits for the proposed forcemain route and the proposed changes to the existing lagoon system.

To ensure that all social, economic, and environmental effects are considered in the development of this project, we are soliciting your views and comments on the proposed project pursuant to Section 102(2) (D) (VI) of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended. We are particularly interested in any comments in regards to the decommissioning and reclamation of the lagoon pond area.

It is requested that any comments be forwarded to our office on or before January 12, 2021. If no reply is received by this date, it will be assumed that you have no comments on this project.

Letter of Solicitation December 15, 2020 Page 2

Responses can be mailed to:

ATT: Matthew Schaible, PE Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, ND 58503

If further information is desired regarding the proposed water regionalization and lagoon decommissioning project, you may call me at (701) 354-7121.

Sincerely,

SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC.

Maudur leheible

Matthew Schaible Project Engineer

CLH Attachments: Proposed Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility Map Proposed Forcemain Route Map







PRELIMINARY LAYOUT FOR RATIONALIZATION WITH BISMARCK

1,000 feet

Figure 5

5

FILE NO. LINND 141680 CITY PROJECT NO. ISSUED DATE 12/10/2020 Short Ellist Hendhickson Inc.® (511)

LINCOLN WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES PLAN

LINCOLN, NORTH DAKOTA

SEEH



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, OMAHA DISTRICT NORTH DAKOTA REGULATORY OFFICE 3319 UNIVERSITY DRIVE BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 58504-7565

December 28, 2020

NWO-2004-60385-BIS

Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. Attn: Mr. Matthew Schaible 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, North Dakota 58503

Dear Mr. Schaible:

This is in response to information received on December 15, 2020 regarding the proposed City of Lincoln construction of a new forcemain and the conversion of one existing lagoon to an equalization basin. The project is located in Sections 11 and 12, Township 138 North, Range 80 West and Sections 7 and 18, Township 138 North, Range 79 West, Burleigh County, North Dakota.

U. S. Army Corps of Engineers Regulatory Offices administer Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (Section 404). A Section 404 permit would be required for the discharge of dredge or fill material (temporarily or permanently) in waters of the United States. Waters of the United States may include, but are not limited to, rivers, streams, ditches, coulees, lakes, ponds, and their adjacent wetlands. Fill material includes, but is not limited to, rock, sand, soil, clay, plastics, construction debris, wood chips, overburden from mines or other excavation activities and materials used to create any structure or infrastructure in waters of the United States.

Based on the information contained in your letter, the Corps has determined that your proposed project may need a Clean Water Act Section 404 permit. The permit application and instructions for completing the application are enclosed and may also be found at: http://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/Civil-Works/Regulatory-Program-and-Permits/Obtain-a-Permit. Be sure to accurately describe all proposed work and construction methodology. Once the application is complete, mail it to the letterhead address or to the email address (preferred) below.

Due to precautions taken in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, The North Dakota Regulatory office prefers that all submissions are sent electronically to the following email address: CENWO-OD-RND@usace.army.mil instead of a hard copy by mail. Please split large attachments (>25 MB) into multiple emails if needed.

Please refer to identification number NWO-2004-60385-BIS in any correspondence concerning this project. If you have any questions, please contact Jeremy Nygard at U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, North Dakota Regulatory Office, 3319 University Drive, Bismarck, North Dakota 58504-7565, by email at *Jeremy.S.Nygard@usace.army.mil*, or telephone at (701) 255-0015 X 2006. For more information regarding our program, please visit our website at

http://www.nwo.usace.army.mil/Missions/RegulatoryProgram/NorthDakota.aspx.

Sincerely,

Patrici L. Mcqueary

Patricia L. McQueary State Program Manager North Dakota

Enclosure ENG 6082 Form



Be Legendary."

RECENTER JAN 1 2 2021 GTo second contraction of the second s

January 11, 2021

Matthew Schaible, PE Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 4719 Shelburne Street, STE 6 Bismarck, ND 58503

Dear Mr. Schaible:

This is in response to your request for a review of the environmental impacts associated with the City of Lincoln's Sewage Lagoon project.

The proposed project has been reviewed by State Water Commission staff, and the following comments are provided:

- There are floodplains identified and/or mapped where this proposed project is to take place. Areas are designated to be in Zone AE. North Dakota has no formal 'permitting' authority as a state entity in NFIP identified floodplain areas. The permitting is always done by the local entity, which has jurisdiction in the area in question. Please work closely with the local Floodplain Administrator.

- Construction involving or modifications to the City of Lincoln Lagoon cells may require a construction permit from the Office of the State Engineer. Please contact the OSE Regulatory Division at 701-328-2752 if you have any questions.

- Initial review indicates the project does not require a conditional or temporary permit for water appropriation. However, if surface water or groundwater will be diverted for construction of the project, a water permit will be required per North Dakota Century Code § 61-04-02. Please consult with the Water Appropriations Division of the Office of the State Engineer if you have any questions at (701) 328-2754 or approprinfo@nd.gov.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide review comments. Should you have further questions, please contact me at 701-328-4970 or stevebest@nd.gov.

Sincerely,

Atum Be

Steven Best Planner III

SB:dm/1570

#### **Celina Tragesser**

From:	Colin Marcusen
Sent:	Monday, December 28, 2020 4:04 PM
То:	Celina Tragesser
Subject:	FW: Solicitation of Views - City of Lincoln
Attachments:	Solicitation of Views - City of Lincoln

#### FYI

Colin Marcusen, PE (licensed in MN, ND, SD, IA) Senior Professional Engineer SEH 1200 25th Avenue South, St. Cloud, MN 56302 320.229.4359 direct 320.290.3610 cell www.sehinc.com Building a Better World for All of Us™

From: Holzer, Mark (FAA) <Mark.Holzer@faa.gov>
Sent: Monday, December 28, 2020 2:22 PM
To: Pam Kennedy-Schneider <pschneider@sehinc.com>
Cc: Matt Schaible <mschaible@sehinc.com>; Colin Marcusen <cmarcusen@sehinc.com>; Kevin Nelson
<knelson@mtnplains.com>; 'tthorsen@bismarcknd.gov' <tthorsen@bismarcknd.gov>; Lares, Sheri (FAA)
<sheri.lares@faa.gov>; Anderson, David P (FAA) <David.P.Anderson@faa.gov>
Subject: Solicitation of Views - City of Lincoln

Pam

You have provided to FAA the attached solicitation of views for the City of Lincoln in performing a Preliminary Environmental Review pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act in order to assess the environmental impacts due to construction and operation of a new force main and converted treatment pond to equalization basin that will replace the City's existing lagoon system. This project will involve construction of a new force main and the conversion of one existing lagoon to an equalization basin to increase the city's capacity. The force main will be routed under public and private land, including underneath Apple Creek per sketch pasted below from your letter. The ponds being impacted appear to be about 5500 feet east of Runway 21 end. The projects appears to be decommissioning cells 1, 3 and 4 and repurposed Cell 2 for storage.



The City of Lincoln project appears to not increase hazardous wildlife attractants due to the decommissioning of cells near the Bismarck Municipal Airport Please be advised FAA Advisory Circular 150/5200-33B, Hazardous Wildlife Attractants On or Near Airports, advises that a 10,000-foot separation distance between airports (the airport) and a hazardous wildlife attractant. A copy of the advisory circular may be obtained at <u>www.faa.gov</u>.

If you or the proponents are uncertain if the proposed development in Cell 2 repurposed for storage will cause a wildlife hazard for your airport or other airports in the area, we recommend you or the proponent consult with the United States Department of Agriculture, APHIS, Wildlife Services or another qualified wildlife biologists. We recommend any wildlife biologist consulting on a matter such as this, meet the qualifications identified in FAA Advisory Circular
150/5200-36, "Qualifications for wildlife biologist conducting wildlife hazard assessments and training curriculums for airport personnel involved in controlling wildlife hazards on airports".

Thank you for the opportunity to review the proposed project.

Mark J. Holzer Program Manager Federal Aviation Administration Dakota Minnesota Airports District Office 2301 University Drive, Bldg 23B Bismarck, ND 58504 701.323.7393 w 701-214-2057 c

From: Pam Kennedy-Schneider <<u>pschneider@sehinc.com</u>>
Sent: Tuesday, December 15, 2020 2:20 PM
To: Holzer, Mark (FAA) <<u>Mark.Holzer@faa.gov</u>>
Cc: Matt Schaible <<u>mschaible@sehinc.com</u>>; Colin L. Marcusen <<u>cmarcusen@sehinc.com</u>>; Kevin Nelson
<<u>knelson@mtnplains.com</u>>
Subject: Solicitation of Views - City of Lincoln

Mr. Holzer,

The City of Lincoln is in the process of performing a Preliminary Engineering Review and we are soliciting your views and comments on the proposed project.

Attached is a Solicitation of Views (SOV) letter for your review.

If you prefer a hard copy of the SOV mailed to your office, please let us know.

We ask that you please reply to this email to confirm receipt.

Pam Schneider, Sr. Administrative Assistant Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, ND 58503-5677 701.354.7121 direct | 888.908.8166 fax sehinc.com SEH - - Building a Better World for All of Us®



Public Input Meeting

### **Customer Ad Proof**

#### **CITY OF LINCOLN** 60009837

Publication	Bismarck Tribune
Contact	CITY OF LINCOLN
Address 1	74 SANTEE RD
Address 2	
City St Zip	LINCOLN ND 58504
Phone	7012587969
Fax	
Section	Legals
SubSection	
Category	5380 Public Notices
Ad Key	23120-1
Keywords	March 29, 2021 - Wastewater Facility

PO Number	Kristina Vincent
Rate	Legal
Order Price	124.20
Amount Paid	0.00
Amount Due	124.20
Start/End Dates	02/25/2021 - 03/25/2021
Insertions	3
Size	20
Salesperson(s)	Jill Lindsay
Taken By	 Jill Lindsay

Notes

Ad Proof

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING FOR IMPROVEMENT TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: Notice is hereby given that the City of Lincoln will hold a Public Information & Input Meeting on March 29, 2021 at the Lincoln City Hall at 6:00 PM, to consider wastewater facility improvements. This will be an informational meeting to discuss the City wastewater treatment facility improvement alternatives, includ-ing the economic and environmental funding sources. Selection of alternative will not take place at meeting, rather public information and input will be facilitated. At this time, all residents and property owners within the City of Lincoln are encouraged to attend. 2/25, 3/11 & 25 - 23120





City of Lincoln North Dakota Published by Kris Vincent **2** · March 26 at 2:39 PM · **1** 

LINCOLN PLANNING AND ZONING Regular Meeting Tuesday, March 30, 2021 at 7:00 PM Zoom... See More

### US02WEB ZOOM US

#### Join our Cloud HD Video Meeting



#### TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Notice is hereby given that the City of Lincoln will hold a Public Information & Input Meeting on

March 29, 2021 at the Lincoln City Hall at 6:00 PM, to consider wastewater facility improvements.

This will be an informational meeting to discuss the City wastewater treatment facility improvement alternatives, including the economic and environmental impacts, service areas, and potential funding sources. Selection of alternative will not take place at meeting, rather public information and input will be facilitated. At this time, all residents and property owners within the City of Lincoln are encouraged to attend.



### NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING FOR IMPROVEMENT

### TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Notice is hereby given that the City of Lincoln will hold a Public Information & Input Meeting on March 29, 2021 at the Lincoln City Hall at 6:00 PM, to consider wastewater facility improvements.

This will be an informational meeting to discuss the City wastewater treatment facility improvement alternatives, including the economic and environmental impacts, service areas, and potential funding sources. Selection of alternative will not take place at meeting, rather public information and input will be facilitated. At this time, all residents and property owners within the City of Lincoln are encouraged to attend.



### MINUTES

Public Input Meeting Wastewater Treatment Facility Plan March 29, 2021 6:00 p.m. City if Lincoln Town Hall

Meeting Chair: Colin Marcusen

Minutes by: Matthew Schaible

Present: See attached sign in sheet

Copies to: Wastewater Treatment Facility Plan City of Lincoln

- I. City engineer Kevin Nelson, Mountain Plains LLC., opened the meeting with a brief description stating the purpose of the meeting as being an informational meeting to the public and to answer questions regarding the project and residents potential costs.
- II. Colin Marcusen, SEH Inc. Wastewater Facility Plan lead, presented a power point slide show that walked through the history of the current city wastewater treatment facility, the study of flows and alternatives, and the selected alternative.
  - A. Selected Alternative Regionalization with Bismarck
    - 1. Alternative includes an approximate 12,500 LF force main, pump station, retrofit of Cell # 2 for an equalization pond, and decommissioning and repurposing lands of Cells #1,3, and 4.
- III. Question and Answer Section

Q: For the BNR Facility (Alternative 5.3b), is sludge/solids land application included in the Operation & Maintenance annual cost?

A: Yes, all sludge/solid treatment and land application is included in the O&M costs. Disposal at the landfill was considered but was not found to be economic and land application was assumed.

Q: For the Regionalization alternative does Cell #2 act as a dry cell? If the goal is to get rid of the surface water, it would be ideal get rid of all surface water.

A: Yes, Cell #3 will act as an equalization basin to handle peak flows that the pump station housing cannot hold. It will be graded to drain back into the pump station housing to be pumped to Bismarck. These will act as a dry cell. It is not expected that they would be used often in the early life of this project due to the current flow rate being less than the proposed pump capacity but would be a safety factor and required for the later portion of the design life.

Wastewater Treatment Facility Plan March 29, 2021 Page 2

Q: Can an agreement be established with Bismarck to agree to a 3% annual increase to ensure residents don't have fluctuating prices?

A: A legal agreement for a certain term of years absolutely needs to be developed and entered by both Lincoln and Bismarck. Within that agreement is where the negotiation on items such as contract years, increases in user fees, and effluent limit standards would be set.

Q: Can Bismarck shut off the flow at any time?

A: This would be described in the agreement and would have statutes regarding this. In short, no, Bismarck would not be able to just shut off the line at any time if the agreement it correctly written.

Q: Does Bismarck have capacity currently? What is their capacity outlook to make sure they can handle Lincolns load?

A: Bismarck recently updated their plant in 2019 for higher flow/loads. They are also currently working to increase the capacity and will likely always be working on the system. Bismarck has indicated they would be able to handle the loads for the given flow rates over the 20-year design review period presented.

Q: How do you switch over to the new system? Will it require a restriction on the users for a period of time?

A: The existing lagoon system would be left in-place and functioning until the infrastructure for the regionalization is installed and tested. Once the regionalization system is approved, the system would be switched over to ensure no disruption to users.

- IV. Discussion Topics after Presentation and Q & A Session
  - A. Funding options
  - B. Special Assessments
  - C. Decommissioned cell land use
  - D. Opportunity for phasing work

Meeting was adjourned at 7:15 pm.

SEH believes that this document accurately reflects the business transacted during the meeting. If any attendee believes that there are any inconsistencies, omissions or errors in the minutes, they should notify the writer at once. Unless objections are raised within seven (7) days, we will consider this account accurate and acceptable to all.

# If there are errors contained in this document, or if relevant information has been omitted, please contact Colin Marcusen at 320.229.4359.

MRS

p:\ko\l\linnd\141680\1-genl\16-meet\public meeting\public input meeting minutes 3.29.2021.docx

PROJECT W.O.#: DATE BY: OF PAGE DATE mtnplains.com CHK: EMAIL FHONE NAME ACCRESS KNELSON CMAIR 5004 CORRICE M2. 701-333-9164 KENIN Co. aleison THaido & barr.com 701-8667018 Toni Haider Barr 16 Gibbons Dr. 701-220-3395 Christoper C. Leier Cammis chocke 2959 Majostic St Linula 701-202-5847 ammieSchock 1201 APPLE WAY 701 390 7879 Roy SELEEL 701-946-88N Brin Dry 3 SANTER ROAD 3 Santre Rd Karen Daly 701-751-1442 101-751-1473 Melisso Motan Generic L Wise 146 Sturgis Loop 11 Benter Drive though the holman con Tom Volk 45 Carlin Dr 9 santer AD 701-40-2487 Jame Langarg Win Narcusen cmarcusen & schinc.com 320.290.3610 SELF



# Building a Better World for All of Us®

Sustainable buildings, sound infrastructure, safe transportation systems, clean water, renewable energy and a balanced environment. Building a Better World for All of Us communicates a companywide commitment to act in the best interests of our clients and the world around us.

We're confident in our ability to balance these requirements.





# Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility

Lincoln, North Dakota LINND 141680 | March 25, 2020



Building a Better World for All of Us<sup>®</sup> Engineers | Architects | Planners | Scientists



March 25, 2020

RE: Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan Lincoln, North Dakota SEH No. LINND 141680 4.00

Mr. Gerarld Wise Mayor City of Lincoln 74 Santee Road Lincoln, ND 58504

Dear Mr. Mayor:

Enclosed is the City of Lincoln's Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan report in regards to the future planning of the wastewater treatment system. This report reviews existing conditions of the system, alternatives considered for improvements, and identifies a proposed project and steps to be taken for the proposed project. This report was conducted using a 20 year planning period for the City, and will serve as a tool for planning any projects for the wastewater treatment facility.

The existing wastewater system is inadequate for future population loading, and is in need of upgrades or replacement. Flow data collected and population projections were used to size four alternatives. The Do Nothing alternative is not being considered due to future failure of the system if not addressed. Other alternatives were developed for expansion of the existing lagoon system, regionalization with Bismarck, or mechanical treatment options. All options were weighed by cost, pros and cons, and site requirements.

A public meeting was held on May 14, 2019 to include public input on project selection. Two of the main comments by the public were 1) there is a desired to eliminate odor from the pond system, and 2) the next improvement should not result in larger expansion of ponds.

Alternative 5.3.2 Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility was selected by the City Council on June 6, 2019 as the recommended alternative. This alternative includes decommissioning of all four existing lagoon cells, and the construction of the BNR Mechanical Facility. This facility is planned for construction in two phases. Phase I will include all lagoon cell decommissioning, site construction, utility needs, and facility construction for a design flow related to a population of approximately 6,800 persons.

The cost of Phase I is estimated at \$14.35 million for all construction, engineering, permitting and other soft costs. To finance this project, the North Dakota Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan is anticipated to be used. Financing this project at current 2.0% interest rates, along with operation and maintenance costs is estimated to increase user monthly fees. User fees were calculated for capital debt service and future O&M costs as being \$55.79 at year 1 of the loan.

Mr. Gerarld Wise March 25, 2020 Page 2

Solicitation for review letters for were sent out to federal, state and local agencies in preparation for start of design for this project. Per the responses, environmental studies and documents will need to be completed for this project prior to construction bidding. The current system is experiencing maximum loading, stressing the system for discharge requirements.

Upon approval of this report, the next steps are to submit this document to funding agencies for review and processing. After the funding agencies have reviewed and provided comment, the City will authorize final design. The environmental documents and design can then be initiated to complete the new City of Lincoln wastewater treatment system.

On behalf of the SEH team, thank you for the opportunity to work alongside the City's staff and Council in completing this report. We believe the steps taken in conducting this report will benefit the City in improvements to health and sanitation, and will allow continued growth in the community for years to come.

Sincerely,

Istin Marcuser

Colin Marcusen, PE Project Manager

ejm/mrb \\sehbk1\projects\ko\\\linnd\141680\4-prelim-dsgn-rpts\wastewater treatment facilities plan - 2020.03.25.docx

# Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan

Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility Lincoln, North Dakota

SEH No. LINND 141680

March 25, 2020

I hereby certify that this report was prepared by me or under my direct supervision, and that I am a duly Licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of North Dakota.

m Marcuser

Colin Marcusen, PE

Date: <u>March 25, 2020</u>

License No.: PE-9934

Reviewed By: <u>Matt Schaible, PE</u>

Date: <u>March 25, 2020</u>

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, ND 58503-5677 701.354.7121







# Contents

Lette Certif Conte	r of Tra ficatior ents	ansmittal n Page
1	Gen	eral1
2	Proj	ect Planning Area1
	2.1	Location1
	2.2	Environmental Resources Present
	2.3	Community Engagement4
	2.4	Population Trends6
3	Exis	ting Facilities6
	3.1	Location Map
	3.2	History8
	3.3	Condition of Existing Facilities
	3.4	Financial Status of Existing Facilities13
4	Nee	d for Project15
	4.1	Health Sanitation and Security
	4.2	Operation and Maintenance15
	4.3	Growth16
5	Alte	rnatives Considered16
	5.1	Expansion of Stabilization Pond System17
	5.2	Regionalization with Bismarck24
	5.3	Continuous Discharge Mechanical Facility
6	Sele	ection of an Alternative50
7	Prop	bosed Project51
	7.1	Project Design51
	7.2	Solicitation Letter Responses

#### SEH is a registered trademark of Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc.

# Contents (continued)

## 

### **List of Tables**

Table 1 – Estimated Service Population	6
Table 2 – Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Requirements	10
Table 3 – Monthly Average Wastewater Flows	12
Table 4 – Current Utility Rates	13
Table 5 – Connection Fees	14
Table 6 – Water System Connections	14
Table 7 – Wastewater System Connections	14
Table 8 – Operation and Maintenance Costs	15
Table 9 – Stabilization Pond Expansion Basis of Design	17
Table 10 – Probable Cost for Expansion of Stabilization Pond System	22
Table 11 – Operations and Maintenance Cost for Expansion of Stabilization Pond System	23
Table 12 – Probable Cost for Regionalization with Bismarck	29
Table 13 – Operations and Maintenance Cost for Regionalization with Bismarck	30
Table 14 – Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility Basis of Design	33
Table 15 – Probable Cost for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility	38
Table 16 – Operations and Maintenance Cost for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical         Facility	39
Table 17 – Influent Design Conditions for Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility	42
Table 18 – Probable Cost for Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility	47
Table 19 – Operations and Maintenance Cost for Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility	48
Table 20 – Probable Cost for Evaluated Alternatives	50
Table 21 – Parameter Monitoring	52
Table 22 – Linear Population Growth	54
Table 23 – Phase 1 System Design Demand	54
Table 24 – Phase 1 Cost Estimate	57
Table 25 – Phase 2 System Design Demand	57
Table 26 – Phase 2 Cost Estimate	58
Table 27 – Total Cost Summary (Phases 1 and 2)	59
Table 28 – Annual Sewer Budget	61
Table 29 – Operation & Maintenance Costs	61
Table 30 – Financing Options	62

# Contents (continued)

### List of Figures

Figure 1 – Lincoln Municipal Boundary and Wastewater Treatment Facility	2
Figure 2 – Lincoln, ND Floodplain Map	5
Figure 3 – Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility	7
Figure 4 – Preliminary Layout for Expansion of Stabilization Pond System Alternative	.20
Figure 5 – Preliminary Layout for Regionalization with Bismarck Alternative	.27
Figure 6 – Preliminary Layout for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility Alternative	.35
Figure 7 – Preliminary Layout for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility Alternative -	~~
Detail	36
Figure 8 – Preliminary Layout for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility Alternative	.45
Figure 9 – Preliminary Layout for Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility, Phase 1	55
Figure 10 – Preliminary Layout for Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility, Phases 1 and 2	.60

### List of Appendices

Appendix A	Level 1 Wetlands Delineation
Appendix B	National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit
Appendix C	Flow Monitoring and Sampling
Appendix D	Forcemain Proposed Routes
Appendix E	Public Meeting Advertisement
Appendix F	Solicitation Response Letters

# Wastewater Treatment Facilities Plan

## Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility

Prepared for City of Lincoln, North Dakota

# 1 General

The City of Lincoln has ordered the preparation of this report to review the current condition of its wastewater treatment facility and collection system, analyze alternatives to correct any deficiencies noted, and to recommend a course of action. In addition to the recommendations, the report will identify any potential environmental impacts. Potential impacts, if any, will be identified using available resources and comments solicited from:

- North Dakota State Water Commission
- North Dakota Game and Fish Department
- North Dakota State Historic Preservation Officer
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (local and district offices)
- North Dakota Department of Health
- Local planning authorities

Guidance from the North Dakota State Revolving Fund (SRF) Outline for Facilities Planning prepared by the North Dakota Department of Health (NDDOH) and SRF Program Project Manual also prepared by the NDDOH were also referenced for the preparation of this report.

# 2 Project Planning Area

### 2.1 Location

Lincoln is located approximately one mile southeast of Bismarck in Burleigh County, North Dakota. The City operates its own sanitary sewer collection system and wastewater treatment facility which consists of four (4) stabilization ponds. Apple Creek flows along the western edge of Lincoln, between Lincoln and Bismarck, and is the receiving waters for discharge from the Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility. Figure 1 is a location map of the municipal limits (City), extra territorial limits (E.T.L.), and wastewater treatment facility location.

The North Dakota Department of Health Plans and Specifications review for Drinking Water and Wastewater Chapter 90, Waste Stabilization Ponds recommends a 1/4 mile setback be maintained between residential development and stabilization ponds. Figure 1 illustrates the encroachment of residential development to the southeast of the pond system.



### Figure 1 – Lincoln Municipal Boundary and Wastewater Treatment Facility

# 2.2 Environmental Resources Present

If improvements are constructed, projects may involve: increasing wastewater discharge flow rate to Apple Creek, relocating wastewater discharge from Apple Creek to a new discharge location at the Missouri River, or relocating the wastewater discharge to be combined with discharge from the Bismarck wastewater treatment facility. For all alternatives, ground disturbance is required to varying degrees. Relocation of effluent discharge will require a forcemain crossing under Apple Creek. Following are potential environmental issues that could be encountered and how to address the issues.

## 2.2.1 Land Use / Formally Classified Lands

Depending on project selection, work may consists of:

- Construction of a new lift station and forcemain, which would include work taking place within current easements, City owned property, or within public right-of-way.
- If a new wastewater pond is constructed, large portions of the project would be out of City
  property or public right-of-way and require acquisition of private property currently used
  for residences and agricultural land. New easements would be required with Burleigh
  County and the City of Bismarck depending on the orientation of the project.
- If a new mechanical plant option is constructed, all work will be within the existing city owned lands, with potential discharge location alterations. Easements for discharge may be required if location changes.

## 2.2.2 Flood Plains

A current floodplain map is included in Figure 2 of this report. The 100 year and 500 year Floodplain elevations are 1641-1644 feet and 1644-1646 feet, respectively. The range in Elevations is due to the upstream flood elevations being slightly higher than the downstream. The proposed projects would not affect the floodplains in any significant way due to all construction in the floodplain being located underground. Any improvements above grade or requiring grade changes would be located outside of the floodplain. If project(s) are constructed, minimal permanent disturbances would result from the project being located within these floodplains.

## 2.2.3 Wetlands, Including Stream Crossings

The proposed project(s) will likely require construction activities within wetland habitat and crossing streams. A Level 1 wetland delineation (Appendix A) was completed for the project area and its alternative routes outside of current wastewater facility lands to determine activities that could minimize wetland impacts and stream crossing.

The U.S. Army of Corps will be contacted for any permitting concerns. The project(s) is proposing the use of directional drilling for stream and wetland crossings when feasible. Temporary wetland impacts may occur with the placement of directional drilling pits or open cut trenches for the placement of the utilities. Soils will be replaced to pre-construction elevations and the areas seeded for stabilization.

# 2.3 Community Engagement

The City of Lincoln conducted a public meeting held on May 14, 2019. This meeting was held after the City was able to review the project alternatives and make comments on the Facility Plan and proposed alternatives. The public meeting was held to present the project consideration to the residents, and to open a working discussion for concerns and opinions.

The public meeting was advertised through the Bismarck Tribune with publish dates of April 15, 2019, April 22, 2019 and April 29, 219. The public meeting was also advertised on the Cities Facebook page on May 14<sup>th</sup>, and a notice letter was posted at the city hall for three weeks leading up to the meeting. See Appendix E for copies of the advertisement.



## 2.4 | Population Trends

A comprehensive growth plan was developed by the City of Lincoln in 2018 to act as a planning document for future growth in the community. As part of the planning document, a population growth projection was developed. The estimated population of Lincoln was 3,497 in 2015, which serves as the base year for the population projection.

Lincoln's population has seen steady growth over the past several decades, with significant growth between the years of 2010 – 2017. This has led to the expansion and construction of community facilities and infrastructure such as expansion of the wastewater treatment facility, a City Hall, an elementary school, and several new businesses. This rapid growth is showing evidence of continuing over upcoming years due to the number of housing developments being submitted for approval, and the City's plans of annexation. By 2030, it is projected that Lincoln's population will be nearly 8,388. This represents nearly a 240% increase from 2015 and an average year growth of 5.5%.

The typical design life for wastewater treatment equipment is 20 years. With an anticipated service start of approximately 2020, the comprehensive plan population growth rate can be extended from 2030 to 2040. The 5.5% annual growth rate projected to 2040 results in a projected service population of 11,930. Table 1 represents the estimated service population and projected service population during the planning period.

Year	Population		
2000	1,730		
2010	2,406		
2015	3,497		
2018	4,138		
2020	4,846		
2030 8,388			
2040 11,930			
2000-2010 based on actual census data.			
2011-2017 are estimates from US Census Bureau.			
2020-2030 projections from 2018 Comprehensive Plan.			
Values in italics are estimates and not measurements.			

Table 1 – Estimated Service Population

There are currently no significant industrial users (SIUs) which discharge to the municipal wastewater treatment facility in Lincoln. The City anticipates light industrial users (zone I1) to be connected within the planning period, but at this time no SIUs are anticipated.

# 3 Existing Facilities

### 3.1 Location Map

Figure 3 contains exhibits that show the location and size of the existing wastewater treatment facilities.



## 3.2 History

The City of Lincoln is served by a separate (no storm water) wastewater collection system and a four cell pond system. The collection system has been primarily constructed after the 1970s. As a result, the collection system is constructed of PVC sewer mains and service lines to every user. Maintenance of the system is possible through 303 precast concrete manholes generally placed within the road rights of way for the City streets. Pipe sizes for the sewer mains range from 8" for most of the collection system to 15" for the major trunk lines.

Currently, the entire City is able to gravity flow their wastewater to the City pond system located northwest of town. The system therefore does not require use of lift stations for the transmission of the wastewater to the lagoon system. A pump is required to transfer wastewater from the older ponds (Cell #1 and #2) to the newer ponds (Cells #3 and #4). The ponds are sized for 180 days storage and of sufficient surface area to allow treatment of the wastewater to take place. The ponds are discharged to Apple Creek in the spring and fall in accordance with discharge criteria established by the North Dakota State Department of Health.

The City has recently conducted a Preliminary Engineering Report on the potable water system determining the projected water uses over the next 20 years. This resulted in recommendations for improvements to the water system to increase available water by addition of a secondary water main. These improvements are planned for construction in 2019. As a result of these improvements, it can be expected that growth will take place by new development and annexation. This will increase the wastewater flow rates and stress the existing system due to storage capacity.

The wastewater treatment facility consists of four stabilization ponds, two primary and two secondary cells. The four cells constitute two treatment trains with Cell 1 and 2 being a primary and secondary treatment cell respectively and Cell 3 and 4 being a secondary and primary cell respectively. Cells 1 and 2 were constructed in 1984. Around the year 2000 - 2001, sludge in Cell 1 was pushed from the southeast side of the cell to the northwest, but was not removed.

Cell 1 receives all the influent from the City of Lincoln via the 12 inch PVC gravity flow main that enters the cell in the southeast corner. The influent pipe from the City is a 15 inch PVC pipe which flows through a gate valve and is reduced to a 12 inch PVC Pipe, which flows into Cell 1. The 15 inch pipe splits to 12 inch pipes to either Cell 1 or 2 at the last drop manhole located within the premises of the stabilization ponds. There is a 6 foot by 6 foot concrete pad and headwall at the end of the pipe in both cells. Due to the size and configuration of Cell 1, much of the sludge accumulates near the influent pipe end before spreading throughout the cell.

No monthly testing has been reported for Primary Cell 1. All testing is performed in Cells 2 & 3 prior to effluent discharge. Once a week, the City of Lincoln maintenance personnel add 3lbs of a microorganism supplement to promote bacteria growth for solids breakdown and assist with the high organic loading to Primary Cell 1. This supplement is produced by Team Lab and is called "195 Mega Bugs Plus".

The sludge depth was evaluated in Cell 1 during March 2016. The sludge depth testing at the forty locations resulted in an average sludge depth of 10.35 inches. It was confirmed that the sludge depths along the western side of the cell were greatest, with an average depth of 12 inches and the greatest depth being 16 inches. The sludge depths around the influent pipe were on average 9.4 inches, which shows no large build up occurring. Modeling all the test points as a surface in AutoCAD verse the floor elevation of 1639.0 feet, the volume of sludge was found to be 18,841 cubic yards.

Cell 3 was constructed in 1996 along with the transfer lift station between the treatment cells. Cell 4 is the newest treatment cell and was added in 2005. Currently, Cell 3 operates as a secondary treatment cell and Cell 4 operates as a primary treatment cell. Cell 4 receives influent from Cell 1 via an in plant lift station.

It has been found by observation that Cell 1 has recently shown signs of stress such as turning red in color at times throughout the year and the formation of floating black/gray scum mats. These indicate that sludge build up is a possible issue, which is shown with the following calculations.

The North Dakota Department of Health has noted bank erosion which has occurred on the embankment for Cell 2. The erosion effects both inner and outside slope of the treatment cell and will need to be addressed in any alternative which reuses the treatment cell. Currently Cell 2 is not used unless necessary due to the erosion on the banks. Cell 3 has also shown signs of minor bank erosion on the west side of the cell. This erosion may be due to the size of riprap used, which is mostly boulder sized rocks and old pieces of concrete slab. The minor presence of smaller riprap pieces allows wave action to slowly erode the banks in these locations of oversized riprap. Minor riprap work may need performed on Cell 3 in any alternative that continues the use of this cell.

## 3.3 Condition of Existing Facilities

The condition of the existing wastewater collection system is good. The oldest collection system piping is approximately 40 years with an anticipated service life of between 50 and 70 years.

The current wastewater treatment system is permitted for intermittent discharge from a waste stabilization pond to a Class I or IA water. The receiving stream for Lincoln is Apple Creek. The current National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit for the Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility is valid through September 30, 2023. A copy of the current NPDES discharge permit is included in Appendix B of this report. The current National Pollutant Discharge Ilimination System (NPDES) discharge Elimination System (NPDES) are summarized in Table 2.

	Effluent Limitation			Monitoring Requirements	
Parameter	Average Monthly Limit	Weekly Limit	Maximum Daily Limit	Sample Frequency	Sample Type
5-day Biochemical Oxygen Demand, (cBOD <sub>5</sub> ) <sup>a</sup>	25 mg/L	*	45 mg/L	1/week	Grab
pH <sup>a</sup>	Shall ren	nain between 7.0 t	o 9.0 s.u.	1/week	Grab
Total Suspended Solids, (TSS) <sup>a</sup>	30 mg/L	*	45 mg/L	1/week	Grab
Escherichia coli, (E. coli) <sup>a,b</sup>	126 organisms/ 100ml	*	409 organisms/ 100ml	1/week	Grab
Oil and Grease °	*	*	10 mg/L	Daily/ Conditional	Visual
Effluent Flow, mgd	*	Report Monthly Average	*	1/day	Calculated
Total Flow, mgal <sup>d</sup>	*	*	Total	1/month	Calculated
Effluent Flow, cfs d			Report	1/week	Grab
Temperature, deg C <sup>d</sup>			Report	1/week	Grab
Ammonia as Nitrogen <sup>a,d</sup>			Report	1/week	Grab

Table 2 – Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Requirements

\* This parameter is not limited. However, the department may impose limitations based on sample history and to protect the receiving waters.

a A pre-discharge sample must be analyzed and reported to the department prior to the start of any discharge. A pre-discharge grab sample shall be tested for BOD5, TSS, pH, E. coli, and Ammonia as N. This pre-discharge sample shall represent the first week discharge sample. An additional grab sample of the actual discharge shall be taken and analyzed on a weekly basis for the duration of the discharge.

- b *E. coli* shall not exceed 126 organisms per 100 ml as a geometric mean of representative samples collected during any 30-day consecutive period, nor shall samples exceed 409 organisms per 100 ml for any one day. This limit applies from April 1 through October 31.
- c If a visible sheen or floating oil is observed at the discharge point, an oil & grease sample shall be collected to determine compliance with 10 mg/l concentration limit.

d Permittee must use one of two options to comply with the ammonia as N limitation.

- Option 1 Applicable (Temperature, pH, Ammonia as N, and receiving-stream flow) receiving water parameters are collected to calculate (refer to formula below) the real-time water quality standard for ammonia this option allows 10% of the receiving water flow for dilution. This calculated limit will be compared to facility effluent data on ammonia and if the effluent value is greater than the calculated limit, the permittee will report a violation.
- Option 2 Permittee collects ammonia as N and temperature samples from the lagoon cell to be discharged and complies with the ammonia as N limit at the end-of-pipe forgoing any receiving water dilution.

The current discharge limits are authorized for stabilization ponds which service a population of less than 5,000 people, not to be considered a major discharge facility by the Department of Health, and have no significant industrial user contributions as determined by the Department of Health. The design year population of 11,962 exceeds the 5,000 limit set forth in the current NPDES permit limit requirements. A discussion with the North Dakota Department of Health has indicated it is likely that under the projected population growth the facility will need to comply with future nutrient limits, while the current organic and solids limits are likely to remain. For the purpose of this evaluation, it is assumed the future pond alternative which exceeds a design service population of 5,000 will need to meet a total phosphorus limit in addition to those in their current permit. Additional treatment required for pond expansion would increase the present worth of the alternative. If pond expansion is the preferred alternative, additional evaluation will be required for the actual cost to meet any changes that may occur by potential new discharge limits.

The existing wastewater treatment facility consists of a stabilization pond system containing:

- Primary Cell 1, approximately 15.07 acres at mean water depth, 3.0 ft of active volume depth.
- Secondary Cell 2, approximately 6.39 acres at mean water depth, 4.0 ft of active volume depth.
- Secondary Cell 3, approximately 14.57 acres at mean water depth, 4.0 ft of active volume depth.
- Primary Cell 4, approximately 9.32 acres at mean water depth, 3.0 ft of active volume depth.

The recommended design organic loading for stabilization ponds based on the North Dakota Department of Health Plans and Specifications review for Drinking Water and Wastewater Chapter 90, Waste Stabilization Ponds is 30 pounds per day of cBOD<sub>5</sub> per acre of primary treatment cell and 20 pounds per day of cBOD<sub>5</sub> for the entire pond system. Chapter 90 also provides guidance for active volume depths of primary cells. Primary cells shall have a minimum water depth of 3 feet, and maximum water depth of 5 feet unless special conditions are present. Cells 1 and 4 combined provide 24.4 acres of pond surface, which corresponds to maximum recommended daily load of 731.70 pounds per day of cBOD<sub>5</sub>. For operational flexibility, it is recommended that at least two primary cells are provided for stabilization pond system, and Chapter 90 recommends at least three total cells operating in series (two primary and one secondary). The two primary cells at Lincoln have the ability to operate in either series or parallel. Operation in series flow to be pumped from one cell to the other.

The recommended design standard for stabilization ponds indicates that the sizing of the secondary treatment cell shall be based on the greater volume of the following:

- 180 days based on Chapter 90 recommendations of hydraulic storage for the entire pond system.
- Approximately 50% of the pond hydraulic capacity.

The total storage volume of the Cells 1 through 4 is about 51 million gallons. The current pond system is sized for a design hydraulic retention time of 180 days. At 180 days, the pond system can hydraulically handle 284,200 gallons per day of flow. Secondary treatment Cells 2 and 3 are 46% of the treatment storage volume.

To determine if the facility has adequate hydraulic capacity for the 20-year planning period, influent flow to the wastewater treatment facility has been metered from November 20, 2017 through November 27, 2018. Population projections were used to determine a future design flow conditions. The flow monitoring information is included in Appendix C of this report. Table 3 summarizes the monthly average daily flow for these metering period.

Year	Month	Count (sample)	Day Minimum (gpd)	Day Average (gpd)	Day Maximum (gpd)	Cumulative Flow (gal)
2017	November	10	193,531	206,343	240,530	*
2017	December	31	184,425	206,980	243,683	6,416,388
2018	January	31	191,696	213,170	248,047	6,608,263
2018	February	19	184,103	204,726	257,801	*
2018	March	31	179,359	201,744	246,327	6,254,053
2018	April	30	178,647	206,767	252,644	6,203,021
2018	May	31	176,180	195,197	227,650	6,051,106
2018	June	30	182,341	200,578	238,146	6,017,337
2018	July	31	185,339	210,645	260,488	6,529,988
2018	August	31	187,170	203,378	241,913	6,304,703
2018	September	17	171,583	192,643	228,745	*
2018	November	31	180,631	206,421	259,447	6,399,052
* Indicate	* Indicates incomplete data set for parameter.					

Table 3 – Monthly Average Wastewater Flows

Overall average daily flow (during the metering period) is 202,606 gallons per day (gpd), so on average flows are below the current lagoon hydraulic capacity of 284,000 gpd. The minimum month cumulative flow was 6.017 mgd and occurred in June of 2018. The maximum month cumulative flow was 6.608 mgd and occurred in January of 2018. The largest cumulative storage volume between November and May can be used in determining the required storage volume based on seasonal discharge dates. For Lincoln, the required storage volume corresponds to total storage volume of 36.68 million gallons, at an average of 203,802 gpd.

Infiltration and inflow (I/I) is essentially clean water that enters the collection system as a result of rainfall or elevated groundwater levels. The guidelines may assist in evaluating the extent of both infiltration and inflow by comparing average flows during periods of high groundwater levels with and without precipitation events to established threshold values. If either inflow or infiltration is found to be excessive, it is recommended to analyze the feasibility of removing I/I through collection system improvements.

Rainfall data was not collected at the wastewater treatment facility to evaluate inflow from storm events. Instantaneous flow data collected during the metering period does not indicate excessive flow events, which may be the result of inflow from storm events. As rainfall amounts are unavailable a desktop comparison of the largest monthly flow (200,275 gpd in November 2018) compared to the smallest monthly flow (176,180 gpd in May 2018) indicate a potential 24,095 gpd variability in flow. This corresponds to approximately 5.8 gpcd per resident at the estimated 2018 population of 4,138 residents. The maximum monthly flow of 200,275 in November 2018 corresponds to 48.40 gpcd at the 2018 service population, well below the typical wastewater contribution per capita, which indicates little infiltration and inflow.

The influent flow data does not indicate excess inflow during storm events, and no notable inflow and infiltration has been observed in the collection system manholes or piping.

A transfer lift station is primarily used to pump flow to Cells 4 from Primary Cell 1. Lift station 1 was constructed in 1996 when cell 3 was constructed to pump flow from Cells 1 into Cell 3. During construction of Cell 4 in 2004, piping at the lift station was altered to allow pumping from Primary Cell 1 to either Cell 3 or 4. Valves were added into the pipe system to also allow flow from Cell 3 back into the lift station if needed. The lift station is a single transfer pump with vertical check valves located in the wetwell and contains buried flow control valves.

### 3.4 Financial Status of Existing Facilities

The City does not have significant reserves related to its utilities. The wastewater fund had approximately \$231,700 in the fund for operation and maintenance costs as of December 31, 2017. Total expenses related to the sewer fund were approximately \$204,300, leaving \$27,400 in revenue. Funding for any improvements to the wastewater system require funds from the general fund, assessments, user fees, and/or outside assistance through grant or loan programs. Table 4 summarizes the utility rates.

Utility	Year	Base Charge	Usage Charge
Water	2017	\$21.00	\$4.70 per 1,000 gal
Sewer	2017	\$13.50	n/a
Water	2018	\$21.00	\$5.60 per 1,000 gal
Sewer	2018	\$14.50	n/a
Water	2019	\$21.50	\$6.96 per 1,000 gal
Sewer	2019	\$15.50	n/a

<b>T</b> 1 1		<b>A</b>	1.141114	D (
lable	4 –	Current	Utility	Kates

The City has been steadily growing in population size, subsequently resulting in new housing development during recent years. These developments have resulted in a City revenue from connection fees. Table 5 shows connection fees to connect to the City's sanitary sewer wastewater system. These charges are a one-time connection fee.

Year	Commercial Hook-up Fee	Residential Hook-up Fee
2016	\$800.00	\$800.00
2017	\$800.00	\$800.00
2018	\$800.00	\$800.00

Table 5 – Connection Fees

Table 6 summarizes the connections to the water system as of December 2018. The commercial connections account for approximately 597 equivalent dwelling units (EDU). The top five largest commercial users in the City are Lincoln Elementary School, South 40 Apartments, Dakota Line Contractors, and Two Track Malting Company. These five account for approximately 3.41% of total water usage in the City.

Customer Type	Number of Connections	Total Flow (12 months)	Portion of Total Flow
Residential	1,271	91,064,670	93.9%
Commercial and Institutional	34	4,321,433	4.5%
Sold/Closed Accounts	437	1,580,837	1.6%
	Total	96,966,940	100%

As can be seen in Table 6, the majority of water connections are residential with minimum water users being commercial or institutional. This data on the water users gives an understanding of the wastewater effluents that can be expected. The wastewater collection system currently has additional connections over the potable water system. The majority of these additional connections are from the Apple Creek Mobile Home Park located to the east of the city. This mobile home park is currently not within the city limits, but is expected to be annexed within the planning period. Table 7 summarizes the existing waste water connections by user types.

Customer Type	Number of Connections	Portion of Total Flow
Residential	1,666	94%
Commercial – Restaurant	3	0.1%
Commercial – Business	12	0.7%
Commercial – Apartment	78	4.5%
Commercial – Other	12	0.7%
Total	1,771	100%

Table 7 – Wastewater System Connections

Table 8 summarizes the annual Operation and Maintenance (O&M) costs for years 2015-2017. The O&M costs fluctuate in some areas, but are fairly constant in others. The largest fluctuation is seen in the Parts section. This is due to repairs within the collection system and lift station at the pond site. These expenses are typically unpredictable due to system being underground. Overall, cost increases in line items such as Staff and Utilities is typical with inflation and cost of living increase in the economy.
Cost Category	2015	2016	2017
Staff	\$41,712	\$36,965	\$62,766
Contractual Services	\$0	\$1,340.50	\$0
Training	\$0	\$0	\$0
Engineering Services	\$0	\$13,612	\$0
Utilities	\$2,801	\$3,521	\$4,130
Repairs and Maintenance	\$72,437	\$110,220	\$72,332
Supplies	\$7,818	\$2,915	\$2,868
Parts	\$0	\$15,000	\$57,000
Miscellaneous Expenses	\$320	\$242	\$1
Total O&M	\$125,088	\$183,817	\$199,097

Table 8 – Operation and Maintenance Costs

## 4 Need for Project

## 4.1 Health Sanitation and Security

The City of Lincoln has been experiencing sustained growth for more than 25 consecutive years, with an exception in 2010. The increase in population has contributed to an increase in flow and load to the wastewater treatment facility. The projected population during the service life of the facility plan is expected to exceed the provisional 5,000 person limit which is part of the current effluent limit determination.

Recent site inspections by the North Dakota Department of Health have also noted erosion concerns on the impoundment for Cell 2 which will need to be addressed. The existing ponds were constructed with a low permeability compacted clay liner. Modifications to treatment cells may require leak testing to ensure the integrity of the pond liners. If issues are identified during leak testing, the pond cell will have to be drained so that the deposited solids may be removed prior to lining repair.

If the City is to continue to meet the demand for housing in the community, an improvements project will need to address the additional flow and load demand.

## 4.2 Operation and Maintenance

The City of Lincoln employs two full time maintenance personnel and a Public Works Director to run its wastewater treatment facility and oversee maintenance of the wastewater collection system. The two full time employees are currently Direct Responsible Charge personnel and will be taking the Level 1 and 2 Operator classification for wastewater systems. The Public Works Director is currently the only classified Operator at this time holding a Level 2 Operator certificate. Current operation and maintenance costs are covered by an enterprise fund, but as the wastewater treatment facility ages and capacity demand increases costs are expected to increase. Additional organic and hydraulic demand will increase the operator time, electricity requirement for pumping between cells, and eventually the potential for future constituent limits. Each proposed alternative will incorporate a discussion regarding the effects of operation and maintenance and will be presented later in this report.

## 4.3 Growth

Significant population growth is expected during the planning period of this report. The service population of Lincoln is expected to increase from 4,138 to 11,962 over the planning, construction, and service life of the treatment facility. Burleigh County, where Lincoln is located, has also experienced consistent population growth and is anticipated to increase over the planning period. The projected annual rate of population increase for Lincoln is approximately 5.5%. The population increase is anticipated to coincide with an expansion of City limits and extraterritorial development. Municipal facilities such as schools and city hall have been constructed in recent years, and further development is planned. The further development and increase in users is accounted for in the City of Lincoln's 2018 Comprehensive Plan projected population numbers, and therefore accounted in the projected numbers within this report. At the time of this report, the only significant industrial users or large water consuming industries planned are two car washes.

# 5 Alternatives Considered

Four alternatives were considered for improvements to the wastewater treatment facility. The alternatives were: expansion of the existing stabilization pond system, regionalization with Bismarck, modification of the existing facility to create a continuous discharge aerated pond mechanical facility, and decommission of the current pond system and construction of a mechanical treatment facility. After initial discussion with the North Dakota Department of Health, conversion to a continuous discharge facility for the mechanical treatment option is feasible as the Apple Creek has sufficient seasonal flow. The increase in population and conversion to continuous discharge will likely involve the addition of a total nitrogen and total phosphorus limit to the facility's NPDES permit.

A "do nothing" alternative in this case is not feasible as the City is near its current pond capacity. The projected population increase will far exceed any feasible operational improvements to the pond system and require improvements.

A 20 year design life was used in developing the alternatives. This design life was used due to the option for grant or funding by state or federal agencies. It is desired by funding agencies that a minimum of 20 year design life is proposed in all alternatives considered to ensure that future need for funding is limited, and a community is provided with a working system for the 20 year future.

The wastewater collection system does not require substantial improvements at this time. Since wastewater flows by gravity to the current wastewater treatment facility, alternatives evaluated will be located at or near the current facility site to minimize capital expenditure modifying the current collection system.

The treatment alternatives are discussed in greater detail below.

#### 5.1 Expansion of Stabilization Pond System

#### 5.1.1 Description

The expansion of stabilization pond system alternative includes construction of two additional stabilization pond cells, one primary (cell 5) and one secondary (cell 6). The additional cells provide the capacity needs for the future organic and hydraulic loads associated with the projected population. Table 9 summarizes the projected flows and loads the new cells are designed for.

				-	
Parameter	Current Demand	Current Capacity	Future Demand	Additional Capacity Required	
Day Average Flow (gpd) <sup>1</sup>	206,000	284,000	594,000	310,000	
cBOD <sub>5</sub> , pounds per day <sup>2</sup>	704	732	2,028	1,296	
1 Average day determined based on 180 day consecutive flow between May 1 and November 1.					

2 Pounds per day based on the recommended design minimum of 0.17 ppcd from 10 States Standards.

In addition to organic loading, it is assumed that the future pond system will need to meet a total phosphorus effluent limit of 1 mg/L. This assumption is based on discussions with the North Dakota Department of Health which has recently issued a nutrient narrative standard as the initial stages of a nutrient reduction program. Over time it is the goal of the Department to develop river and stream total maximum daily loads for nutrients to assist in the development of numerical limits. The Department has indicated that a total phosphorus limit of 1 mg/L is appropriate for the purpose of long term planning. The total phosphorus limit would be treatment by coagulant addition from a duck boat. This method allows for simplified implementation if and when a total phosphorus limit is implemented as part of the facility's NPDES permit.

The recommended design organic loading for stabilization ponds based on the North Dakota Department of Health Plans and Specifications review for Drinking Water and Wastewater Chapter 90, Waste Stabilization Ponds is 30 pounds per day of cBOD<sub>5</sub> per acre of primary treatment cell and 20 pounds per day of cBOD5 for the entire pond system. Chapter 90 also provides guidance for active volume depths of primary cells. Primary cells shall have a minimum water depth of 3 feet, and maximum water depth of 5 feet unless special conditions are present.

The additional primary cell area is based on 1,296 ppd of cBOD<sub>5</sub>. This corresponds to a total primary cell area of 43.2 acres. A three foot active depth provides an additional 5.65 million gallons of storage. With the volume of the existing cells and proposed primary cell there is sufficient volume for 180 days of storage in the pond system. Operationally, it is recommended the facility maintain approximately 50% of the pond surface area as secondary treatment cells. This allows for a sufficient portion of flow to be seasonally discharged so that the primary cells can be transferred to the secondary and begin filling once again. For proportionality, a 46.6 acre secondary cell is proposed. With the proposed primary and secondary cells, the total pond system organic loading is 15 pounds per acre per day.

To facilitate operation of the new treatment cells, a second in-plant lift station is proposed. The second station provides flexibility in distributing influent from Primary Cell 1 to either Primary Cell 4 or proposed Primary Cell 5.

An additional outfall pipe is also proposed. The gravity pipe would be used to transfer flow from proposed Primary Cell 5 to proposed Secondary cell 6 or Secondary Cell 3 to provide operational flexibility for storage. The outfall pipe would continue along the east and south side of existing Secondary Cell 3 to discharge into the drainage ditch Secondary Cell 3 currently discharges to and proceed to facility outfall at Apple Creek.

## 5.1.2 Design Criteria

Basis of design for wastewater stabilization ponds will follow the recommended design parameters of North Dakota Department of Health Plans and Specifications review for Drinking Water and Wastewater Chapter 90 and Recommended Standards for Water Works (Ten States Standards). The following design standards are used to determine a preliminary Engineer's opinion of probable cost:

- System Design Capacity:
  - 30 pounds per day of cBOD<sub>5</sub> per acre of primary treatment cell,
  - 20 pounds per day of cBOD<sub>5</sub> for the entire pond system,
  - 3 foot active volume depth in primary cells,
  - 4 foot active volume depth in secondary cells,
  - 180 days of wastewater storage capacity,
  - Minimum secondary cell treatment volume 50% of system capacity,
  - 0.17 pounds per capita per day of five-day biochemical oxygen demand,
  - 0.20 pounds per capita per day of total suspended solids.
- Environmental Review: No significant environmental consequences are anticipated with this alternative. A complete level 1 wetlands analysis as well as comments from State regulator agencies are summarized within this report.
- Architectural Barriers: No Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) compliance issues are anticipated with this alternative.
- Energy / Environment: Existing lift station pumps will not be replaced as part of this project. A new lift station will be required to pump influent from Primary Cell 1 to the new primary cell. Pump selection will allow the pumps to operate within the most energy efficient point on the pump curve, which will save energy. An additional in-plant lift station maintains a gravity system to the wastewater treatment facility to reduce the total flows of wastewater pumped at the WWTF.
- Growth Capacity: The alternate creates sufficient capacity for the expected system growth. Collection system expansion is not performed with this alternative.
- Conformity with State Drinking Water Standards: No sanitary sewer facilities will be placed in close proximity to drinking water facilities with this alternative.
- Combined Sewers: No known combined sewers are included in the project alternative.
- Pipe: PVC and ductile pipe materials, including mainline pipe and fittings, shall conform to all ASTM standards.
- Economical Service: The alternative creates an economical solution to the project need.

## 5.1.3 Alternative Location

Figure 4 illustrates the modifications to the existing wastewater treatment facility associated with expansion of the stabilization pond system. The alternative is illustrated as a single additional primary cell and secondary cell. Construction of the additional ponds may be subdivided into smaller cells, however subdivision increases capital costs for construction and increases the land requirement due to addition embankment construction.

## 5.1.4 Potential Environmental Impacts

Environmental impacts are based on the finding of the level 1 wetlands delineation (Appendix A) and feedback received by the solicitation to state and federal organizations identifies in part 1 of this report. Approximately one-half acre of wetland would need to be relocated for construction of the two treatment cells. The identified wetlands are likely Type 1 (PEM1A) seasonally flooded basins, and exist as drainage swales and shallow depressions where water tends to pond early in the growing season. These areas may not meet hydrology, vegetation, and soils characteristics required to meet wetland criteria, and further delineation is recommended prior to design is recommended. Construction activities are not anticipated to effect the 100 year or 500 year flood plains along Apple Creek nor wetlands adjacent to the Creek.

Soil in the vicinity of the proposed stabilization ponds is not suitable for construction of a clay liner. A borrow site would need to be identified north of the community for construction of the liner. Site restoration of the borrow site would be included with construction of the stabilization pond system.



## 5.1.5 Land Requirements

The expansion of the pond system would require impoundment on approximately an additional 118.5 acres. Construction is contingent on the ability of the City to acquire property with reasonable proximity to the existing wastewater treatment facility. The proposed layout would require the acquisition of four adjacent parcels in their entirety with an addition portion of four parcels. The land acquisition would also include the purchasing and removal of three residences.

If adjacent property is unavailable an alternative location may be determined for construction of a separate stabilization pond system. This alternative would likely require a more robust lift station at the wastewater treatment facility to divert flow over a greater distance. The alternative is also contingent on the City's ability to acquire an additional discharge location for their NPDES permit.

## 5.1.6 Constructability

The largest challenge associate with construction of stabilization ponds of this size is the availability of suitable construction material. This includes sourcing suitable clay for the liner, as well as liner subgrade and pond embankments. In general, it is anticipated that the pond elevation can be determined to balance cut and fill on site. Suitable liner material was sourced for the existing ponds from borrows north of the community.

Prior to design geotechnical investigations will need to be conducted to establish ground water elevation at the site, as well as suitability of in-situ soils for construction. Construction of new transfer and outfall piping may require dewatering and/or ground support, both of which may be further identified during geotechnical investigations. Geotechnical investigation will also assist in the identification of potential bedrock which may impact construction, though historically bedrock has not been an issue in this area.

## 5.1.7 Preliminary Engineer's Opinion of Probable Cost

Construction costs include: pipe and valve installation, discharge control structures, transfer control structures, in-plant lift station, additional pond liners and embankment, site fencing, drain tiles, and restoration. All costs shown in the construction cost estimate are assumed to be eligible. Non-eligible features have not been added to this alternative. Non-construction costs such as easements, legal, engineering, testing, and other indirect costs are included in the estimate.

	Anticipated	Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost			
Alternative	Annual Operator Labor Hours	Capital Cost <sup>1</sup>	Annual O&M Cost <sup>2</sup>	20 Year Present Value <sup>3</sup>	
Construction of new stabilization ponds	*	\$7,150,000	*	\$7,150,000	
Land Acquisition	*	\$1,980,000	*	\$1,980,000	
Dredge existing pond cells. Repair Cell 2	*	\$1,140,000	*	\$1,140,000	
Operation and Maintenance <sup>4</sup>	960	*	\$106,000	\$1,577,000	
Total for Alternative	960	\$10,270,000	\$106,000	\$11,847,000	

Table 10 – Probable Cost for Expansion of Stabilization Pond System

1 Includes the following:

30% construction contingency

16% for engineering design, construction administration, and construction field services.

2 Assumes operator total compensation labor rate of \$35.00 per hour. Represents year one O&M rate.

3 20 year period at 3.0% rate.

4 Includes Nitrogen and Phosphorus removal for anticipated future regulations

## 5.1.8 Operation and Maintenance

This alternative is not expected to make major changes to the type of operation and maintenance activities associated with the current facility. An additional in-plant lift station requires a second pump and instrumentation to be maintained. Piping and valves between cells require additional maintenance similar to those already in place. The additional cell embankments require significantly more turf and weed maintenance than the existing system. The addition of another secondary treatment cell requires sample collection to determine suitability prior to discharge, as well as addition time associated with transfer flow between additional cells. The anticipated operations and maintenance costs associated with this alternative, as presented in Table 10, can be found in Table 11.

Activity	Cost per Year <sup>1</sup>		
Sampling	\$895		
Pond Cell Operation	\$9,100		
Pump Maintenance	\$10,500		
Lift Station Instrumentation Maintenance	\$2,730		
Snow Removal	\$2,100		
Mowing	\$14,000		
Vehicle Maintenance	\$875		
Rust Removal	\$2,100		
Pump Operation	\$3,400		
Phosphorous Removal, Operation	\$4,600		
Phosphorus Removal, Maintenance	\$900		
Phosphorous Removal, Chemical Cost	\$54,800		
Total	\$106,000		
1 Cost per year assumes an hourly labor rate of \$35.00 and an electrical			
utility rate of \$0.0773 per kWhr. Estimated labor hours based on <i>The</i>			
Northeast Guide for Estimating Staffing at Publicly and Privately Owned			
Wastewater Treatment Plants. Represents year one O&M rate.			

Table 11 – Operations and Maintenance Cost for Expansion of Stabilization Pond System

## 5.1.9 Advantages and Disadvantages

This alternative meets the City's need to increase hydraulic and organic treatment capacity in the current wastewater treatment system. The alternative has a significant land requirement which may be complicated by the presence of residences which will need to be demolished or moved for construction.

The alternative meets the requirements of state standards and the recommendations of the 10 States Standards. By complying with these standards, the project helps to eliminate potential environmental concerns related to the treatment of wastewater.

- Advantages:
  - Similar operation to existing wastewater treatment system.
  - Simple to operate.
  - Low maintenance requirements.
- Disadvantages:
  - Large land requirement.
  - Odor potential during turnover, particularly in spring.
  - Difficult to modify if low effluent cBOD<sub>5</sub>, TSS, or total phosphorus limits are implemented.

## 5.2 Regionalization with Bismarck

#### 5.2.1 Description

The Bismarck wastewater treatment facility is located approximately 4.7 miles west of the Lincoln wastewater pond system. The Bismarck facility has an average day flow treatment capacity of 9.25 MGD with 11 plant operators. The plant was recently upgraded in 2009 and has sufficient capacity to regionalize with Lincoln. Under this alternative, Lincoln would be required to meet the Title 11.1 Pretreatment Program Ordinance Bismarck uses to manage wastewater being discharged to its sanitary sewer collection system. Lincoln does not have categorical industrial users or significant industrial users and is not anticipated to need additional treatment prior to discharging to the Bismarck collection system. A sampling program is planned to further characterize Lincoln's wastewater characteristics as it pertains to pretreatment.

Four routes for the forcemain alignment are under considerations. The preferred route is illustrated in Figure 5 and all four potential alternatives can be seen in Appendix D. The preferred route is the shortest at approximately 11,340 linear feet and requires a crossing under Apple Creek.

Regionalization would allow for the decommissioning of Cells 1, 3, and 4. Decommissioning would alleviate the need to repair the embankment of treatment cell 2. Cell 2, the smallest treatment cell, would be repurposed as storage to act as equalization during high flow events or during periods the forcemain needs to be taken offline. Cell 2 is ideal as flow can enter the cell by gravity. The suction pipe would need to be lowered to allow the cell to be completely drained rather than maintaining a two foot minimum water level.

The regionalization lift station would be constructed at the existing wastewater treatment facility near the current in-plant lift station. The existing wetwell would be converted to a transfer structure where influent from the community would flow to the new lift station. If flow exceeds the pump capacity of the lift station, wastewater would back up into the transfer structure and into Cell 2. As wastewater flow decreases from the community, flow from Cell 2 would flow into the transfer structure and to the new lift station.

The new lift station consists of a duplex submersible station inside a precast concrete structure. Additional precast structures include a valve vault and meter vault. The discharge forcemain is two 8-inch forcemains. Forcemains are cement lined ductile iron in structures, and fused end HDPE with ductile fittings outside of structures. The lift station also include a fiberglass prefabricated structure with unit heater and automatic composite sampler refrigerator to monitor wastewater characteristics.

The City of Bismarck has indicated that it will not assess a connection fee associated with regionalization with the City of Lincoln. Lincoln will be required to meter the flow discharged to the Bismarck system and be assessed a user fee based on a non-residential land use with an additional 10% surcharge for being a discharged outside of the Bismarck city limits.

## 5.2.2 Design Criteria

Basis of design for regionalization with Bismarck will follow the recommended design parameters of North Dakota Department of Health Plans and Specifications review for Drinking Water and Wastewater Chapter 90 and Recommended Standards for Water Works (Ten States Standards). The following design standards are used to determine a preliminary Engineer's opinion of probable cost:

- System Design Capacity:
  - Minimum day flow, current: 30 gpm.
  - Minimum day flow, future: 85 gpm.
  - Average day flow, current: 143 gpm.
  - Average day flow, future: 412 gpm.
  - Peak instantaneous flow, current: 421 gpm.
  - Peak instantaneous flow, future: 1,038 gpm.
  - 0.17 pounds per capita per day of five-day biochemical oxygen demand.
  - 0.20 pounds per capita per day of total suspended solids.
- Environmental Review: No significant environmental consequences are anticipated with this alternative. A complete level 1 wetlands analysis as well as comments from State regulator agencies are summarized within this report.
- Architectural Barriers: No Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) compliance issues are anticipated with this alternative.
- Energy / Environment: Existing lift station pumps will be demolished as part of this project. A new lift station will be required to pump influent from Secondary Cell 2 (equalization) to a Manhole near Morrison Ave and Yegen Rd. Pump selection will allow the pumps to operate within the most energy efficient point on the pump curve, which will save energy. An additional in-plant lift station maintains a gravity system to the wastewater treatment facility to reduce the total flows of wastewater pumped at the WWTF.

- Growth Capacity: The alternate creates sufficient capacity for the expected system growth. Collection system expansion is not performed with this alternative.
- Conformity with State Drinking Water Standards: No sanitary sewer facilities will be placed in close proximity to drinking water facilities with this alternative.
- Combined Sewers: No known combined sewers are included in the project alternative.
- Pipe: PVC and ductile pipe materials, including mainline pipe and fittings, shall conform to all ASTM standards.
- Economical Service: The alternative creates an economical solution to the project need.

## 5.2.3 Alternative Location

Figure 5 illustrates the modifications to the existing wastewater treatment facility and preliminary forcemain layout associated with regionalization with Bismarck.

## 5.2.4 Potential Environmental Impacts

Environmental impacts are based on the finding of the level 1 wetlands delineation (Appendix A) and feedback received the solicitation of state and federal organizations identifies in part 1 of this report. There are a number of potential wetland delineation areas along road diches for the forcemain route. These areas may not meet hydrology, vegetation, and soils characteristics required to meet wetland criteria, and further delineation is recommended prior to design is recommended. If the areas are identified as wetlands, location of the forcemain may be adjusted to minimize impact. Areas which cannot be avoided may have soils stockpiled separately from non-wetland areas so they can be restored after construction.



The crossing under Apple Creek is located in a likely wetland area. The crossing is anticipated to be horizontally directional drilled fused-end HDPE pipe to minimize the potential for leaks and disturbances to the wetland area. Due to the proximity to the Creek, dewatering is likely required for the drilling and receiving direction drilling pits. Construction activities are not anticipated to effect the wither the 100 year or 500 year flood plains along Apple Creek nor wetlands adjacent to the Creek.

## 5.2.5 Land Requirements

The wastewater lift station is located on property already owned by the City of Lincoln. The majority of the forcemain route runs along existing right-of-way owned by the City of Bismarck. The section between the Saber Drive in Bismarck and the Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility as well as between Airway Avenue and Wanchena Way would require easements to be obtained for the forcemain route. The major land use for the properties requiring easements are sand and gravel stockpiling, agriculture, and a rail terminal. Any of the land uses do not have long term impacts from the construction of a sanitary forcemain.

## 5.2.6 Constructability

Crossing Apple Creek is anticipated to be the largest constructability issue. Dewatering for the direction drilling and receiving pits is likely going to be required and may be incidental to the forcemain installation through the Bismarck right-of-ways. Horizontal directional drilling will minimize issues associated with attempting to construct the forcemain through the wetlands associated with Apple Creek, as well as the river crossing. Geotechnical investigation will need to be conducted prior to design to determine an appropriate pipe depth from crossing Apple Creek.

Additional constructability issues include the potential presence of small wetlands along the forcemain route in Bismarck. Organic soils in areas identified as wetlands may be stockpiled along the forcemain route and used to restore and areas which cannot be avoided by realignment of the forcemain route.

## 5.2.7 Preliminary Engineer's Opinion of Probable Cost

Construction costs include: pipe and valve installation, lift station, Apple Creek crossing, anticipated air relief and cleanout structures, and restoration. All costs shown in the construction cost estimate are assumed to be eligible. Non-eligible features have not been added to this alternative. Non-construction costs such as easements, legal, engineering, testing, and other indirect costs are included in the estimate.

	Anticipated	Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost		
Alternative	Annual Operator Labor Hours	Capital Cost <sup>1</sup>	Annual O&M Cost <sup>2</sup>	20 Year Present Value <sup>3</sup>
Lift station and forcemain	*	\$4,933,000	*	\$4,940,000
Decommission Cells 1, 3, and 4	*	\$1,394,000	*	\$1,400,000
Dredge and repair Cell 2	*	\$156,000	*	\$160,000
Sewer Rate Charge <sup>4</sup>	*	*	\$405,000 <sup>5</sup>	\$10,864,000
Operation and Maintenance	730	*	\$35,000	\$517,000
Total for Alternative	730	\$6,483,000	\$440,000	\$17,864,000

Fable 12 – Probable Co	ost for Regionalization	with Bismarck
------------------------	-------------------------	---------------

1 Includes the following:

30% construction contingency

16% for engineering design, construction administration, and construction field services.

2 Assumes operator total compensation labor rate of \$35.00 per hour. Represents year one O&M rate.

3 20 year period at 3.0% rate.

4 Sewer rate of \$4.03 per 100 CF starting at 206,000 gpd currently to 594,000 gpd at design year.

5 Wastewater user fee is \$405,000 per year at year one, increasing to \$1,168,000 at design year flow.

## 5.2.8 Operation and Maintenance

This alternative is not expected to make major changes to the type of operation and maintenance activities associated with the current facility. The proposed lift station will operate two larger submersible pumps rather than the single submersible pump in the current in-plant lift station. Piping and valves between cells will be removed other than those used for equalization with Cell 2. Decommissioning Cells 1, 3, and 4 significantly reduces the amount of turf and weed maintenance compared to the existing system. Regionalization will increase influent sampling used for compliance and billing from Bismarck. The anticipated operations and maintenance costs associated with this alternative, as presented in Table 12, can be found in Table 13.

Activity	Cost per Year <sup>1</sup>		
Sampling	\$2,600		
Equalization Pond Cell Operation	\$9,100		
Pump Maintenance	\$7,000		
Air Relief Valves Operation and Maintenance	\$3,025		
Lift Station Instrumentation Maintenance	\$900		
Snow Removal	\$2,100		
Mowing	\$3,500		
Vehicle Maintenance	\$875		
Rust Removal	\$2,100		
Pump Operation	\$3,800		
Sewer Rate Charge <sup>2</sup>	\$368,000		
Total	\$403,000		
<ol> <li>Cost per year assumes an hourly labor rate of \$35.00 and an electrical utility rate of \$0.0773 per kWhr. Estimated labor hours based on <i>The Northeast</i> <i>Guide for Estimating Staffing at Publicly and Privately Owned Wastewater</i> <i>Treatment Plants</i>. Represents year one O&amp;M rate.</li> <li>Sewer rate of \$3.66 per 100 CF starting at 206,000 gpd currently to 594,000 gpd at design year.</li> </ol>			

Table 13 – Operations and Maintenance Cost for Regionalization with Bismarck

## 5.2.9 Advantages and Disadvantages

This alternative meets the City's need to increase hydraulic and organic treatment capacity by replacing the current wastewater treatment system. The alternative has a relatively small footprint but still requires the acquisition of utility easements and an underground forcemain crossing at Apple Creek. The City of Bismarck has indicated there would not be a connection fee, however there would be a user service rate assessed based on the flow discharged to their collection system.

The alternative meets the requirements of state standards and the recommendations of the 10 States Standards. By complying with these standards, the project helps to eliminate potential environmental concerns related to the treatment of wastewater.

- Advantages:
  - Regionalizing with Bismarck eliminates the outfall and NPDES permit.
  - Regionalization takes advantage of the existing treatment capacity at the Bismarck facility.
  - Reduces the potential of more stringent future nutrient limits.
- Disadvantages:
  - City is subject to Title 11.1 Pretreatment Program Ordinance from Bismarck.
  - Future increase in flow and load subject to available capacity of the Bismarck Wastewater Treatment Facility.

## 5.3 Continuous Discharge Mechanical Facility

Mechanical treatment facilities embody a variety of treatment processes ranging from mechanically aerated ponds to package treatment plants and large membrane treatment facilities. The complexity of a mechanical treatment facility is typically a response to the limits the facility is designed to achieve. Difficult to remove parameters such as fine suspended solids may require more complex tertiary treatment processes such as rapid mix, coagulation, flocculation, and filtration. Very low treatment limits can also add to the complexity of a treatment process. In general, selecting a mechanical alternative which minimizes complexity based on treatment requirements results in lower capital, operation, and maintenance expenses.

Two continuous discharge mechanical facilities will be evaluated to meet the future flow and load demands projected for the community and the discharge effluent limits anticipated to be included in the facility's discharge permit. A continuous discharge aerated pond, and an integrated fixed film activated sludge (IFAS) mechanical facility.

# 5.3.1 Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility5.3.1.1 Description

Lincoln currently operates a stabilization pond system. The operation staff are familiar with operation and maintenance of these facilities. The potential future effluent limits the City may need to meet are achievable thorough a modified aerated pond. The aerated pond alternative is attractive to a community such as Lincoln because:

- The City currently operates a stabilization pond system which shares many operation and maintenance similarities to the existing facility,
- The pond cells are already constructed and can be reused as aerated pond cells,
- Aerated ponds do not require separate solids treatment including stabilization, thickening/dewatering, storage, and disposal (land application will require additional operator certification),
- Due to the volume of the treatment cells, aerated ponds are simpler to operate and may be more difficult to upset than other mechanical treatment technologies.

The effluent total nitrogen limit would require the addition of a tertiary treatment in the form of a nitrification filter and recirculation to an anoxic zone ahead of aeration. Total nitrogen includes all species of nitrogen, specific to the evaluated design is ammonia, nitrites, and nitrates. The filter is flow through, similar to the aerate pond, however the footprint is much smaller. The filter aerates wastewater, and since a majority of the organics have been treated in the aerated pond cell the air assists in converting ammonia and nitrites in the wastewater to nitrates. A portion of the nitrification filter is recycled back to the aerated pond, where incoming carbon from organics is consumed with the nitrates and is converted to nitrogen gas.

The continuous discharge aerated pond mechanical facility alternative includes converting cells 2 and 3 to aerated cells. Influent would flow into Cell 1 which is combined with the recirculation flow and acts as an anoxic cell for denitrification. Chemical addition for phosphorus removal is also added to the recirculation stream to allow solids to settle prior to entering the mixed aeration cells. From Cell 1, flow is pumped to Cell 4 and then flows by gravity to aerated Cells 3 and finally 2. From Cell 2, flow enters a splitter structure and is divided between treatment cells for the SAGR system. The SAGR provide tertiary aeration for nitrification.

After the SAGR system, flow combines and enters the recirculation lift station. A portion of the flow is pumped back to Cell 1 and the remainder flows through UV disinfection and is discharged through the existing outfall structure. The aerated pond system and SAGR filters would require a control building to house electrical equipment, blowers, and chemical feed for phosphorus removal. A backup generator is also located at the control building.

Both the recirculation lift station and in-plant lift station between Cells 1 and 2 would be replaced by duplex submersible lift stations. Table 14 summarizes the projected flows and loads the new cells are designed for.

Parameter	Current Flow or Load	Design Flow or Load	
Average Dry Weather Flow, gallons per day <sup>1</sup>	191,000	551,000	
Average Wet Weather Flow, gallons per day <sup>2</sup>	217,000	626,000	
Peak Hour Wet Weather Flow, gallons per day <sup>3</sup>			
Peak Instantaneous Wet Weather Flow, gallons per day <sup>4</sup>	518,000	1,493,000	
cBOD₅, pounds per day <sup>5</sup>	703	2,028	
TSS, pounds per day <sup>6</sup>	828	2,386	
TKN, pounds per day <sup>7</sup>	69	198	
TP, pounds per day <sup>8</sup>	25	72	
<ul> <li>average during the now monitoring period and projected to design year based on anticipated population increase.</li> <li>2 Average wet weather flow determined based on the maximum 30 consecutive day flow expressed as day average during the flow monitoring period and projected to design year based on anticipated population increase.</li> <li>3 Peak hour wet weather flow determined based on the maximum hour flow during the flow monitoring period and projected to design year based on anticipated population increase.</li> <li>4 Peak instantaneous wet weather flow determined based on the maximum 15 minute duration flow during the flow monitoring period and projected to design year based on anticipated population increase.</li> <li>5 Pounds per day of 5-day carbonaceous biochemical oxygen demand based on the recommended design minimum of 0.17 ppcd from 10 States Standards.</li> <li>6 Pounds per day of total suspended solids based on the recommended design minimum of 0.17 ppcd from 10 States Standards.</li> <li>7 Pounds per day of total Kjeldahl nitrogen based on the recommended design minimum of 40 mg/L from Matcalf and Eddy. 4th edition</li> </ul>			

Table 14 Continuous	Diacharga	Aarotad	Dand	Machanical	Equility	Daaia	of Doolan
	Discharge	Acialcu	r unu	Mechanical	raciiity	Dasis	U Design

and Eddy, 4<sup>th</sup> edition.

In addition to organic loading, it is assumed that the future continuous discharge aerated pond mechanical system will need to meet a total nitrogen limit of 10 mg/L and a total phosphorus effluent limit of 1 mg/L. This assumption is based on discussions with the North Dakota Department of Health which has recently issued a nutrient narrative standard as the initial stages of a nutrient reduction program. Over time it is the goal of the Department to develop river and stream total maximum daily loads for nutrients to assist in the development of numerical limits. The Department has indicated that these nutrient limits are appropriate for the purpose of long term planning. The total nitrogen limit would be achieved by recycling a portion of the facility's effluent ahead of the aeration zone, thereby creating the anoxic environment required for denitrification. The total phosphorus limit would be achieved by coagulant addition added between pond transfer structures. These methods allows for simplified implementation if and when a total nitrogen and/or a total phosphorus limit are implemented as part of the facility's NPDES permit.

#### 5.3.1.2 Design Criteria

Basis of design for aerated wastewater ponds will follow the recommended design parameters of North Dakota Department of Health Plans and Specifications review for Drinking Water and Wastewater Chapter 90 and Recommended Standards for Water Works (Ten States Standards). The following design standards are used to determine a preliminary Engineer's opinion of probable cost:

- Aerated Pond System Design Capacity:
  - Utilization of 3 foot active volume depth in primary cells,
  - Utilization of 4 foot active volume depth in secondary cells,
  - 0.12 per day reaction coefficient at 68 degrees Fahrenheit,
  - The effect of return flow for total nitrogen removal is considered when determining hydraulic detention time,
  - 2.0 mg/L minimum dissolved oxygen in system,
  - Polishing cell with a minimum 30% volume of aerated cells.
- Ultraviolet Disinfection System Design Capacity
  - Minimum Number of Units: 2
  - Minimum UVT: 65%
  - Redundancy: 1 bank shall treat flow at average annual flow with 2 banks able to treat peak instantaneous flow.
  - Effluent E. coli: 126/100 ml Average Month
- Environmental Review: No significant environmental consequences are anticipated with this alternative. A complete level 1 wetlands analysis as well as comments from State regulator agencies are summarized within this report.
- Architectural Barriers: No Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) compliance issues are anticipated with this alternative.
- Energy / Environment: Existing lift station pumps will not be replaced as part of this project. A new lift station will be required to pump influent from Primary Cell 1 to the new primary cell. Pump selection will allow the pumps to operate within the most energy efficient point on the pump curve, which will save energy. An additional in-plant lift station maintains a gravity system to the wastewater treatment facility to reduce the total flows of wastewater pumped at the WWTF.
- Growth Capacity: The alternate creates sufficient capacity for the expected system growth. Collection system expansion is not performed with this alternative.
- Conformity with State Drinking Water Standards: No sanitary sewer facilities will be placed in close proximity to drinking water facilities with this alternative.
- Combined Sewers: No known combined sewers are included in the project alternative.
- Pipe: PVC and ductile pipe materials, including mainline pipe and fittings, shall conform to all ASTM standards.
- Economical Service: The alternative creates an economical solution to the project need.

#### 5.3.1.3 Alternative Location

Figure 6 illustrates the modifications to the existing wastewater treatment facility for conversion to a continuous discharge aerated pond mechanical facility.





#### Figure 7 – Preliminary Layout for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility Alternative - Detail

#### 5.3.1.4 Potential Environmental Impacts

Environmental impacts are based on the finding of the level 1 wetlands delineation (Appendix A) and feedback received the solicitation of state and federal organizations identifies in part 1 of this report. There are no delineated wetlands identified for conversion of the existing stabilization pond cells to aerated pond cells. Construction for the evaluated improvements would be limited to the existing facility property and within the current facility fence line. Construction activities are not anticipated to be effected whether the 100 year or 500 year flood plains along Apple Creek nor wetlands adjacent to the Creek.

Soil in the vicinity of the proposed stabilization ponds is not suitable for insolated repair of the existing clay liner. A borrow site would need to be identified north of the community for construction of the liner. Site restoration of the borrow site would be included with modifications of the stabilization pond system.

#### 5.3.1.5 Land requirements

The continuous discharge aerated pond mechanical facility alternative utilizes the existing wastewater treatment facility site and does not require additional land acquisition. The current facultative stabilization pond cells are modified with floating aeration headers with the addition of a control building on site to house blowers, controls, chemical equipment, and disinfection processes.

The tertiary treatment SAGR filters can be located in the space between the access road and treatment Cell 2. The Control building is best located centrally between Cells 2, 3, and SAGR system to reduce the aeration piping requirement.

#### 5.3.1.6 Constructability

The largest challenge associate with construction of a continuous discharge aerated pond is construction of the SAGR filters. The filters require an approximate footprint of 280 feet by 300 ft without the influent splitter structure or discharge manholes. The structures themselves are constructed using temporary wooden support walls and an impermeable liner. Appropriate material would need to be sourced for construction of the liner subgrade and embankments.

Prior to design geotechnical investigations will need to be conducted to establish ground water elevation at the site, as well as suitability of in-situ soils for construction. Construction of new structures, piping, and tertiary treatment cells may require dewatering and/or ground support, both of which may be further identified during geotechnical investigations. Geotechnical investigation will also assist in the identification of potential bedrock which may impact construction, though historically bedrock has not been an issue in this area.

#### 5.3.1.7 Preliminary Engineer's Opinion of Probable Cost

Construction costs include: conversion of the existing stabilization pond system to a continuous discharge aerated pond system, tertiary treatment SAGR cells, UV disinfection, chemical phosphorus removal, and restoration in accordance with RUS MN 1780 Guide 43. All costs shown in the construction cost estimate are assumed to be eligible. Non-eligible features have not been added to this alternative. Non-construction costs such as easements, legal, engineering, testing, and other indirect costs are included in the estimate.

	Anticipated	Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost			
Alternative	Annual Operator Labor Hours	Capital Cost <sup>1</sup>	Annual O&M Cost <sup>2</sup>	20 Year Present Value <sup>3</sup>	
Construction of aerated pond equipment, SAGR, and disinfection <sup>4</sup>	*	\$11,160,000	*	\$11,160,000	
Dredge existing pond cells and repair Cell 2	*	\$1,260,000	*	\$1,260,000	
Operation and Maintenance	1660	*	\$210,000	\$3,119,000	
Total for Alternative	1660	\$12,420,000	\$210,000	\$15,539,000	

Table 15 – Probable Cost for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility

1 Includes the following:

30% construction contingency

16% for engineering design, construction administration, and construction field services.

2 Assumes operator total compensation labor rate of \$35.00 per hour. Represents year one O&M rate.

3 20 year period at 3.0% rate.

4 Includes cost for Nitrogen and Phosphorus removal to meet anticipated future regulations.

#### 5.3.1.8 Operation and Maintenance

This alternative is similar is operation requirements for the existing system, with the addition of disinfection and aeration equipment. The plant currently operates a simplex, in-plant lift station which would be replaced with a duplex station and require a second duplex recirculation lift station. Both the existing and proposed stations are submersible type pump station. Piping and valves between cells require additional maintenance similar to those already in place, while the additional shallow-bury aeration pipe control valves are unburied and accessible. This alternative does not increase the total area of the treatment system.

The anticipated operations and maintenance costs associated with this alternative, as presented in Table 15, can be found in Table 16.

Table 16 – Operations and Maintenance Cost for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility

Activity	Cost per Year <sup>1</sup>	
Sampling	\$3,700	
Aerated Pond Cell Operation	\$13,975	
Nitrification/Denitrification Operation	\$4,550	
Phosphorous Removal, Operation	\$4,500	
UV Disinfection Operation	\$4,550	
Phosphorus Removal, Maintenance	\$900	
Pump Maintenance	\$14,000	
Aeration Blower Maintenance	\$7,300	
Probes/Instrumentation/Calibration	\$4,550	
UV Disinfection, Maintenance	\$7,300	
Snow Removal	\$2,100	
Mowing	\$14,000	
Vehicle Maintenance	\$875	
Rust Removal	\$2,100	
Pump, Utility	\$3,600	
Aeration Blower, Utility	\$64,000	
Phosphorous Removal, Utility	\$55,000	
UV Disinfection, Utility	\$3,000	
Total \$210,0		
1 Cost per year assumes an hourly labor rate of \$35.00 and an electrical utility rate of \$0.0773 per kWhr. Estimated labor hours based on <i>The Northeast Guide</i> <i>for Estimating Staffing at Publicly and Privately Owned Wastewater Treatment</i>		

#### 5.3.1.9 Advantages and Disadvantages

This alternative meets the City's need to increase hydraulic and organic treatment capacity by replacing the current wastewater treatment system. The alternative has a smaller footprint than the existing system but still requires significantly more power and operator time. With this alternative.

The alternative meets the requirements of state standards and the recommendations of the 10 States Standards. By complying with these standards, the project helps to eliminate potential environmental concerns related to the treatment of wastewater.

- Advantages:
  - The alternative utilizes the existing permitted wastewater discharge location.
  - The alternative is capable of meeting any likely future wastewater effluent limit while being constructed for likely current discharge limits.
  - The City maintains treatment of their own sewage.
  - Disadvantages:
    - The alternative likely requires a higher operator license level than what is currently maintained.
    - The alternative requires more power than other treatment alternatives, specifically blower and disinfection operation.
    - The alternative requires more operator attention and time than other treatment alternatives to control recirculation flow, distribution of flow through the SAGR system, and disinfection.

## 5.3.2 Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility

#### 5.3.2.1 Description

A fully mechanical treatment facility provides the opportunity for a more refined process control schema which can utilize biological treatment to meet both total nitrogen and total phosphorus effluent limitations. The operating schema proposed is referred to as a Biological Nutrient Removal (BNR) system. The BNR system consists of a series of anaerobic, anoxic, and aerobic tanks which employ biological processes present in the wastewater to reduce the use of chemical addition for total phosphorus removal. The more managed secondary treatment process also reduces the tank volume as compared to an aerated pond system saving of aeration demand and blower operating costs. The BNR treatment alternative is attractive to a community such as Lincoln because:

- The managed BNR process has the potential to meet more strict future limits than an aerated pond system,
- The pond cells may be utilized for equalization during peak flow events to reduce the size of the mechanical facility,
- As a result of the reduced tank size and biological nutrient removal, annual operating costs may be equivalent to or less than aerated pond options (largely due to reduced chemical addition for chemical phosphorus removal and lower oxygen requirements).

A BNR mechanical plant requires pretreatment to remove trash, large solids, and inorganic grit prior to treatment. Trash and solids may plug process piping, become entrapped on diffusers and weirs, and accumulate in tankage. Grit damages process piping and valve, pump volutes, impellers, and seals, and accumulates in tanks reducing treatment volume. The proposed alternative includes preliminary treatment with a 1/4-inch screen, 2-inch manual bypass screen, and grit removal system.

Influent flow to the facility enters the anaerobic selectors. The feed location utilizes the near anaerobic condition of aged sewage in a gravity system to facilitate phosphorus accumulating organisms (POAs) to update phosphorus from the wastewater. When entering the aerobic zone, the POAs release phosphorus in the form of polyphosphate that can be removed by wasting solids to the digesters. The aerobic zone also provides oxygen required for nitrification where nitrifying organisms convert ammonia to nitrate. After aerobic treatment, wastewater enters a clarifier where solids can be collected and clarified effluent can continue to disinfection. A portion of the collected solids are returned upstream as return activated sludge (RAS) and the remainder is wasted to digesters as waste activated sludge (WAS). A recirculation system returns activated sludge to an anoxic tank located between the anaerobic and aerobic tanks. In the anoxic tank denitrifying bacteria convert organic carbon and nitrate to nitrogen gas, which is released to the atmosphere. A backup chemical feed system would still be provided for polishing and to meet effluent requirements in the event of a process upset.

Solids stabilization occurs in aerobic digesters. Aerobic digesters do not require heating and management of biogas generated by anaerobic processes. Aerobic digestion also does not have the same potential for phosphorus re-release as anaerobic digestion when stabilizing solids from a BNR treatment process. The aerobic digester provides air needed for mixing and volatile solids destruction in accordance with EPA CWA Section 405 and 40 CFR Part 503. Once digested, solids are referred to as biosolids. Biosolids are dewatered with a belt filter press and stored as a cake in a covered storage pad for land application.

Clarified effluent from the clarifiers flows to an ultraviolet disinfection system which provides seasonal disinfection in accordance with effluent limitations. A control building is required to house RAS/WAS pumps, blowers, electrical equipment, chemical feed equipment, and a process control laboratory for the BNR treatment system. A backup generator is also located at the control building.

Both the recirculation lift station and in-plant lift station between Cells 1 and 2 would be replaced by duplex submersible lift stations. Table 17 summarizes the projected flows and loads the new cells are designed for.

Parameter	Current Flow or Load	Design Flow or Load	
Average Dry Weather Flow, gallons per day <sup>1</sup>	191,000	551,000	
Average Wet Weather Flow, gallons per day <sup>2</sup>	217,000	626,000	
Peak Hour Wet Weather Flow, gallons per minute <sup>3</sup>		1,100	
Peak Instantaneous Wet Weather Flow, gallons per day <sup>4</sup>	518,000	1,493,000	
cBOD <sub>5</sub> , pounds per day <sup>5</sup>	703	2,028	
TSS, pounds per day <sup>6</sup>	828	2,386	
TKN, pounds per day <sup>7</sup>	69	198	
TP, pounds per day <sup>8</sup>	25	72	
1 Average dry weather flow determined based on the minimum 30 consecutive day flow expressed as day			

Table 17 – Influent Design Conditions for Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility

1 Average dry weather flow determined based on the minimum 30 consecutive day flow expressed as day average during the flow monitoring period and projected to design year based on anticipated population increase.

2 Average wet weather flow determined based on the maximum 30 consecutive day flow expressed as day average during the flow monitoring period and projected to design year based on anticipated population increase.

3 Peak hour wet weather flow determined based on the maximum hour flow during the flow monitoring period and projected to design year based on anticipated population increase.

4 Peak instantaneous wet weather flow determined based on the maximum 15 minute duration flow during the flow monitoring period and projected to design year based on anticipated population increase.

5 Pounds per day of 5-day carbonaceous biochemical oxygen demand based on the recommended design minimum of 0.17 ppcd from 10 States Standards.

6 Pounds per day of total suspended solids based on the recommended design minimum of 0.17 ppcd from 10 States Standards.

7 Pounds per day of total Kjeldahl nitrogen based on the recommended design minimum of 40 mg/L from Metcalf and Eddy, 4<sup>th</sup> edition.

8 Pounds per day of total phosphorus based on the recommended design minimum of 0.006 ppcd from Metcalf and Eddy, 4<sup>th</sup> edition.

#### 5.3.2.2 Design Criteria

Basis of design for a BNR mechanical facility will follow the recommended design parameters of North Dakota Department of Health Plans and Specifications review for Drinking Water and Wastewater Chapter 90 and Recommended Standards for Water Works (Ten States Standards). The following design standards are used to determine a preliminary Engineer's opinion of probable cost:

- System Design Capacity:
  - Influent Lift Station
    - o Duplex submersible lift station integrated to facility SCADA,
    - Backup power from plant generator and control building,
  - Preliminary Treatment
    - o Parshall flume flow meter,
    - Automatically cleaned perforated plate primary screen with washing and compacting,
    - o Manually cleaned bypass screen,
    - o Grit removal with grit slurry pump and washer/classifier.
  - Secondary Treatment
    - Biological Nutrient Recovery Activated Sludge Process consisting of a multistage anaerobic/anoxic/aerobic treatment for total nitrogen removal designed for influent conditions described in Table 17. Includes submersible mixers, RAS/WAS pumping, rectangular final clarifiers, and aeration equipment.
    - Aeration System Design Capacity:
      - Mean Cell Residence Time: 18 days
      - Minimum Wastewater Temperature: 40 deg F
      - F/M Ratio: 0.09 lbs. cBOD<sub>5</sub> per lb MVSS
      - Organic Loading Rate: 20 lbs cBOD<sub>5</sub> per 1,000 cuft of aeration tank
      - Carbonaceous Oxygen Requirement: 1.50 lb O<sub>2</sub> per lb cBOD<sub>5</sub> (at maximum month load)
      - Nitrogenous Oxygen requirement: 4.60 lb O<sub>2</sub> per lb TKN (at maximum month load)
    - Clarifier System Design Capacity:
      - Minimum Number of Units: 2
      - Design RAS Return Rate: 150% of influent flow
      - Maximum Surface Overflow Rate: 1,000 gpd/ft<sup>2</sup> (at peak hourly flow)
      - Maximum Weir Loading Rate: 20,000 gpd/Inft (at peak hourly flow)
      - Maximum Solids Loading Rate: 40 lb/day/ft<sup>2</sup> (at peak hourly flow including RAS)
  - Ultraviolet Disinfection
    - Minimum Number of Units: 2
    - Minimum UVT: 65%
    - Redundancy: 1 bank shall treat flow at average annual flow with 2 banks able to treat peak instantaneous flow.
    - Effluent E. coli: 126/100 ml average month (seasonal)

- Solids Stabilization
  - Aerobic digestion for solids stabilization to meet EPA CWA Section 405 requirements for volatile solids and pathogen destruction for land application in accordance with 40 CFR Part 503. Dewatering utilizing a belt filter press to 16% total solids. 180 days of cake storage provided to take advantage of freeze/thaw thickening for land application.
  - o Aerobic Digester System Design Capacity:
    - Design Solids Concentration: 15,000 mg/L
    - Minimum Mixing Aeration: 30 scfm per 1,000 cuft
  - Belt Press System Design Capacity:
    - Design Solids Concentration: 15,000 mg/L
    - Design Dewatered Solids Concentration: 160,000
    - Number of Units: 1
    - Design Feed Rate: 500 lbs/hr/min
    - Anticipated Polymer Consumption: 62 gal/month
- Environmental Review: No significant environmental consequences are anticipated with this alternative. A complete level 1 wetlands analysis as well as comments from State regulator agencies are summarized within this report.
- Architectural Barriers: No Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) compliance issues are anticipated with this alternative.
- Energy / Environment: Existing lift station pumps will not be replaced as part of this project. A new lift station will be required to pump influent from Primary Cell 1 to the new primary cell. Pump selection will allow the pumps to operate within the most energy efficient point on the pump curve, which will save energy. An additional in-plant lift station maintains a gravity system to the wastewater treatment facility to reduce the total flows of wastewater pumped at the WWTF.
- Growth Capacity: The alternate creates sufficient capacity for the expected system growth. Collection system expansion is not performed with this alternative.
- Conformity with State Drinking Water Standards: No sanitary sewer facilities will be placed in close proximity to drinking water facilities with this alternative.
- Combined Sewers: No known combined sewers are included in the project alternative.
- Pipe: PVC and ductile pipe materials, including mainline pipe and fittings, shall conform to all ASTM standards.
- Economical Service: The alternative creates an economical solution to the project need.

#### 5.3.2.3 Alternative Location

Figure 8 illustrates the modifications to the existing wastewater treatment facility for conversion to a continuous discharge BNR mechanical facility.



#### Figure 8 – Preliminary Layout for Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility Alternative

#### 5.3.2.4 Land Requirements

The proposed mechanical treatment facility will be located on property already owned by the City of Lincoln. The proposed influent lift station, control/laboratory building, preliminary treatment building, package plant tankage, dewatering building, and cake storage will be located on the south side of the existing pond system. The existing wastewater discharge location will be utilized as a continuous discharge location.

Easement may be required for extension of utilities to the treatment site. Further evaluation of the alternative's suitability for utility service should occur prior to design.

#### 5.3.2.5 Constructability

The largest challenge associated with construction of a BNR treatment facility is the construction of the basins. The basins are a shared wall design to minimize material costs and contain the selector tanks, aeration tanks, final clarifiers, and aerobic digesters. The basins are roughly 109 feet long and 94 feet wide. Additional geotechnical investigation will need to be conducted for final design of the tanks including site suitability, wall thickness, and base slab.

Prior to design geotechnical investigations will need to be conducted to establish ground water elevation at the site, as well as suitability of in-situ soils for construction. Construction of new piping and structures may require dewatering and/or ground support, both of which may be further identified during geotechnical investigations. Geotechnical investigation will also assist in the identification of potential bedrock which may impact construction, though historically bedrock has not been an issue in this area.

#### 5.3.2.6 Preliminary Engineer's Opinion of Probable Cost

Construction costs include: decommissioning of treatment cells 1, 3 and 4, conversion of treatment cell 2 to an equalization basin, construction of a preliminary treatment building, package plant tankage, control building, dewatering building, cake storage, ultraviolet disinfection channels, and restoration in accordance with RUS MN 1780 Guide 43. All costs shown in the construction cost estimate are assumed to be eligible. Non-eligible features have not been added to this alternative. Non-construction costs such as easements, legal, engineering, testing, and other indirect costs are included in the estimate.

	Anticipated	Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost		
Alternative Labor	Annual Operator Labor Hours	Capital Cost <sup>1</sup>	Annual O&M Cost <sup>2</sup>	20 Year Present Value <sup>3</sup>
Construction of packaged plant, preliminary treatment, disinfection, laboratory, and solids handling <sup>4</sup>	*	\$15,530,000	*	\$15,530,000
Decommission Cells 1, 3, and 4.	*	\$1,480,000	*	\$1,480,000
Dredge and repair Cell 2	*	\$250,000	*	\$250,000
Operation and Maintenance	2290	*	\$224,000	\$3,329,000
Total for Alternative	2290	\$17,260,000	\$224,000	\$20,589,000
Includes the following:         30% construction contingency         16% for engineering design, const         Assumes operator total compensation	ruction administration, an	d construction field	services.	

Table 18 – Probable Cost for Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility

4 Includes cost for Nitrogen and Phosphorus removal to meet anticipated future regulations.

Table 18 above depicts the preliminary engineer's opinion of probable cost to build a single-train BNR to treat the current flow and load.

#### 5.3.2.7 Operation and Maintenance

3 20 year period at 3.0% rate.

This alternative would be a complete reconstruction of the existing treatment facility with a managed BNR mechanical facility. Mechanical treatment facilities commonly have dedicated staff which staff the wastewater treatment facility during the week and either have dedicated overnight/weekend staff or on-call staff which are available to answer alarms through and integrated SCADA system. The system still requires an influent lift station which would replace the existing simplex station.

The anticipated operations and maintenance costs associated with this alternative, as presented in Table 18, can be found in Table 19.

Activity	Cost per Year <sup>1</sup>			
Sampling	\$3,700			
Preliminary Treatment Operation	\$4,500			
Activated Sludge with BNR Operation	\$34,125			
UV Disinfection Operation	\$4,550			
Belt Filter Press, Operation	\$9,100			
Aerobic Digester Operation	\$4,550			
Land Application, Operation	\$2,275			
Preliminary Treatment, Maintenance	\$5,460			
Chemical Addition Backup, Maintenance	\$990			
Package Plant Tankage and Mixers, Maintenance	\$13,650			
Aeration Blowers, Maintenance	\$10,900			
Belt Filter Press, Maintenance	\$1,395			
UV Disinfection, Maintenance	\$7,280			
Probes/Instrumentation/Calibration	\$4550			
Pump Maintenance	\$24,500			
Snow Removal	\$2,100			
Mowing	\$14,000			
Vehicle Maintenance	\$875			
Rust Removal	\$2,100			
Phosphorous Removal, Utility	\$11,000			
Aeration Blower, Utility	\$46,200			
Mixers and Mechanisms, Utility	\$4,300			
Dewatering, Utility	\$3,250			
UV Disinfection, Utility	\$3,500			
Pump, Utility	\$5,100			
Total	\$224,000			
1 Cost per year assumes an hourly labor rate of \$35.00 and an electrical utility rate of \$0.0773 per kWhr. Estimated labor hours based on <i>The Northeast Guide for Estimating Staffing at Publicly and Privately Owned Wastewater Treatment Plants.</i> Represents year one O&M rate.				

Table 19 – Operations and Maintenance Cost for Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility

#### 5.3.2.8 Advantages and Disadvantages

This alternative meets the City's need to increase hydraulic and organic treatment capacity by replacing the current wastewater treatment system. The alternative has a smaller footprint than the existing system but still requires significantly more power and operator time.

The alternative meets the requirements of state standards and the recommendations of the 10 States Standards. By complying with these standards, the project helps to eliminate potential environmental concerns related to the treatment of wastewater.

- Advantages:
  - A more managed treatment system allows for biological nutrient removal rather than chemical addition.
  - The more managed aeration basin has a much smaller volume and requires less oxygen for treatment.
  - Treatment alternative may not require intermediate pumping.
  - Aerobic digestion for sludge stabilization does not require gas handling.
  - BNR facilities has a greater potential for meeting potential more stringent future effluent limitations.
- Disadvantages:
  - A fully mechanical treatment plant requires preliminary treatment.
  - An on-site laboratory is generally required for process control. The smaller treatment volume results in a treatment process which needs to be more closely monitored and controlled.
  - There is a greater per capita cost associated with construction of a more managed mechanical plant.
  - The treatment alternative requirement biosolids management and solids stabilization. The additional requirement results in digestion, dewatering, and storage. A biosolids program would need to be developed to land application, tracked, and reported as part of the facility's permit requirements. An operator with a specific biosolids licensed is required to manage this program.

# 6 Selection of an Alternative

The selection of an alternative can be chosen by evaluating the construction cost, ongoing operation and maintenance, and lowest overall cost during the service life of the project. Operations and Maintenance associated with the wastewater treatment alternative varies by alternative. In order to compare the alternatives, an annual cost was calculated for each of the proposed alternatives. The annual cost was used to develop a 20 year net present value for each alternative which allows for a cost comparison for both initial capital expense and ongoing operation and maintenance costs. Table 20 shows the present worth analysis.

	Anticipated Annual Operator Labor Hours	Anticipated Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost			robable Cost
Alternative		Capital Cost <sup>1</sup>	Annual O&M Cost <sup>2</sup>	20 Year Present Value <sup>3</sup>	
Expansion of Stabilization Pond System	960	\$10,270,000	\$106,000	\$11,847,000	
Regionalization with Bismarck	730	\$6,483,000	\$440,000 <sup>4</sup>	\$17,864,000	
Continuous Discharge Aerated Pond Mechanical Facility	1,630	\$12,420,000	\$210,000	\$15,539,000	
Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility	2,290	\$17,260,000	\$224,000	\$20,589,000	

1 Includes the following:

30% construction contingency

16% for engineering design, construction administration, and construction field services.

2 Assumes operator total compensation labor rate of \$35.00 per hour.

3 20 year period at 3.0% rate.

4 Wastewater user fee is \$405,000 per year at year one, increasing to \$1,168,000 at design year flow.

Alternatives 5.1, 5.2, and 5.3.1 were presented to the City of Lincoln council at the March 7, 2019 council meeting, where it was decided to include a fourth option of a BNR mechanical system. This fourth option was added, and the revised Facility Plan was forwarded to the city council members for preliminary review. Due to the cost of any alternatives, a public meeting was also held on May 14, 2019 to include public input on project selection. Two of the main comments by the public were 1) that wastewater ponds odor at times of year were disliked, and was desired to eliminate odors and 2) that next improvement should not result in larger expansion of ponds.

Once public input meeting was completed, the city council members reviewed the alternatives once again, and at the June 6, 2019 city council meeting it was motioned and carried to move forward with Alternative 5.3.2, Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility. Public notices of the public input meeting are included under Appendix E.

Alternative 5.3.2 was chosen based on public input, the elimination of existing ponds to reclaim the land for retail or park space, and the ability for the City to remain autonomous for wastewater treatment and provide job opportunities locally.
When evaluating Alternative 5.1 expansion of the stabilization ponds, this alternative was rejected due to the land requirements and need to remove existing homes and building structures. This was determined as negative public support due to condemnation of homes and established farms and farmland, increase in open waters for odor, and reduction in available lands for community growth. Alternative 5.2 regionalization with Bismarck, the city decided that the entering into contract for rates could result in higher costs than predicted, and that city tax dollars would not stay within the community. Alternative 5.3 continuous discharge aerated ponds system was not chosen due to the continued presence of odors and potential for increased pond size in future.

# 7

# Proposed Project

7.1 Project Design

The City of Lincoln has selected a continuous discharge BNR Mechanical Facility to be constructed in two phases responding to population increases. The new BNR Facility will replace the existing lagoon system.

# 7.1.1 Supplemental Parameter Monitoring

A successful BNR facility responds to the levels of specific parameters present in the city's wastewater. The parameters must be characterized on a consistent basis. It is recommended that the facility test the parameters in Table 21 on the periodic basis specified by each parameter.

Sampling Location	Parameter	Frequency
Aeration Basin Influent	рН	Daily
	BOD	Weekly
	TSS	Weekly
	TKN	Monthly
	Ammonia	Monthly
	Alkalinity	Monthly
Aeration Basin	Dissolved Oxygen	Daily (continuous)
	Temperature	Daily (continuous)
Aeration Basin Effluent	TSS	Daily
	Settleability	Daily
	рН	Weekly
	Microscopic	Weekly
Return Activated Sludge	TSS	Daily
	Flow	Daily
Waste Activated Sludge	TSS	Daily
	Flow	Daily
Secondary Clarifier Effluent	BOD	Weekly
	TSS	Weekly
	Ammonia	Monthly
	Nitrate	Monthly
	Nitrite	Monthly
	Total Phosphorus	Monthly
	рН	Daily
Plant Effluent	Turbidity	Daily
	Fecal Coliform	Daily
	Chlorine residual	Daily

Table 21 – Parameter Monitoring

Source: WEF, 2012

It is recommended that the parameters listed under "Aeration basin Influent" be measured weekly prior to design. The concentration of each parameter will be used to design the BNR system to the current loadings.

# 7.1.2 Phasing Approach

The City of Lincoln is projecting significant population growth by 2040. The cost of building a facility to the loading demands of the population presented in Table 1 is substantial, and may not be feasible for the city at this time. The BNR Facility can be constructed in two phases in order to reduce the initial cost. The selected approach improves the Wastewater Treatment Facility in two phases, Phase 1 and Phase 2.

Phase 1 is designed for a linear growth 2040 population projection (Table 22), and Phase 2 is designed for the growth projection provided by the city (Table 1). Phase 2 will be implemented when the population is likely to exceed the capacity of the Phase 1 improvements.

### 7.1.2.1 Existing Wastewater Treatment Facility

The existing wastewater treatment facility is a lagoon system, with two primary and two secondary ponds. New developments and annexations are projected for 2019, which will stress the existing system's storage capacity.

#### 7.1.2.1.1 Decommissioning of Current Treatment Cells

The selected option of a continuous discharge BNR Mechanical Facility does not utilize three of the four existing lagoons. Treatment cells 1, 3, and 4 will be decommissioned, and cell 2 will be converted to an equalization basin.

#### 7.1.2.1.2 ND Department of Health for Sludge Disposal

All sludge shall be disposed in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations Title 40, Part 503, Subpart C.

#### 7.1.2.1.3 Repurpose of Ponds

Use of the current treatment ponds in the new BNR facility may be evaluated during the design process. Using some existing lagoons may reduce the necessary equipment for the equalization process. If the current cells are utilized, this may require additional or repurposed riprap from other treatment cells.

#### 7.1.2.2 Proposed Wastewater Treatment Facility – Phase I

A continuous discharge Biological Nutrient Removal (BNR) Mechanical Facility is proposed for the City of Lincoln in order to meet current and projected loading demands. This facility will utilize biological treatment to meet total nitrogen and total phosphorus effluent limitations. The biological processes will occur through three tanks, an anaerobic, anoxic, and aerobic tank, which limit the need for chemical phosphorus removal. Refer to Figure 8 for Phase 1 layout.

### 7.1.2.2.1 Phase 1 Design Condition

Phase 1 is designed for the flow demand in 2040 based on a linear population growth, shown in Table 22. The Phase 1 system is designed to serve the projected population. The design demands for Phase 1 are in Table 23.

Year	Population
2000	1,730
2010	2,406
2015	3,497
2018	4,138
2020	4,152
2030	5,461
2040	6,771

Table 22 – Linear I	Population Growth
---------------------	-------------------

Table 23 – Phase 1 System Design Demand

	Parameter	Units	Value
Flow Design Demand	Average Dry Weather Flow	gpd	313,000
	Average Wet Weather Flow	gpd	355,000
	Peak Hour Wet Weather Flow	gpm	589
	Peak Instantaneous Wet Weather Flow	gpd	848,000
Load Design Demand	Biochemical Oxygen Demand, 5-day	ppd	1,151
	Suspended Solids, Total	ppd	1,354
	Total Phosphorus	ppd	41
	Total Nitrogen	ppd	112





#### 7.1.2.2.2 Preliminary Treatment

Before wastewater can begin secondary treatment, it must undergo preliminary treatment. Large trash, solids, and inorganic grit must be removed. The proposed preliminary treatment train for this facility includes a 1/4-inch screen, 2-inch manual bypass screen, and a grit removal system.

#### 7.1.2.2.3 Secondary Treatment

Secondary Treatment starts with the anaerobic selectors, where phosphorus accumulating organisms are recycled into the wastewater to begin the phosphorus removal process. The wastewater continues to the aerobic tank, followed the clarifier and anoxic tanks. The specific treatment process is described in section 5.2.3.1.

The secondary treatment process includes a control building, RAS and WAS pumps, blowers, electrical equipment, chemical feed equipment, and a laboratory for conducting tests for the BNR system. While this system is designed for biological phosphorus removal, operations can also be modified in the future when the system needs to remove total Nitrogen to meet anticipated limits.

#### 7.1.2.2.4 Tertiary Treatment

Finally, the wastewater is further sanitized through Ultraviolet disinfection system. One channel will be installed connected directly to the secondary treatment tank. Space for a second Phase 2 UV channel will be accounted for. The UV system shall be designed for the characteristics listed in section 5.3.2.2.

#### 7.1.2.2.5 Solids Handling

Solids handling will include an aerobic digester and a belt press system.

#### 7.1.2.2.6 Phase 1 Cost Estimate

Phase 1 includes the construction of the preliminary treatment building, secondary treatment tank (Aero-Mod package), control building with laboratory, dewatering building, and cake storage. The estimate below is the cost for Phase 1 only. Note that the cost of Phase 1 and 2 are not evenly split, as most of the infrastructure must be built in Phase 1, even though it will serve both phases.

These costs also include capital cost for anaerobic selector tankage and mixing to perform biological phosphorus removal. If these limits are not imposed on the plant and the City decides to leave these components out of the Phase 1 project, initial capital cost will be reduced from that shown below.

	Project Element	Preliminary Engineer Estimate of Probable Capital Cost			
1	Preliminary Treatment, Secondary Treatment Tanks, UV Disinfection, Cake Storage, Dewatering, Control building <sup>1</sup>	\$7,610,000			
2	Wastewater Pond Improvements (Cell Decommissioning)	\$890,000			
3	Pond Cell 2 (Cleaning and lining)	\$150,000			
Subto	otal	\$8,650,000			
Conti	ingency <sup>1</sup>	\$2,595,000			
Mate	rial Testing	\$259,500			
Mobi	lization, Bonding, Insurance	\$432,500			
Cont	ract, Permitting, etc.	\$432,500			
Engir	neering	\$1,979,200			
Total	Cost Phase <sup>2</sup>	\$14,350,000			
<sup>1</sup> Inclu	<sup>1</sup> Includes cost for Nitrogen and Phosphorus removal to meet anticipated future regulations.				
<sup>2</sup> 30%	construction contingency				

Table 24 – Phase 1 Cost Estimate

### 7.1.2.3 Proposed Wastewater Treatment Facility – Phase 2

In the event that the population of the City of Lincoln grows, yielding larger flows, a second phase may be added to the plant. The completed layout of Phases 1 and 2 is shown in Figure 9 for reference.

#### 7.1.2.3.1 Phase 2 Design Condition

Phase 2 is an expansion to Phase 1, which can be completed at any time in the future when the demand exceeds the capacity of the WWTP. Phase 2 design parameters presented in Table 25 were determined using the population growth estimate in Table 1.

	Parameter	Units	Value
	Average Dry Weather Flow	gpd	551,000
Flow Design	Average Wet Weather Flow	gpd	626,000
Demand	Peak Hour Wet Weather Flow	gpm	1,038
	Peak Instantaneous Wet Weather Flow	gpd	1,493,000
	Biochemical Oxygen Demand, 5-day	ppd	2,028
Load Design Demand	Suspended Solids, Total	ppd	2,386
	Total Phosphorus	ppd	72
	Total Nitrogen	ppd	198

Table	25 –	Phase	2	System	Design	Demand
-------	------	-------	---	--------	--------	--------

#### 7.1.2.3.2 Preliminary Treatment

The preliminary treatment building from Phase 1 will be designed to accommodate Phase 2 loadings. No changes to the preliminary treatment building are projected for Phase 2.

#### 7.1.2.3.3 Secondary Treatment

A second Aero-Mod tank, adjacent to the Phase I Aeromod Tank, will be installed to accommodate Phase 2 loadings. A diversion structure upstream of the Aero-Mod tanks will be added in-between the preliminary treatment building and secondary treatment tanks to equally split flow between the two tanks. The new tank will be identical to the first and will have an anaerobic selector tank to begin the biological Phosphorus removal process. As discussed earlier in this report, the operations of the facility can be modified to meet future Nitrogen limits. Because of the anticipation of nutrient limits, the Preliminary Opinion of Probable Costs for the Phase 1 and Phase 2 Aero-Mod options reflect capital and operational costs to address these limits. These are additions that could easily be made in the future, so if the City decides to leave these treatment components out of the original construction, Phase 1 costs will be lower than those shown in the estimates.

#### 7.1.2.3.4 Tertiary Treatment

A second UV channel will be added for Phase 2. There will be two separate trains. The new UV channel will connect directly to the Phase 2 secondary treatment tank, and the old channel will remain unaffected.

#### 7.1.2.3.5 Phase 2 Cost Estimate

A complete cost estimate can be found in Table 26. The table includes a detailed construction cost estimate in 2019 dollar amount. Inflation and other factors shall be considered for future cost estimate. Also included are costs for 30% contingency, 16% engineering to include design and construction administration. The estimate below reflects the additional costs needed to construct Phase 2 additions.

Project Element	Estimate of Probable Capital Cost
New Phase 2 Equipment and construction	
Lift station and vaults	\$55,000
New Aero-Mod Package System, excavation, tank concrete, process piping, electrical/mechanical, dewatering	\$2,503,000
Additional UV Channel	\$25,200
New diversion structure, additional civil	\$92,900
Subtotal Additional Phase 2 costs	\$2,670,000
Contingency <sup>1</sup>	\$801,000
Material Testing	\$80,100
Mobilization, Bonding, Insurance	\$133,500
Contract, Permitting, etc.	\$133,500
Engineering	\$611,000
Total Cost Phase 2 <sup>2</sup>	\$4,430,000
<ol> <li><sup>1</sup> Includes 30% construction contingency</li> <li><sup>2</sup> All values provided in 2019 dollar amount</li> </ol>	

Table	26 -	Phase	2	Cost	<b>Estimate</b>
-------	------	-------	---	------	-----------------

The total cost of the plant, in 2019 dollar amount, is the cost of Phase 1 and Phase 2 combined. As can be seen, the summarized total costs in table 27 do not include operation and maintenance costs over the design period.

As mentioned throughout the report and this section, these costs include the addition of equipment to treat future anticipated Phosphorus limits, and operation modifications can be made to address Nitrogen limits. These limits are currently not in place in North Dakota, and if construction occurs prior to notice of limits being defined, these parameters would need not be included. By eliminating the biological nutrient removal aspect, the capital cost would be reduced. Future inclusion of this equipment has potential for greater costs due to need of modification of the system and cost of the equipment.

Total Cost Summary	Estimate of Probable Capital Cost
Phase 1 Cost <sup>1</sup>	\$14,350,000
Total Phase 2 Cost <sup>1</sup>	\$4,430,000
Total Cost of Plant (Phases 1 and 2) <sup>1</sup>	\$18,780,000
<sup>1</sup> All values provided in 2019 dollar amount	





# 7.1.3 City Annual Operating Budget

As shown in Table 28 below, sewer charges account for over 99% of the City's sewer budget revenue with the remaining collected via penalties and late fees. Neglecting late fees, the City's annual sewer revenue for sewer charges in 2017 was \$231,197 and 2018 was \$262,053. 2019 and 2020 have similar and steadily increasing projections of \$279,740 and \$294,066 respectively. After expenses, the City consistently maintains revenue overages from \$27,402 in 2017, \$124,964 in 2018, and projected overages in 2019/2020 of \$49,170 and \$56,946 respectively. These budget numbers do not include hookup fees revenue.

Category	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
Sewer Charges	\$220,634	\$231,197	\$262,053	\$279,740	\$294,066
Late Fees/Misc.	\$2,267	\$489	\$728	\$700	\$7,000
Total Revenue	\$222,901	\$231,686	\$262,781	\$280,440	\$301,066
Total Expenses	\$188,278	\$204,284	\$137,817	\$231,270	\$244,120
Net Revenue	\$34,623	\$27,402	\$124,964	\$49,170	\$56,946

Table 28 – Annual Sewer Budget

## 7.1.4 City Operations and Maintenance

Below, Table 29 details the total expenses in the annual sewer budget for the City. Costs vary from year to year but are heavily influenced by the repairs and maintenance factor. The employee costs also play a significant role, and in order to operate and maintain the mechanical treatment plant the City may need to hire an additional employee which needs to be considered.

Category	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
Staff	\$36,965	\$62,766	\$60,610	\$90,770	\$96,020
Contractual Services	\$0	\$219	\$0	\$0	\$0
Training	\$0	\$0	\$138	\$1,000	\$1,000
Engineering Services	\$13,612	\$0	\$27,505	\$0	\$0
Utilities	\$3,521	\$4,130	\$4,679	\$4,300	\$5,700
Repairs and Maintenance	\$110,220	\$72,332	\$30,969	\$100,000	\$100,000
Supplies	\$8,717	\$7,835	\$4,361	\$10,000	\$10,500
Parts/Fuel	\$15,000	\$57,000	\$9,555	\$21,200	\$26,900
Miscellaneous expenses	\$242	\$1	\$0	\$4,000	\$4,000
Total Annual O&M	\$188,278	\$204,284	\$137,817	\$231,270	\$244,120

#### Table 29 – Operation & Maintenance Costs

#### 7.1.5 City Debt Repayment

The City currently has no debt associated with the sanitary sewer system, however it does collect roughly \$20,000 annually through sewer improvement district 2004, and will continue to do so for the next few years. Ideally, the City could qualify for grants to pay for a portion of the project and obtain a loan via the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) to finance the remainder. However since grants are not a guaranteed source of revenue, this section will discuss financing for both scenarios, using a grant estimate of 40% of project costs, and financing 100% strictly through the CWSRF.

Loans provided through the CWSRF have an effective interest rate of 2.0% for up to 30 years currently. Table 30 below summarizes a few different financing options and outcomes, showing the differences between 20 and 30 year loans and with or without a 40% grant contribution. Examples of this financing have been listed for the straight line projected growth through 2040 of Phase 1 of the mechanical treatment plant. The cost of this is estimated at \$14,350,000, financing the entirety of the project for 30 years would make the City's monthly payments \$53,040, or \$636,480 annually and a total interest paid of \$4,744,542.

Financed	Amount Financed	Years	Total Interest <sup>1</sup>	Monthly Payment	Annual Cost	Total Cost
100%	\$14,350,000	30	\$4,744,542	\$53,040	\$636,485	\$19,094,542
60%	\$8,610,000	30	\$2,846,725	\$31,824	\$381,891	\$11,456,725
100%	\$14,350,000	20	\$3,072,622	\$72,594	\$871,131	\$17,422,622
60%	\$8,610,000	20	\$1,843,573	\$43,557	\$522,679	\$10,453,573
1 interest calculated at 2.0% over life of loan						

Table 30 – Loan Financing Examples

Adding the annual cost of the financing provided in Table 30 with the annual operations and maintenance budget of the BNR Facility and sewer system provides a total annual increase in the sewer budget for the four different options.

Table 31 – Additional	Sewer	Budget Expenses
-----------------------	-------	-----------------

Financed	Amount Financed	Years	Annual Cost	Annual O&M <sup>1</sup>	20 Year Present Value <sup>2</sup>		
100%	\$14,350,000	30	\$636,485	\$224,000	\$22,424,000		
60%	\$8,610,000	30	\$381,891	\$224,000	\$14,786,000		
100%	\$14,350,000	20	\$871,131	\$224,000	\$20,752,000		
60%	\$8,610,000	20	\$522,679	\$224,000	\$13,783,000		
1 Assumes operator total compensation labor rate of \$35.00 per hour.							
2 O&M costs evaluated yearly at 3.0% rate (20 year O&M PV = \$3,329,000)							

The additional revenue needed to finance the project will need to be generated in the monthly sewer account fees. Currently, the sewer user fee is \$15.50 per month per user which provides a steady flow of funds that has been consistently net positive balance in the sewer budget each year. Table 32 shows the required user fees in 2019 dollars for the estimated loan repayment and O&M costs for each loan financing situation shown above. The estimated fees in Table 32 were calculated using a linear population growth of an additional 131 people per year, and a constant ratio of 2.62 people per sewer account. Because the monthly loan is fixed and the O&M costs are calculated for inflation, the overall trend shows that as population increases, the required minimum monthly user fee will decrease.

Vear	Population	# of	100% 30 years	60% 30 years	100% 20 years	60% 20 years
2020	4150	1505		00 years	20 years	20 years
2020	4152	1000	\$33.79 ¢54.72	\$42.40	\$00.13 ¢66.70	\$49.01 ¢49.02
2021	4203	1695	φ04.73 ¢52.76	\$41.70 ¢41.47	\$00.70	\$40.93 ¢40.93
2022	4414	1725	\$33.70 ¢52.96	\$41.17 ¢40.62	\$00.07 ¢64.42	\$40.13 ¢47.20
2023	4040	1705	\$52.00	\$40.03 ¢40.14	304.13 ¢62.09	\$47.39 ¢46.74
2024	4070	100	\$52.03 ¢51.06	\$40.14 ¢20.70	\$02.90 ¢61.00	\$40.7 I
2025	4007	1000	\$31.20 \$50.55	\$39.70 \$20.20	\$01.92 ¢60.02	\$40.09 \$45.50
2020	4936	1000	\$50.55	\$39.30	\$60.93	\$45.52
2027	5069	1935	\$49.90	\$38.94	\$60.01	\$45.00
2028	5200	1985	\$49.30	\$38.01	\$59.15	\$44.52
2029	5331	2035	\$48.75	\$38.32	\$58.36	\$44.09
2030	5462	2085	\$48.25	\$38.07	\$57.63	\$43.70
2031	5593	2135	\$47.78	\$37.85	\$56.94	\$43.34
2032	5724	2185	\$47.36	\$37.65	\$56.31	\$43.02
2033	5855	2235	\$46.98	\$37.49	\$55.73	\$42.74
2034	5986	2285	\$46.63	\$37.35	\$55.19	\$42.48
2035	6117	2335	\$46.32	\$37.24	\$54.70	\$42.26
2036	6248	2385	\$46.05	\$37.15	\$54.25	\$42.07
2037	6379	2435	\$45.80	\$37.09	\$53.83	\$41.90
2038	6510	2485	\$45.58	\$37.05	\$53.45	\$41.77
2039	6641	2535	\$45.40	\$37.03	\$53.11	\$41.66
2040	6772	2585	\$45.24	\$37.03	\$52.80	\$41.57
2041	6903	2635	\$45.11	\$37.06	\$24.98	\$24.98
2042	7034	2685	\$45.00	\$37.10	\$25.25	\$25.25
2043	7165	2735	\$44.92	\$37.17	\$25.53	\$25.53
2044	7296	2785	\$44.87	\$37.25	\$25.82	\$25.82
2045	7427	2835	\$44.84	\$37.36	\$26.13	\$26.13
2046	7558	2885	\$44.83	\$37.48	\$26.45	\$26.45
2047	7689	2935	\$44.85	\$37.62	\$26.78	\$26.78
2048	7820	2985	\$44.89	\$37.78	\$27.12	\$27.12
2049	7951	3035	\$44.95	\$37.96	\$27.47	\$27.47
2050	8082	3085	\$45.03	\$38.15	\$27.84	\$27.84
2020	8213	3135	\$28.21	\$28.21	\$28.21	\$28.21

Table 32 – Estimated Month	ly User Account	Fees to Meet	<b>Operating Costs</b>
----------------------------	-----------------	--------------	------------------------

It should be noted that this table is for Phase I loan and O&M costs only, and does not include Phase II. Per the design of Phase I, if population increases at a linear rate Phase II will need to be constructed in 2040 to accommodate a population over 6,771.

As can be seen in Table 32, if the project were to begin in 2020 with a population of 4,152, the estimated number of sewer user accounts would be 1585. If no grant was obtained, and 100% of the BNR Facility construction cost was financed for 30 years, then the resulting required monthly sewer account fee would be \$55.79 during the first year. Following the column downwards, each year the monthly rate would decrease due to the population increase. In this example, a 30 year loan would be paid off by 2051, and the new sewer account monthly rate would only reflect the standard \$28.21 for O&M costs of the BNR Facility and sewer system at 2051 dollar.

Although effective, following Table 32's monthly rates may not be the most prudent way of recouping the costs of construction of the BNR Facility. In order to not create a spike in the monthly user fees, the City could choose to charge an average rate. This average rate may be lower than the required user fees in the initial years, resulting in the City having to absorb those first year costs (a loss in the account). At a certain point within the life of the loan, the revenue generated would be greater than expenditures. If this rate remained constant, it would also then result in revenue for the sewer funds for future project savings.

If the City is unable to provide capital cost payments at start of project, the user rates will need to be set such that the loan repayment and O&M costs are covered. This is to say that the user rate needs set at the highest rate to cover the costs of initial loan payment and O&M costs. As the project moves forward, it is recommended that the topic of user rates be reviewed for planned increase to meet required costs.

The user fees required to pay back the loan and cover the O&M costs would be affected by a number of items as the project planning takes place. Factors that would affect the total loan requirements and user fees include, but are not limited to: actual construction and engineering costs, industry pricing, inflation, population growth, and City funding amounts. It is advised that the City review the anticipated final user fee rates at multiple points through the project phases.

## 7.2 Solicitation Letter Responses

As discussed in Section 1 of this report, letters of solicitation were sent to major agencies and authorities relevant to the project and/or location to help identify any potential environmental impacts related to construction and operations of a BNR Mechanical Treatment Plant. Letters were sent to The North Dakota Department of Health, Game and Fish Department, State Historical Society, State Water Commission, the US Fish and Wildlife Service, Army Corps of Engineers, and Department of Agriculture National Resource Conservation Service. The following is a summary of their responses to the letters of solicitation, which are also included in Appendix E.

# 7.2.1 ND Department of Environmental Quality

The NDDEQ believes the environmental impacts from the proposed construction will be minor and can be controlled by proper construction methods. Their concerns include:

- Limiting dust emissions
- Minimizing disturbance of stream beds and banks, replacing disturbed vegetation, prevention of oil and grease spills that may reach receiving waters
- Obtaining the proper NDPDES permit(s) and reporting changes, proper sludge removal
- Reporting any spills that may have an adverse effect on groundwater quality
- Minimize the disturbance of any asbestos containing material, follow regulations pertaining to the removal or demolition of any structure containing asbestos
- Limit construction noise pollution and working hours to daytime
- Solid waste materials managed and transported in accordance with state regulations

## 7.2.2 ND Game and Fish Department

The NDGFD recognizes the projects location could impact wetlands. They recommend:

- A wetland delineation be conducted to determine exact acreage of disturbance
- Mitigation plan be submitted to show a net loss of zero wetlands with necessary permit applications

### 7.2.3 ND State Historical Society

The NDSHS concluded the proposed site has not yet been disturbed by construction activities and recommends:

- A class III (pedestrian survey) of archaeological resources in the proposed area
- 7.2.4 US Fish and Wildlife Service

The USFWS expects no significant impact on fish and wildlife resources.

7.2.5 US Army Corps of Engineers

The USACOE determined the proposed project may need:

• Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit

## 7.2.6 ND State Water Commission

The NDSWC acknowledges they have no authority to issue permits in areas identified as NFIP floodplains, and:

- Ask that the City works closely with the City Floodplain Administrator.
- Requires if surface water or groundwater will be diverted for construction of the project, a water permit will be required.

# 7.2.7 US Department of Agriculture

The USDA recommends decommissioning and reclamation activities should consider surface as well as ground water quality with respect to the removal of the lagoon sludge. With this, Federal Regulations be followed for the disposal of sewage sludge, and:

- That surface sludge disposal is not allowed in a wetland.
- With high conductivity and shallow groundwater, that the existing liners in the decommissioned ponds will be protected or to ensure full removal of sludge's and contaminated soils.
- To consider NRCS conservation practice standard 360 "Waste Facility Closure" which includes obtaining permits from the USACE, sludge removal, maintaining pond liners, wetland mitigation, removal of sludge to the maximum extent practicable, conducting preclosure soil and water testing to establish base line data surrounding the site, minimizing agitation of wastes, not taking borrowed soils from important farmlands, and minimizing site erosion and pollution of downstream water resources.

They also point out that pond cell 1 is located in the Apple Creek 1<sup>\</sup>% Annual Chance floodplain, and recommend while decommissioning pond cell 1:

- The area be graded to allow for natural floodplain function and maintain sheet flow conditions over a vegetated area.
- The area be capped with very low hydraulic conductivity soil and testing of onsite soils.

# 8 Conclusions and Recommendations

After establishing the project need and reviewing multiple alternatives, we believe the proposed project is in the best interest of the City of Lincoln. The proposed project is necessary, comparably modest in scope and cost, and should be considered for funding. Following construction, the City will have a sanitary sewer and wastewater treatment system that will serve them well for the 20 year planning period, and is able to handle additional expansions over the Phase I and II planned.

# Appendix A

Level 1 Wetlands Delineation



### **TECHINCAL MEMORANDUM**

TO:	Gerald Wise, City of Lincoln
FROM:	Erin Budrow, SEH Wetland Biologist
DATE:	December 19, 2018
RE:	Preliminary Engineering Report - Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility Level 1 Wetland Delineation SEH No. LINND 141680

#### Introduction

This memorandum describes the methodology and results of a Level 1 Wetland Delineation completed within the vicinity of potential wastewater treatment facility improvements in Burleigh County, North Dakota. The area of investigation traverses the Cities of Bismarck and Lincoln, Apple Creek Township, and the unorganized territory of Lincoln-Fort Rice. The area includes land north and east of the existing Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility and a linear corridor associated with prospective wastewater piping. This Level-1 Wetland Delineation was performed to identify potential wetland areas that may be impacted by the proposed upgrades. These results are not based on field assessment and do not constitute a field wetland delineation, but rather should be viewed as an estimate of potential wetland areas for use in project planning and alternatives analysis.

#### Methods

Wetlands were evaluated in the vicinity of the proposed project alignment as shown on **Figure 1**. Various data sets were collected in order to aid in the identification of wetland areas including:

Aerial Photography

• Farm Service Agency (FSA) National Aerial Imagery Program (NAIP) summer aerial photographs in natural color (2005, 2009, 2010, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017) with a 1-meter spatial resolution

Elevation Data:

- LiDAR data for North Dakota, flown in spring 2015. Includes digital elevation model with a 1meter spatial resolution
- LiDAR based slope model

Ancillary Data Sets:

- U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service National Wetlands Inventory (NWI)
- Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey Geographic Maps (SSURGO)

The general process involved identifying areas that are potential wetland and then determining a boundary for those wetlands. Areas of potential wetland were identified for further investigation primarily using the digital elevation model (DEM) and various years of aerial photography. Prior land classification data such as the NWI and SSURGO mapping were also reviewed to ensure areas previously identified as wetland or

Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Facility - Level 1 Wetland Delineation December 19, 2018 Page 2

hydric soils were also investigated. All of these resources are available upon request. Once an area was identified as wetland, the DEM, slope, and aerial photographs were used to aid in boundary determination. Because of the agricultural land use throughout the project area, the variety of aerial photographs flown over the previous decade were utilized to determine the best location of the wetland boundary.

#### Results

Several wetland areas were identified within the area of investigation. The boundaries of the Level 1 Wetland Delineation, completed as a remote sensing assessment, are shown in **Figure 1** and **Figure 2**. A few larger wetlands are associated with Apple Creek and the adjacent floodplain. Three basins are located within an agricultural field in the northeast portion of the area of investigation. These wetlands are likely Type 1 (PEM1A) seasonally flooded basins, and exist as drainage swales and shallow depressions where water tends to pond early in the growing season. There are also numerous wet roadside or drainage ditches present throughout the area, likely classified as Type 2 (PEM1B) fresh (wet) meadow habitat. The farmed and ditched areas may or may not meet hydrology, vegetation, and soils characteristics required to meet wetland criteria, and the wetland boundaries shown in the attached figures should be viewed as a conservative estimate. Wetland delineations are recommended during the growing season to determine whether or not these areas meet technical wetland criteria in the field. Additionally, a crop slide review and analysis may be necessary due to the agricultural nature of the project area. Wetland impacts may require permits and compensatory mitigation under local, state, and/or federal regulatory requirements.

#### Contact

Please contact Erin Budrow, SEH Wetland Biologist, at 218.322.4519 or via e-mail at <u>ebudrow@sehinc.com</u> for any questions or comments relating to this Level 1 Wetland Delineation.

Attachments Figure 1 – Level 1 Wetland Delineation Results – Overview Figure 2 – Level 1 Wetland Delineation Results – Detailed

\\sehbk1.cst.sehinc.com\projects\ko\l\lind\141680\4-prelim-dsgn-rpts\per\wetland inventory\linnd wwtf level 1 wetland delin memo.docx











Appendix B

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit





October 1, 2018

RECEIVED

OCT 0 2 2018

Lincoln City Of Shawn Surface 74 Santee Rd Lincoln, ND 58504-9180

#### Notice of Coverage and Issuance of an NDPDES Permit

#### NDPDES Facility No: NDG124341 Name: Lincoln City Of

#### NDPDES General Permit NDG120000

This letter shall serve as notice that the above-referenced facility is covered under General Permit No. NDG120000. A general discharge permit is valid only when accompanied by this notice of coverage letter. This general permit will be in effect from October 01 2018 and will expire on September 30 2023. With coverage under a general discharge permit, the NDPDES number for your facility is NDG124341. Please refer to this number on all permit related correspondence.

Should you have any questions, please contact Sarah Waldron Feld at 701.328.5237 or the Division of Water Quality-NDPDES Permits Program at 701.328.5210. Note that enclosures are not being sent to carbon copy recipients.

Sincerely,

Marty Howle

Marty Haroldson NDPDES Program Manager Division of Water Quality

Enc.

Division of Municipal Facilities 701-328-5211

Permit No: Effective Date: Expiration Date:

NDG120000 October 1, 2018 September 30, 2023

#### AUTHORIZATION TO DISCHARGE UNDER THE

### NORTH DAKOTA POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM

In compliance with Chapter 33-16-01 of the North Dakota Department of Health rules as promulgated under Chapter 61-28 (North Dakota Water Pollution Control Act) of the North Dakota Century Code,

domestic wastewater treatment facilities satisfying the requirements of this permit

is authorized to discharge from waste stabilization ponds

to Class I or IA waters of the State

provided all the conditions of this permit are met.

This permit and the authorization to discharge shall expire at midnight,

September 30, 2023.

day of <u>September</u>, 2017 Sianed this

Karl H. Rockema<del>h, P</del>.E. Director Division of Water Quality

BP 2014.06.12

This page is intentionally left blank

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

×.

D	EFIN	NTIONS Standard Permit BP 2013.12.31	5
Ρ	ERM	IIT SUBMITTALS SUMMARY	7
	Α.	Alternate Permits	7
	В.	Facility Permit Coverage	7
I.	LI	MITATIONS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS	8
	Α.	Discharge Authorization	8
	В.	Effluent Limitations and Monitoring	8
11.	MC	DNITORING, RECORDING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS BP 2017.08.21	12
	A.	Representative Sampling (Routine and Non-Routine Discharges)	12
	в. С	Test Procedures	12
	D.	Additional Monitoring	12
	E.	Reporting of Monitoring Results	13
	F.	Records Retention	14
111.	CO	MPLIANCE RESPONSIBILITIES	14
	A.	Duty to Comply	14
	В, С	Proper Operation and Maintenance	14
	D.	Duty to Provide Information	14
	Ε.	Signatory Requirements	14
	F.	Twenty-four Hour Notice of Noncompliance Reporting	15
	С. Н	Bypass of Treatment Facilities	16
	Ι.	Duty to Mitigate	17
	J.	Removed Materials	17 17
	K.	Duty to Reapply1	17
IV.	GEI	NERAL PROVISIONS1	18
	Α.	Inspection and Entry1	81
	В.	Availability of Reports1	8
	D.	New Limitations or Prohibitions	8
	Ε.	Permit Actions	8  8
	F.	Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense1	8
	G. 3	State Laws1	8
	I.	Property Rights	8
	J. 3	Severability	9 0
V.	IND	USTRIAL WASTE MANAGEMENT BP 2009.09.10	0
VI.	ACC	CEPTING HAULED WASTE	ອ
VII.	BEN	IEFICIAL REUSES BP 2015.09.03	2
	A. I	rrigation2	2
	B. (	Construction	2
	C. (	Dil and Gas Production (including Hydraulic Fracturing)2	4

D.	Other Uses as Approved2	:4
----	-------------------------	----

#### DEFINITIONS Standard Permit BP 2013.12.31

- 1. "Act" means the Clean Water Act.
- 2. "Average monthly discharge limitation" means the highest allowable average of "daily discharges" over a calendar month, calculated as the sum of all "daily discharges" measured during a calendar month divided by the number of "daily discharges" measured during that month.
- 3. **"Average weekly discharge limitation**" means the highest allowable average of "daily discharges" over a calendar week, calculated as the sum of all "daily discharges" measured during a calendar week divided by the number of "daily discharges" measured during that week.
- 4. **"Best management practices"** (BMPs) means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to prevent or reduce the pollution of waters of the United States. BMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage areas.
- 5. **"Bypass**" means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a treatment facility.
- 6. "Composite" sample means a combination of at least 4 discrete sample aliquots, collected over periodic intervals from the same location, during the operating hours of a facility not to exceed a 24-hour period. The sample aliquots must be collected and stored in accordance with procedures prescribed in the most recent edition of Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater.
- 7. "Daily discharge" means the discharge of a pollutant measured during a calendar day or any 24-hour period that reasonably represents the calendar day for purposes of sampling. For pollutants with limitations expressed in units of mass, the "daily discharge" is calculated as the total mass of the pollutant discharged over the day. For pollutants with limitations expressed in other units of measurement, the "daily discharge" is calculated as the average measurement of the pollutant over the day.
- 8. "Department" means the North Dakota Department of Health, Division of Water Quality.
- 9. "DMR" means discharge monitoring report.
- 10. "EPA" means the United States Environmental Protection Agency.
- 11. "**Geometric mean**" means the n<sup>th</sup> root of a product of n factors, or the antilogarithm of the arithmetic mean of the logarithms of the individual sample values.
- 12. "**Grab**" for monitoring requirements, means a single "dip and take" sample collected at a representative point in the discharge stream.

- 13. "**Instantaneous**" for monitoring requirements, means a single reading, observation, or measurement. If more than one sample is taken during any calendar day, each result obtained shall be considered.
- 14. "Maximum daily discharge limitation" means the highest allowable "daily discharge."
- 15. **"Salmonid"** means of, belonging to, or characteristic of the family Salmonidae, which includes the salmon, trout, and whitefish.
- 16. "Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO)" means untreated or partially treated sewage overflows from a sanitary sewer collection system.
- 17. "Severe property damage" means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic loss caused by delays in production.
- 18. "Total drain" means the total volume of effluent discharged.
- 19. "**Upset**" means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary noncompliance with technology-based permit effluent limitations because of factors beyond the reasonable control of the permittee. An upset does not include noncompliance to the extent caused by operational error, improperly designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventive maintenance, or careless or improper operation.
## OUTFALL DESCRIPTION

**Outfall "Cell Name"** – Active. Final Outfall. Wastewater Stabilization Ponds Discharge. The wastewater stabilization pond system received domestic wastewater for treatment.

## PERMIT SUBMITTALS SUMMARY

Coverage Point	Submittal	Frequency	First Submittal Date
"Cell Name"	Discharge Monitoring Report	Semiannually	April 30, 2019
Application Renewal	NPDES Application Renewal	1/permit cycle	April 1, 2023

## SPECIAL CONDITIONS

## A. Alternate Permits

When an individual North Dakota Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NDPDES) permit is issued to a facility otherwise subject to this permit, coverage under General Permit NDG120000 is automatically terminated upon the effective date of the individual permit. When a facility is approved for coverage under an alternative NDPDES general permit, the authorization under this permit is automatically terminated on the date of approval for coverage under an alternative general permit. When an individual NDPDES permit or coverage under an alternative general permit is denied to a facility/POTW otherwise subject to this permit, the applicability of this permit remains in effect, unless otherwise specified by the department.

## B. Facility Permit Coverage

- 1. To obtain coverage under this permit, the owner, operator, or authorized agent of the facility must submit a Short Form A, NDPDES Permit Notice of Intent (NOI).
- 2. Within thirty (30) days after receiving an application, the department will authorize coverage under this discharge permit, deny coverage, or request additional information. Coverage under this General Permit will begin when the applicant receives a written notice of coverage from the department.
- 3. A request to be issued an individual permit may be made by the owner, operator, or authorized agent of any facility that is eligible for coverage under this General Permit. Such requests shall provide the reasons for issuing an individual permit to the facility. If the reasons are adequate to support the request, the department may issue an individual permit.
- 4. Facilities covered by an individual permit, which are also eligible for coverage under this permit, shall remain covered by the individual permit until it expires. The reapplication submitted under the provisions of the existing individual permit will be processed as an application for authorization under this permit.

## I. LIMITATIONS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

#### A. Discharge Authorization

- During the effective period of this permit, the permittee is authorized to discharge wastewater pollutants provided the discharge meets the limitations and monitoring requirements outlined in this permit. Permittees discharging wastewater that does not comply with the permit conditions may be subject to civil and/or criminal penalties under the North Dakota statutes. This permit identifies the requirements for discharges from waste stabilization ponds in North Dakota to Class I or IA waters of the State.
- 2. To be eligible for authorization to discharge under this general permit, the stabilization ponds must service a population of less than 5,000 people, not be considered a major discharge facility by the department and have no significant industrial user contributions as determined by the department. Additionally, it must be demonstrated that the system can meet secondary treatment limitation through compliance with a previously issued discharge permit for the facility or engineering design criteria and data.

This permit authorizes the discharge of only those pollutants resulting from facility processes, waste streams, and operations that have been clearly identified in the permit application process.

#### **B. Effluent Limitations and Monitoring**

The permittee must notify the department prior to any lagoon discharge. Approximately two (2) weeks prior to any planned discharge, a representative pre-discharge grab sample must be collected from the lagoon cell and analyzed for the parameters listed in the table below. The pre-discharge sample results must be provided when notifying the department of a planned discharge. The permittee must limit and monitor all discharges as specified below:

Table 1: Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Requirements – Wastewater Stabilization Ponds					
	Eff	luent Limital	tions	Monitoring Red	quirements
Parameter	Avg. Monthly Limit	Avg. Weekly Limit	Daily Maximum Limit	Sample Frequency	Sample Type
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD₅) ª	25 mg/l	*	45 mg/l	Weekly	Grab
pH ª	Shall remai	n between 7	.0 to 9.0 s.u.	Weekly	Grab
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) ª	30 mg/l	*	45 mg/l	Weekly	Grab
Escherichia coli ( <i>E.</i> <i>coli</i> ) <sup>a, b</sup>	126/100 ml	*	409/100 ml	Weekly	Grab
Total Ammonia as N, mg/l <sup>a, c</sup>	Refer to Amm	onia Table k	pelow (Table 2)	Weekly	Grab
Effluent Flow, MGD	Report	*	*	Daily	Calculated
Total Drain, Mgal	*	*	Total	Semiannually	Calculated
Ammonia as N (Option	n 1) – Receiving co	g Water Par ompliance s	ameters – Colle sample.	cted same days	as effluent
Flow (cfs)	*		Report	Weekly	Grab
pH (s.u.)	*		Report	Weekly	Grab
Temperature (°C)	*		Report	Weekly	Grab
Ammonia as N (mg/l)	*		Report	Weekly	Grab
Ammonia as N (Option 2) – Receiving Water Parameters – Collected same days as effluent compliance sample.					
Temperature (°C)	*		Report	Weekly	Grab
Notes:					
*. This parameter is not limited. However, the department may impose limitations based on sample history and to protect the receiving waters.					

a. A pre-discharge sample must be analyzed and reported to the department prior to the start of any discharge. A pre-discharge grab sample shall be tested for BOD<sub>5</sub>, TSS, pH, *E. coli*, and Ammonia as N. This pre-discharge sample shall represent the first week discharge sample. An additional grab sample of the actual discharge shall be taken and analyzed on a weekly basis for the duration of the discharge.

Table 1: Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Requirements – Wastewater Stabilization Ponds					
······································	Eff	Effluent Limitations			quirements
Parameter	Avg. Monthly Limit	Avg. Weekly Limit	Daily Maximum Limit	Sample Frequency	Sample Type
<ul> <li><i>E. coli</i> shall not excension sample collected dur organisms per 100 m</li> </ul>	ed 126 organisr ing any 30-day nl for any one da	ns per 100 r consecutive ay. This limit	nl as a geometric period, nor shall t applies from Ap	mean of represe sample exceed 4 ril 1 through Octol	ntative 09 per 31.
c. Permittee must use c	one of two option	ns to comply	with the ammor	ia as N limitation:	
<ul> <li>Option 1 – Applicable (temperature, pH, ammonia as N, and receiving-stream flow) receiving water parameters are collected to calculate (refer to formula in Table 2) the real-time water quality standard for ammonia. This option allows 10% of the receiving stream flow for dilution. This calculated limit will be compared to the facility effluent data on ammonia and if the effluent value is greater than the calculated limit, the permittee shall report a violation.</li> <li>Option 2 – Permittee collects ammonia as N and temperature samples from the lagoon cell to be discharged and complies with the ammonia as N limit at the end-of-pipe forgoing any</li> </ul>					
<ul> <li>Stipulations:</li> <li>There is to be no floating oil or visible sheen present in the discharge. The discharge shall not contain, in sufficient amounts to be unsightly or deleterious, any floating debris, oil, scum, and other floating materials attributable to domestic wastewater operations. If floating oil or a visible sheen is observed at the discharge point, the department shall be contacted.</li> <li>The limitations for BOD<sub>5</sub>, TSS, and <i>E. coli</i> are based on the average of all samples taken to monitor the discharge from a cell. If only one sample is collected, that one value shall be used as the average. The limitation for pH applies to each sample taken. The department may allow discharge when the pH is outside the stated range if it suspects that the variation is due to natural biological processes, and the discharger confirms that chemicals were not added to the cell or contributions from industrial sources did not cause the pH to exceed the permitted range of 7.0-9.0 s.u.</li> </ul>					
All discharges shall b the receiving stream	e made in such and downstrean	a manner to n landowner	o minimize any p s.	ossible adverse in	npacts on

At a minimum, one (1) grab sample shall be taken each week of the discharge and analyzed for  $BOD_5$ , TSS, *E. coli*, pH, ammonia as N, and all parameters associated with ammonia as N – Option 1 or 2. The pre-discharge sample may be used for the sample required for the first week of the discharge. The start and end dates of the discharge shall also be recorded. The total amount of water discharged shall be determined either by using a flow-measuring device or by recording the water-level drop in the pond. All samples and measurements taken shall be representative of the discharge.

Table 1: Effluent Limita	ations and Mor	itoring Rec	uirements – Wa	stewater Stabiliz	ation Ponds
	Eff	luent Limital	tions	Monitoring Red	quirements
Parameter	Avg. Monthly Limit	Avg. Weekly Limit	Daily Maximum Limit	Sample Frequency	Sample Type
The department may deemed necessary to standards are met du	require the per o assure adequa uring the dischai	mittee to pro ate operation rge period.	ovide additional san of the treatment	ampling and moni system and the v	toring as vater quality
Compliance samples taken prior to leaving stream.	meeting the mo the wastewater	onitoring req stabilization	uirements specifi n pond system or	ed in this permit s entering the rece	hall be iving
Table 2: Ammonia as N	l Effluent Limit	ations Calc	ulations (Chapte	er 33-16-02.1)	
Chronic Standard (Ave The 30-day avera exceed the nume concentration of to times the numeric	rage Monthly L ge concentratio rical value given otal ammonia w al value given b	<b>imit)</b> n of total am by the follo ithin the 30- by the followi	nmonia (expresse wing formula; and day averaging pe ing formula:	d as N in mg/L) d d the highest 4-da riod does not exc	oes not y average eed 2.5
	<u>(0.0</u> (1+10	) <u>577</u> + <sup>7.688-pH</sup> 1+1	<u>2.487)</u> • CV;		
	where CV CV = 1.45 Receiving stream	√ = 2.85, wh *10 <sup>0.028*(25-⊤)</sup> am pH is us	en T <u>&lt;</u> 14°C; or , when T > 14°C. ed for the calcula	tion	
Acute Standard (Daily Ma The one-hour aver exceed the numer	aximum Limit) age concentrati ical value given	on of total a by the follow	mmonia (express ving formula:	ed as N in mg/l) o	loes not
	<u>.(0.</u> (1+10 <sup>7</sup>	<u>411</u> + 1 <sup>7.204-pH</sup> 1+1	<u>58.4)</u> O <sup>pH-7.204</sup> )		
where salmonids a	are absent; or				
Where salmonids.	<u>.(0.:</u> (1+10 <sup>7</sup> are present.	<del>275</del> + 1 <sup>7.204-pH</sup> 1+1	<u>39.0)</u> O <sup>pH-7.204</sup> )		
Note – For the above calculations, the permittee receives ten percent of stream flow for dilution (refer to Option 1) at time of discharge based on the flow of the receiving stream. In- stream concentration will be calculated on a mass-balance basis using the following formula:					
In-stream concentration= $Q_u = 10\%$ of the receiving $C_u = Receiving$ stream am $Q_e = Effluent$ flow parame	(Qu*Cu + Qe*Ce) stream flow par imonia paramete ter	l/(Q <sub>u+</sub> Q <sub>e</sub> ) wh rameter er	iere		

.

÷

C<sub>e</sub> = Ammonia as N parameter

Outfall discharge will be regulated accordingly to avoid exceeding the water quality standard for ammonia as N at any time during the discharge period.

## II. MONITORING, RECORDING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS BP 2017.08.21

## A. Representative Sampling (Routine and Non-Routine Discharges)

All samples and measurements taken shall be representative of the monitored discharge.

In order to ensure that the effluent limits set forth in this permit are not violated at times other than when routine samples are taken, the permittee must collect additional samples at the appropriate outfall whenever any discharge occurs that may reasonably be expected to cause or contribute to a violation that is unlikely to be detected by a routine sample. The permittee must analyze the additional samples for those parameters limited under **Part I Effluent Limitations and Monitoring** requirements of this permit that are likely to be affected by the discharge.

The permittee must collect such additional samples as soon as the spill, discharge, or bypassed effluent reaches the outfall. The samples must be analyzed in accordance with <u>B. Test Procedures</u>. The permittee must report all additional monitoring in accordance with <u>D. Additional Monitoring</u>.

## **B. Test Procedures**

The collection and transportation of all samples shall conform with EPA preservation techniques and holding times found in 40 CFR 136. All laboratory tests shall be performed by a North Dakota certified laboratory in conformance with test procedures pursuant to 40 CFR 136, unless other test procedures have been specified in this permit or approved by EPA as an alternate test procedure under 40 CFR 136.5. The method of determining the total amount of water discharged shall provide results within 10 percent of the actual amount.

## C. Recording of Results

Records of monitoring information shall include:

- 1. the date, exact place and time of sampling or measurements;
- 2. the name(s) of the individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements;
- 3. the name of the laboratory;
- 4. the date(s) and time(s) analyses were performed;
- 5. the name(s) of the individual(s) who performed the analyses;
- 6. the analytical techniques or methods used; and
- 7. the results of such analyses.

## D. Additional Monitoring

If the discharge is monitored more frequently than this permit requires, all additional results, if in compliance with <u>B. Test Procedures</u>, shall be included in the summary on the Discharge Monitoring Report.

## E. Reporting of Monitoring Results

- 1. Monitoring results shall be summarized and reported to the department using Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs). If no discharge occurs during a reporting period, "No Discharge" shall be reported. The permittee must submit DMRs electronically using the electronic information reporting system unless requirements in subsection 3 are met.
- 2. Prior to December 21, 2020, the permittee may elect to electronically submit the following compliance monitoring data and reports instead of mailing paper forms. Beginning December 21, 2020, the permittee must report the following using the electronic reporting system:
  - a. General permit reports [e.g., notices of intent (NOI); notices of termination (NOT); no exposure certifications (NOE)];
  - b. Municipal separate storm sewer system program reports;
  - c. Pretreatment program reports;
  - d. Sewer overflow/bypass event reports; and
  - e. Clean Water Act 316(b) annual reports
- 3. The permittee may seek a waiver from electronic reporting. To obtain a waiver, the permittee must complete and submit an Application for Temporary Electronic Reporting Waiver form (SFN 60992) to the department. The department will have 120 days to approve or deny the waiver request. Once the waiver is approved, the permittee may submit paper versions of monitoring data and reports to the department.
  - a. One of the following criteria must be met in order to obtain a waiver. The department reserves the right to deny any waiver request, even if they meet one of the criteria below.
    - 1. No internet access,
    - 2. No computer access,
    - 3. Annual DMRs (upon approval of the department),
    - 4. Employee turnover (3-month periods only), or

5. Short duration permits (upon approval of the department)

All reports must be postmarked by the last day of the month following the end of each reporting period. All original documents and reports required herein shall be signed and submitted to the department at the following address:

ND Department of Health Division of Water Quality 918 East Divide Ave Bismarck ND 58501-1947

#### F. Records Retention

All records and information (including calibration and maintenance) required by this permit shall be kept for at least three years or longer if requested by the department or EPA.

## **III. COMPLIANCE RESPONSIBILITIES**

#### A. Duty to Comply

The permittee must comply with all conditions of this permit. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the Act and is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or modification; or for denial of a permit renewal application.

#### **B.** Proper Operation and Maintenance

The permittee shall at all times maintain in good working order and operate as efficiently as possible all treatment or control facilities or systems installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the terms and conditions of this permit. If necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit, this shall include the operation and maintenance of backup or auxiliary systems.

#### C. Planned Changes

The department shall be given advance notice of any planned changes at the permitted facility or of an activity which may result in permit noncompliance. Any anticipated facility expansions, production increase, or process modifications which might result in new, different, or increased discharges of pollutants shall be reported to the department as soon as possible. Changes which may result in a facility being designated a "new source" as determined in 40 CFR 122.29(b) shall also be reported.

#### D. Duty to Provide Information

The permittee shall furnish to the department, within a reasonable time, any information which the department may request to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit, or to determine compliance with this permit. The permittee shall also furnish to the department, upon request, copies of records required to be kept by this permit. When a permittee becomes aware that it failed to submit any relevant facts or submitted incorrect information in a permit application or any report, it shall promptly submit such facts or information.

#### E. Signatory Requirements

All applications, reports, or information submitted to the department shall be signed and certified.

All permit applications shall be signed by a responsible corporate officer, a general partner, or a principal executive officer or ranking elected official.

All reports required by the permit and other information requested by the department shall be signed by a person described above or by a duly authorized representative of that person. A person is a duly authorized representative only if:

- 1. The authorization is made in writing by a person described above and submitted to the department; and
- 2. The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility, such as the position of plant manager, superintendent, position of equivalent responsibility, or an individual or position having overall responsibility for environmental matters.

If an authorization under <u>E. Signatory Requirements</u> is no longer accurate for any reason, a new authorization satisfying the above requirements must be submitted to the department prior to or together with any reports, information, or applications to be signed by an authorized representative.

Any person signing a document under this section shall make the following certification:

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations."

## F. Twenty-four Hour Notice of Noncompliance Reporting

- The permittee shall report any noncompliance which may endanger health or the environment. Any information shall be provided orally as soon as possible, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours from the time the permittee first became aware of the circumstances. The following occurrences of noncompliance shall be included in the oral report to the department at 701.328.5210:
  - a. Any lagoon cell overflow or any unanticipated bypass which exceeds any effluent limitation in the permit under <u>G. Bypass of Treatment Facilities;</u>
  - b. Any upset which exceeds any effluent limitation in the permit under <u>H. Upset</u> <u>Conditions;</u> or
  - c. Violation of any daily maximum effluent or instantaneous discharge limitation for any of the pollutants listed in the permit
- 2. A written submission shall also be provided within five days of the time that the permittee became aware of the circumstances. The written submission shall contain:
  - a. A description of the noncompliance and its cause;

- b. The period of noncompliance, including exact dates and times;
- c. The estimated time noncompliance is expected to continue if it has not been corrected; and
- d. Steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the noncompliance.

Reports shall be submitted to the address in <u>Part II.E. Reporting of Monitoring Results</u>. The department may waive the written report on a case by case basis if the oral report has been received within 24 hours by the department at 701.328.5210 as identified above.

All other instances of noncompliance shall be reported no later than at the time of the next Discharge Monitoring Report submittal. The report shall include the four items listed in this subsection.

#### G. Bypass of Treatment Facilities

- 1. <u>Bypass not exceeding limitations</u>. The permittee may allow any bypass to occur which does not cause effluent limitations to be exceeded, but only if it also is for essential maintenance to assure efficient operation. These bypasses are not subject to any of the following provisions in this section.
- 2. Bypass exceeding limitations-notification requirements.
  - a. Anticipated Bypass. If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall submit prior notice, if possible at least ten (10) days before the date of bypass.
  - b. Unanticipated Bypass. The permittee shall submit notice of an unanticipated bypass as required under <u>F. Twenty-four Hour Notice of Noncompliance</u> <u>Reporting</u>.
- 3. <u>Prohibition of Bypass.</u> Bypass is prohibited, and the department may take enforcement action against a permittee for bypass, unless:
  - a. Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage;
  - b. There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. This condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance; and
  - c. The permittee submitted notices as required under the <u>1. Anticipated Bypass</u> subsection of this section.

The department may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse effects, if the department determines that it will meet the three (3) conditions listed above.

## H. Upset Conditions

An upset constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with technology-based permit effluent limitations if the requirements of the following paragraph are met. No determination made during administrative review of claims that noncompliance was caused by upset, and before an action for noncompliance, is final administrative action subject to judicial review.

A permittee who wishes to establish the affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence that:

- 1. An upset occurred and the permittee can identify its cause(s);
- 2. The permitted facility was, at the time being, properly operated;
- 3. The permittee submitted notice of the upset as required under <u>F. Twenty-four Hour</u> <u>Notice of Noncompliance Reporting</u> and
- 4. The permittee complied with any remedial measures required under I. Duty to Mitigate.

In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset has the burden of proof.

## I. Duty to Mitigate

The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge or sludge use or disposal in violation of this permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the environment. The permittee, at the department's request, shall provide accelerated or additional monitoring as necessary to determine the nature and impact of any discharge.

## J. Removed Materials

Collected screenings, grit, solids, sludges, or other pollutants removed in the course of treatment shall be buried or disposed of in such a manner to prevent any pollutant from entering any waters of the state or creating a health hazard. Sludge/digester supernatant and filter backwash shall not be directly blended with or enter either the final plant discharge and/or waters of the state. The permit issuing authority shall be contacted prior to the disposal of any sewage sludges. At that time, concentration limitations and/or self-monitoring requirements may be established.

#### K. Duty to Reapply

Any request to have this permit renewed should be made six months prior to its expiration date.

## **IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### A. Inspection and Entry

The permittee shall allow department and EPA representatives, at reasonable times and upon the presentation of credentials if requested, to enter the permittee's premises to inspect the wastewater treatment facilities and monitoring equipment, to sample any discharges, and to have access to and copy any records required to be kept by this permit.

#### B. Availability of Reports

Except for data determined to be confidential under 40 CFR Part 2, all reports prepared in accordance with the terms of this permit shall be available for public inspection at the offices of the department and EPA. As required by the Act, permit applications, permits, and effluent data shall not be considered confidential.

#### C. Transfers

This permit is not transferable except upon the filing of a Statement of Acceptance by the new party and subsequent department approval. The current permit holder should inform the new controller, operator, or owner of the existence of this permit and also notify the department of the possible change.

#### D. New Limitations or Prohibitions

The permittee shall comply with any effluent standards or prohibitions established under Section 306(a), Section 307(a), or Section 405 of the Act for any pollutant (toxic or conventional) present in the discharge or removed substances within the time identified in the regulations even if the permit has not yet been modified to incorporate the requirements.

## E. Permit Actions

This permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. This includes the establishment of limitations or prohibitions based on changes to Water Quality Standards, the development and approval of waste load allocation plans, the development or revision to water quality management plans, changes in sewage sludge practices, or the establishment of prohibitions or more stringent limitations for toxic or conventional pollutants and/or sewage sludges. The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition.

#### F. Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense

It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit.

#### G. State Laws

Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of legal action or relieve the permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties established pursuant to any applicable state law or regulation preserved under Section 510 of the Act.

#### H. Oil and Hazardous Substance Liability

Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action or relieve the permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties to which the permittee is or may be subject under Section 311 of the Act.

#### I. Property Rights

The issuance of this permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, nor any exclusive privileges, nor does it authorize any injury to private property or any invasion of personal rights, nor any infringement of federal, state or local laws or regulations.

## J. Severability

The provisions of this permit are severable, and if any provision of this permit or the application of any provision of this permit to any circumstance is held invalid, the application of such provision to other circumstances and the remainder of this permit shall not be affected thereby.

## V. INDUSTRIAL WASTE MANAGEMENT BP 2009.09.10 Minor POTWs Non-Approved Pretreatment Program Requirements

## A. General Responsibilities

The permittee has the responsibility to protect the Publicly-Owned Treatment Works (POTW) from pollutants which would inhibit, interfere, or otherwise be incompatible with operation of the treatment works including interference with the use or disposal of municipal sludge.

## **B.** Pollutant Restrictions

Pretreatment Standards (40 CFR Section 403.5) developed pursuant to Section 307 of the Federal Clean Water Act (the Act) require that the permittee shall not allow, under any circumstances, the introduction of the following pollutants to the POTW from any source of nondomestic discharge:

- 1. Any other pollutant which may cause Pass Through or Interference;
- Pollutants which create a fire or explosion hazard in the POTW, including, but not limited to, waste streams with a closed cup flashpoint of less than sixty (60) degrees Centigrade (140 degrees Fahrenheit) using the test methods specified in 40 CFR Section 261.21;
- 3. Pollutants which will cause corrosive structural damage to the POTW, but in no case discharges with a pH of lower than 5.0 s.u., unless the treatment facilities are specifically designed to accommodate such discharges;
- 4. Solid or viscous pollutants in amounts which will cause obstruction to the flow in the POTW, or other interference with the operation of the POTW;
- 5. Any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants (e.g., BOD), released in a discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which will cause Interference with any treatment process at the POTW;
- Heat in amounts which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW resulting in Interference, but in no case heat in such quantities that the temperature at the POTW treatment plant exceeds forty (40) degrees Centigrade (104 degrees Fahrenheit) unless the Approval Authority, upon request of the POTW, approves alternate temperature limits;

- 7. Petroleum oil, non-biodegradable cutting oil, or products of mineral oil origin in amounts that will cause Interference or Pass Through at the POTW;
- 8. Pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems;
- 9. Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points designated by the POTW; and
- 10. Any specific pollutant which exceeds a local limitation established by the permittee in accordance with the requirements of 40 CFR Section 403.5 (c) and (d).

## C. Approval Authority

North Dakota was delegated the Industrial Pretreatment Program in September of 2005. The North Dakota Department of Health, Division of Water Quality shall be the Approval Authority and the mailing address for all reporting and notifications to the Approval Authority shall be:

ND Department of Health Division of Water Quality 918 East Divide Ave Bismarck ND 58501-1947

#### **D.** Industrial Categories

In addition to the general limitations expressed above, more specific Pretreatment Standards have been and will be promulgated for specific industrial categories under Section 307 of the Act (40 CFR Part 405 et. Seq.).

## E. Notification Requirements

The permittee must notify the Approval Authority, of any new introductions by new or existing industrial users or any substantial change in pollutants from any industrial user within sixty (60) days following the introduction or change. Such notice must identify:

- 1. Any new introduction of pollutants into the POTW from an industrial user which would be subject to Sections, 301, 306, and 307 of the Act if it were directly discharging those pollutants; or
- 2. Any substantial change in the volume or character of pollutants being introduced into the POTW by any industrial user;
- 3. For the purposes of this section, adequate notice shall include information on:
  - a. The identity of the industrial user;
  - b. The nature and concentration of pollutants in the discharge and the average and maximum flow of the discharge to be introduced into the POTW; and
  - c. Any anticipated impact of the change on the quantity or quality of effluent to be discharged from or biosolids produced at such POTW,

- 4. For the purposes of this section, a significant industrial user shall include:
  - a. Any discharger subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards under Section 307 of the Act and 40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N;
  - b. Any discharger which has a process wastewater flow of 25,000 gallons or more per day;
  - c. Any discharger contributing five percent or more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the POTW treatment plant;
  - d. Any discharger who is designated by the Approval Authority as having a reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for violating any Pretreatment Standards or requirements.

## F. Approval Authority Options

6. 1

At such time as a specific Pretreatment Standard or requirement becomes applicable to an industrial user of the permittee, the Approval Authority may, as appropriate:

- Amend the permittee's North Dakota Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NDPDES) discharge permit to specify the additional pollutant(s) and corresponding effluent limitation(s) consistent with the applicable national Pretreatment Standards;
- 2. Require the permittee to specify, by ordinance, order, or other enforceable means, the type of pollutant(s) and the maximum amount which may be discharged to the permittee's POTW for treatment. Such requirement shall be imposed in a manner consistent with the POTW program development requirements of the General Pretreatment Regulations at 40 CFR Part 403; and/or,
- 3. Require the permittee to monitor its discharge for any pollutant which may likely be discharged from the permittee's POTW, should the industrial user fail to properly pre-treat its waste.

#### G. Enforcement Authority

The Approval Authority retains, at all times, the right to take legal action against any source of nondomestic discharge, whether directly or indirectly controlled by the permittee, for violations of a permit, order or similar enforceable mechanism issued by the permittee, violations of any Pretreatment Standard or requirement, or for failure to discharge at an acceptable level under national standards issued by EPA under 40 CFR, chapter I, subchapter N. In those cases where a North Dakota Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NDPDES) permit violation has occurred because of requirements as necessary to protect the POTW, the North Dakota Department of Health and/or Approval Authority shall hold the permittee and/or industrial user responsible and may take legal action against the permittee as well as the industrial user(s) contributing to the permit violation.

## VI. ACCEPTING HAULED WASTE

- **A.** The permittee may only accept waste from licensed septic haulers unless the permittee has written approval from the department.
- **B.** The permittee may not accept production wastewater from oil and gas operations (i.e., produced water).
- C. A monitoring plan shall be developed to ensure accepted hauled waste meets the requirements of part VI. Industrial Waste Management.
- **D.** The permittee shall maintain records indicating the hauler transporting the load, the source of the wastewater, the date and time the waste was accepted, the volume of waste accepted and any sample results from these loads.

## VII. BENEFICIAL REUSES BP 2015.09.03

## A. Irrigation

Only wastewater that has received secondary or tertiary treatment may be used for irrigation provided soil and water compatibility testing confirms the water is suitable for irrigation. Wastewater used for irrigation shall be applied at a rate which would allow complete infiltration and not result in ponding or runoff from the irrigated area.

Agricultural land may be irrigated provided the crop is not used for human consumption. Forage crops used for livestock consumption or pastures irrigated with wastewater shall not be harvested or grazed within 30 days of a wastewater application.

Public properties such as golf courses or parks may be irrigated provided the treated wastewater meets the following quality criteria.

Parameter	Discharge Limitations	Monitoring Frequency	
	Daily Max	Measurement Frequency	Sample Type
BOD₅ (mg/l)	30.0	1 per 14 days	Grab
TSS (mg/l)	45.0	1 per 14 days	Grab
<i>E. Coli</i> (number/100 ml)	126	Weekly	Grab

Whenever possible, irrigation shall take place during hours when the public does not have access to the area being irrigated. If the public has constant access to an area, signs must be posted in visible areas during irrigation and for two hours after irrigation is completed. The signs must advise people that the water could pose a health concern and to avoid the irrigated area.

Worker and public contact with treated wastewater should be minimized. Where frequent contact is likely, a higher level of disinfection should be provided such as achieving *E. coli* counts less than 14 colonies per 100 ml.

Avoid application within 100 feet of areas which have unlimited access (i.e., yards) or within 300 feet of potable water supply wells.

Runoff that occurs from irrigated areas shall be monitored at the frequencies and with the types of measurements described in Part I(B).

The permittee shall maintain monitoring records indicating the location and usage (e.g., park or agricultural) of the land being irrigated, the dates irrigation occurred, the amount of wastewater used, and the total flow. In addition, monitoring records must include results from collected samples.

## **B.** Construction

Treated domestic wastewater may be used for construction purposes such as soil compaction, dust suppression and washing aggregate, provided the following conditions are met.

The wastewater intended for use in construction, must at a minimum, receive secondary treatment.

Prior to using treated wastewater, a sample from the prospective source must be tested and meet the criteria set below. In addition, the test results for *E. coli* must be provided to the department prior to use. Results from samples up to two (2) weeks old will be considered valid. The water quality limitations and minimum sampling frequencies recommended for wastewater used in construction are provided in the following table.

Parameter	Limitations (Maximum)	Measurement Frequency	Sample Type
BOD₅ (mg/l)	30	Monthly	Grab
TSS (mg/l)	100	Monthly	Grab
<i>E. Coli</i> (number/100 ml)	126	Weekly	Grab

In some systems chlorination is available. Chlorination is particularly desirable when frequent worker contact with the treated wastewater is likely or when the public may have constant access to areas where the wastewater is being used. Maintaining a chlorine residual of at least 0.1 mg/l is recommended.

While the conventional methods for treating domestic wastewater are generally effective in reducing infectious agents (bacteria, viruses, parasites) to acceptable levels, direct reuse of treated wastewater can pose a health concern. Additional precautions to consider are:

- 1. Worker and public contact with treated wastewater should be minimized.
- 2. Where frequent worker contact is likely a higher level of disinfection should be provided, such as achieving *E. coli* counts less than 14/100 ml.

- 3. Work closely with the treatment system operator to ensure treated wastewater quality is suitable when it is drawn for construction purposes.
- 4. Apply the treated wastewater in a manner that does not result in runoff or ponding.

Runoff that occurs from application areas shall be monitored at the frequencies and with the types of measurements described in Part I(B).

The permittee shall maintain monitoring records indicating the location and usage of the land where application occurs, the dates application occurred, the amount of wastewater used, and the total flow. In addition, monitoring records must include results from collected samples.

#### C. Oil and Gas Production (including Hydraulic Fracturing)

The specific user of the wastewater may determine the specific treatment requirements for receiving wastewater.

The permittee shall maintain monitoring records indicating the specific user, the amount of wastewater used, and the total flow. In addition, monitoring records must include results from collected samples.

#### D. Other Uses as Approved

The permittee must consult with the department before beneficially reusing wastewater for purposes not identified in this permit.

# Appendix C

Flow Monitoring and Sampling

	Corresponding						
Parameter	Concentration,	Flow,	Load,				
	mg/L	gpd	ppd				
рН	7.5	209,601	*				
5-day Biochemical Oxygen Demand, cBOD <sub>5</sub>	209	209,601	365				
Total Suspended Solids, TSS	70	209,601	122				
Ammonia-Nitrogen as N, NH <sub>3</sub>	44.2	209,601	77.3				
Total Phosphorus as P, TP	5.46	209,601	9.5				
Notes:							
Sample values based on 24-hour composite taken November 15, 2018							
Sample values based on 24-hour composite taken November 15, 2018							



MINNESOTA VALLEY TESTING LABORATORIES, INC. 1126 North Front St. ~ New Ulm, MN 56073 ~ 800-782-3557 ~ Fax 507-359-2890 2 North German St. ~ New Ulm, MN 56073 ~ 800-782-3557 ~ Fax 507-359-2890 2616 East Broadway Ave. ~ Bismarck, ND 58501 ~ 800-279-6885 ~ Fax 701-258-9724 1201 Lincoln Hwy. ~ Nevada, IA 50201 ~ 800-362-0855 ~ Fax 515-382-3885 www.mvtl.com



November 16, 2018

RECEIVED NOV 2 6 2018

SEH Matt Schaible 4719 Shelburne St, Suite 6 Bismarck, ND 58503

RE: City of Lincoln, ND inflow 24hr composite

Dear Mr. Schaible:

From November 14-15, 2018, MVTL Laboratories Inc., Field Services division, conducted a wastewater survey of the influent for the City of Lincoln lagoon System.

Sampling was performed using automatic wastewater sampler. The samplers collected a composite of the influent over a 24-hour period. Grab samples were collected for pH and temperature.

Samples collected were stored on ice and transported back to MVTL in Bismarck, ND for analysis.

Thank you for your trust and support of our services. If you have any questions, please call me at (800) 279-6885.

Sincerely,

Jeremy Meyer MVTL Field Services



MINNESOTA VALLEY TESTING LABORATORIES, INC. 1126 North Front St. ~ New Ulm, MN 56073 ~ 800-782-3557 ~ Fax 507-359-2890 2 North German St. ~ New Ulm, MN 56073 ~ 800-782-3557 ~ Fax 507-359-2890 2616 East Broadway Ave. ~ Bismarck, ND 58501 ~ 800-279-6885 ~ Fax 701-258-9724 1201 Lincoln Hwy. ~ Nevada, IA 50201 ~ 800-362-0855 ~ Fax 515-382-3885 www.mvtl.com



## RECEIVED NOV 2 5 2018

Page: 1 of 1

Report Date: 21 Nov 18 Lab Number: 18-D4107 Work Order #:82-3061 Account #: 038644 Date Sampled: 15 Nov 18 9:00 Date Received: 15 Nov 18 9:14 Sampled By: MVTL Field Services

Project Name: SEH Sample Description: Lincoln

Bismarck ND 58503

Matt Schaible

4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6

SEH, Inc.

Temp at Receipt: 10.9C ROI

	As Rece: Result	ived	Method RL	Method Reference	Date Analyzed	Analyst
pH	* 7.5	units	N/A	SM4500 H+ B	15 Nov 18 17:00	SVS
Biochemical Oxygen Demand	209	mg/l	2	SM 5210-B	15 Nov 18 12:30	BJ
Total Suspended Solids	70	mg/l	2	I3765-85	15 Nov 18 15:45	SVS
Ammonia-Nitrogen as N	44.2	mg/l	0.20	EPA 350.1	20 Nov 18 13:10	EMS
Phosphorus as P - Total	5.46	mg/l	0.10	EPA 365.1	19 Nov 18 10:59	EV

\* Holding time exceeded

All methods used for these analyses are compliant with 40CFR Part 136 or Region 8 EPA approved guidance.

Approved by:

57 Claudite K. Canto 21 Nov 18

Claudette K. Carroll, Laboratory Manager, Bismarck, ND

RL = Method Reporting Limit

CERTIFICATION: ND # ND-00016

MVTL guarantees the accuracy of the analysis done on the sample submitted for testing. It is not possible for MVTL to guarantee that a test result obtained on a particular sample will be the same on any other sample unless all conditions affecting the sample are the same, including sampling by MVTL. As a mutual protection to clients, the public and ourselves, all reports are submitted as the confidential property of clients, and authorization for publication of s<sub>1</sub> tements, conclusions or extracts from or regarding our reports is reserved pending our written approval.

Relinquished By	Comments: 24 h. composit	Dyro7 Lincoln	Lab Number Sample ID	8	Report To: SEH Attn: 424 Scheible Address: 4219 Shelburn St. 13:5mark ND 5050 phone: email: mschaibly @ Schinc.cc	Project Name: $SEH$	<b>Laboratorie</b> 2616 E. Broadway Bismarck, ND 5850 Phone (701) 258-9
1: Date/Time パインシー・ビ ビディノイ	e sayle from	ISNOVIA (	Date	ample Information	Suite 6 At	<u> </u>	<b>95, Inc.</b> 11 720
Samp Location: Location: Walk In #2		WW Dol?	Time Sample Type		arbon Copy: fn:	vent:	
<u>ole Condition:</u> Temp (°C) <i>Col /0.9</i> <u><tm562< u="">/ TM805</tm562<></u>	Start Field Gra		Sample Location	Bot			
THU Ana	bs Date Time 14Nov18 085 14 Nov18 1445 15 Nov18 1445		2 VOA HCI 1L Amber New 1L Amber HCI 1L NaOH	tle Type F	Name of Sampler(s):	Work Order Number:	Shain of C
me: Received by:	Temp (°C) pH (°C) pH 13,52 &,30 15,33 2,71 11,97 7,96			ield Parameters		1205-28	Sustody I
Date/Time 15/\.07.2018 0914	Flow Meter	boD, 755, pH hosphorus, Ammonis-Nth	Analysis Required	Analysis			Record

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring				
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day	
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow	
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	
Minimum	115	0	201	80,768	
Average	143	54	272	204,906	
Maximum	183	107	360	263,552	
St. Dev.	12.55	13.90	28.88	19,168.76	
Count	350	350	350	350	
11/21/2017	143	45	294	206,617	
11/22/2017	140	38	257	201,419	
11/23/2017	153	64	343	219,960	
11/24/2017	141	64	226	203,062	
11/25/2017	141	56	264	203,652	
11/26/2017	167	56	285	240,530	
11/27/2017	139	53	258	199,441	
11/28/2017	136	55	254	195,755	
11/29/2017	134	46	284	193,531	
11/30/2017	139	67	302	199,465	
12/1/2017	128	62	270	184,425	
12/2/2017	146	43	255	210,909	
12/3/2017	164	41	315	235,801	
12/4/2017	138	50	292	198,611	
12/5/2017	135	50	278	194,460	
12/6/2017	133	52	264	190,842	
12/7/2017	144	74	267	207,890	
12/8/2017	134	58	278	193,283	
12/9/2017	147	56	273	211,582	
12/10/2017	169	62	322	243,415	
12/11/2017	134	58	269	192,713	
12/12/2017	134	37	291	192,437	
12/13/2017	140	62	292	200,903	
12/14/2017	136	63	288	195,760	
12/15/2017	135	70	282	192,556	
12/16/2017	152	60	262	219,366	
12/17/2017	169	46	289	243,683	
12/18/2017	137	64	247	197,098	
12/19/2017	129	33	280	185,301	
12/20/2017	138	47	277	198,760	
12/21/2017	135	58	278	194,492	
12/22/2017	134	0	219	192,638	
12/23/2017	144	45	308	207,668	
12/24/2017	140	58	273	201,482	
12/25/2017	144	50	255	206,642	
12/26/2017	155	42	259	221,050	

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring					
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day		
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow		
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)		
12/27/2017	152	74	293	219,525		
12/28/2017	154	77	243	221,299		
12/29/2017	144	69	214	206,691		
12/30/2017	155	53	308	223,640		
12/31/2017	161	68	328	231,466		
1/1/2018	168	52	282	242,042		
1/2/2018	144	64	266	207,949		
1/3/2018	145	66	319	208,682		
1/4/2018	145	60	300	208,528		
1/5/2018	134	54	271	193,416		
1/6/2018	156	75	260	225,237		
1/7/2018	172	50	309	247,985		
1/8/2018	137	59	272	197,430		
1/9/2018	145	51	319	208,792		
1/10/2018	145	74	285	209,492		
1/11/2018	144	61	275	206,959		
1/12/2018	138	56	267	198,403		
1/13/2018	161	63	314	232,246		
1/14/2018	172	73	308	248,047		
1/15/2018	164	76	289	235,555		
1/16/2018	151	87	281	216,837		
1/17/2018	145	62	314	208,321		
1/18/2018	142	62	333	205,034		
1/19/2018	133	61	272	191,696		
1/20/2018	156	69	282	224,227		
1/21/2018	167	51	313	240,176		
1/22/2018	139	62	275	200,724		
1/23/2018	136	57	304	196,155		
1/24/2018	142	63	304	204,725		
1/25/2018	142	69	267	204,463		
1/26/2018	135	63	246	194,583		
1/27/2018	142	44	278	204,623		
1/28/2018	166	52	305	238,612		
1/29/2018	141	72	251	202,885		
1/30/2018	137	56	327	197,547		
1/31/2018	144	59	288	206,892		
2/1/2018	141	62	263	202,608		
2/2/2018	135	66	276	194,496		
2/3/2018	157	51	278	225,489		
2/4/2018	179	87	279	257,801		
2/15/2018	134	49	284	193,445		
2/16/2018	130	53	259	187,621		
2/17/2018	141	50	275	202,414		

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring				
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day	
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow	
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	
2/18/2018	157	47	266	225,796	
2/19/2018	146	55	306	210,198	
2/20/2018	141	50	256	202,543	
2/21/2018	135	0	279	194,592	
2/22/2018	130	47	244	187,572	
2/23/2018	134	58	250	193,101	
2/24/2018	147	58	264	211,788	
2/25/2018	163	45	360	234,641	
2/26/2018	131	51	267	188,853	
2/27/2018	128	59	256	184,103	
2/28/2018	131	43	267	188,044	
3/1/2018	132	45	278	189,414	
3/2/2018	132	48	313	190,004	
3/3/2018	145	46	256	208,745	
3/4/2018	166	61	289	238,963	
3/5/2018	141	57	242	203,295	
3/6/2018	130	51	256	187,630	
3/7/2018	126	44	275	181,220	
3/8/2018	133	61	273	190,910	
3/9/2018	125	58	269	180,130	
3/10/2018	146	59	247	209,738	
3/11/2018	162	46	326	233,676	
3/12/2018	135	74	250	194,430	
3/13/2018	134	50	321	193,167	
3/14/2018	132	42	264	190,560	
3/15/2018	135	52	250	194,358	
3/16/2018	130	42	260	186,840	
3/17/2018	147	60	320	211,209	
3/18/2018	171	64	304	246,327	
3/19/2018	140	46	311	201,787	
3/20/2018	131	50	279	189,076	
3/21/2018	125	45	238	179,359	
3/22/2018	138	47	290	198,096	
3/23/2018	147	81	310	211,302	
3/24/2018	155	56	271	223,605	
3/25/2018	167	53	300	240,716	
3/26/2018	132	50	257	189,757	
3/27/2018	135	55	274	194,671	
3/28/2018	137	57	264	188,226	
3/29/2018	130	45	262	187,618	
3/30/2018	142	64	266	204,663	
3/31/2018	149	60	252	214,561	
4/1/2018	150	50	274	216,491	

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring			
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)
4/2/2018	143	51	274	205,192
4/3/2018	140	52	313	201,187
4/4/2018	143	53	288	206,042
4/5/2018	139	57	272	200,142
4/6/2018	135	56	240	194,976
4/7/2018	152	54	294	218,846
4/8/2018	175	61	292	252,644
4/9/2018	137	59	267	197,113
4/10/2018	138	58	321	199,266
4/11/2018	142	72	277	204,260
4/12/2018	138	59	277	199,057
4/13/2018	135	43	342	193,976
4/14/2018	149	55	251	214,838
4/15/2018	168	49	315	242,451
4/16/2018	137	47	297	197,839
4/17/2018	137	55	267	197,783
4/18/2018	145	0	286	208,761
4/19/2018	137	52	272	197,248
4/20/2018	139	69	253	200,174
4/21/2018	147	54	259	212,360
4/22/2018	164	54	298	236,260
4/23/2018	134	37	269	192,747
4/24/2018	133	50	287	192,086
4/25/2018	135	48	274	194,452
4/26/2018	124	58	248	178,647
4/27/2018	138	68	270	198,532
4/28/2018	148	68	252	212,493
4/29/2018	166	57	296	239,729
4/30/2018	137	55	303	197,429
5/1/2018	135	56	258	194,543
5/2/2018	138	58	293	198,606
5/3/2018	136	72	261	196,263
5/4/2018	131	0	241	188,292
5/5/2018	142	54	248	204,195
5/6/2018	157	44	281	226,750
5/7/2018	134	38	263	193,060
5/8/2018	130	53	295	186,625
5/9/2018	133	47	308	191,877
5/10/2018	131	55	256	188,360
5/11/2018	122	38	271	176,180
5/12/2018	139	61	244	200,053
5/13/2018	147	49	249	211,117
5/14/2018	133	44	284	191,946

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring			
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)
5/15/2018	132	57	253	190,368
5/16/2018	133	60	256	191,371
5/17/2018	130	38	258	187,890
5/18/2018	125	36	272	178,955
5/19/2018	137	49	229	197,128
5/20/2018	158	53	292	227,650
5/21/2018	133	48	276	191,923
5/22/2018	132	41	263	189,871
5/23/2018	134	53	260	192,461
5/24/2018	135	47	246	194,394
5/25/2018	132	53	225	189,816
5/26/2018	128	49	216	184,188
5/27/2018	132	51	224	190,114
5/28/2018	155	56	273	223,207
5/29/2018	132	55	251	190,124
5/30/2018	136	57	255	196,230
5/31/2018	130	66	220	187,549
6/1/2018	133	67	205	191,902
6/2/2018	140	60	230	202,007
6/3/2018	160	44	290	230,962
6/4/2018	133	44	267	191,950
6/5/2018	138	61	278	199,158
6/6/2018	137	61	258	197,291
6/7/2018	137	44	240	196,581
6/8/2018	128	54	215	184,049
6/9/2018	133	50	219	191,955
6/10/2018	161	48	307	232,115
6/11/2018	140	46	272	202,276
6/12/2018	135	50	257	193,971
6/13/2018	141	64	271	203,102
6/14/2018	146	61	276	210,342
6/15/2018	142	89	212	204,685
6/16/2018	135	0	219	194,072
6/17/2018	155	62	260	223,426
6/18/2018	136	58	254	195,358
6/19/2018	130	53	242	187,172
6/20/2018	127	36	227	182,471
6/21/2018	127	52	228	182,341
6/22/2018	128	46	201	184,943
6/23/2018	137	63	219	196,915
6/24/2018	154	41	263	221,683
6/25/2018	136	62	228	196,395
6/26/2018	132	52	237	189,731

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring			
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)
6/27/2018	127	44	234	183,334
6/28/2018	139	57	289	200,709
6/29/2018	165	80	241	238,146
6/30/2018	145	66	238	208,295
7/1/2018	157	50	286	226,038
7/2/2018	131	56	229	189,123
7/3/2018	145	46	294	208,855
7/4/2018	153	67	241	220,221
7/5/2018	153	73	280	220,367
7/6/2018	147	76	211	211,149
7/7/2018	148	69	244	212,910
7/8/2018	167	47	284	239,844
7/9/2018	146	57	262	210,213
7/10/2018	165	78	291	237,960
7/11/2018	181	107	293	260,488
7/12/2018	159	76	287	228,401
7/13/2018	141	69	224	203,204
7/14/2018	138	47	274	198,646
7/15/2018	154	44	269	221,661
7/16/2018	133	69	228	191,821
7/17/2018	135	46	252	194,979
7/18/2018	136	65	263	195,152
7/19/2018	141	43	268	201,594
7/20/2018	142	75	219	205,007
7/21/2018	135	56	221	194,024
7/22/2018	161	64	303	231,150
7/23/2018	133	44	239	191,054
7/24/2018	131	57	239	188,933
7/25/2018	135	56	267	194,362
7/26/2018	129	54	260	185,339
7/27/2018	130	53	217	186,961
7/28/2018	153	56	278	220,621
7/29/2018	172	46	324	247,477
7/30/2018	146	61	258	210,048
7/31/2018	141	74	233	202,386
8/1/2018	138	60	247	198,111
8/2/2018	130	48	228	187,841
8/3/2018	133	45	224	191,995
8/4/2018	137	52	222	197,425
8/5/2018	156	57	282	223,951
8/6/2018	137	47	242	197,185
8/7/2018	136	54	240	195,182
8/8/2018	135	38	290	194,946

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring			
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)
8/9/2018	133	48	259	191,956
8/10/2018	130	53	212	187,478
8/11/2018	132	0	218	190,058
8/12/2018	162	64	292	233,035
8/13/2018	132	48	253	190,156
8/14/2018	130	41	267	187,170
8/15/2018	138	58	258	198,347
8/16/2018	140	60	284	201,090
8/17/2018	142	0	255	204,342
8/18/2018	157	43	270	225,625
8/19/2018	168	58	270	241,913
8/20/2018	135	47	273	194,349
8/21/2018	137	42	267	196,689
8/22/2018	142	41	339	204,890
8/23/2018	142	64	303	204,876
8/24/2018	130	44	248	187,253
8/25/2018	141	63	232	202,926
8/26/2018	166	58	297	239,144
8/27/2018	135	62	292	194,869
8/28/2018	135	38	287	193,886
8/29/2018	134	51	302	193,216
8/30/2018	153	59	338	220,476
8/31/2018	163	84	316	234,323
9/17/2018	126	44	272	181,893
9/18/2018	127	36	324	182,905
9/19/2018	128	49	343	184,294
9/20/2018	131	0	258	188,964
9/21/2018	119	51	241	171,583
9/22/2018	131	45	237	188,880
9/23/2018	153	45	304	219,896
9/24/2018	130	39	274	187,227
9/25/2018	130	57	265	186,680
9/26/2018	123	41	308	176,649
9/27/2018	124	35	275	178,695
9/28/2018	123	48	287	177,465
9/29/2018	134	48	260	193,523
9/30/2018	158	34	283	227,305
10/1/2018	130	53	286	187,393
10/2/2018	125	53	301	180,631
10/3/2018	134	56	269	192,962
10/4/2018	134	58	263	192,610
10/5/2018	133	64	258	191,998
10/6/2018	152	52	283	218,184

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring			
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)
10/7/2018	180	55	344	259,447
10/8/2018	146	65	312	209,885
10/9/2018	144	54	314	206,947
10/10/2018	144	58	323	206,831
10/11/2018	138	0	294	197,037
10/12/2018	142	50	264	204,219
10/13/2018	151	66	263	217,512
10/14/2018	161	48	294	231,661
10/15/2018	132	61	288	190,477
10/16/2018	131	61	276	187,989
10/17/2018	129	47	260	185,655
10/18/2018	143	73	263	206,303
10/19/2018	141	67	280	202,334
10/20/2018	152	70	296	218,932
10/21/2018	167	53	308	239,892
10/22/2018	150	66	309	216,217
10/23/2018	141	46	301	202,711
10/24/2018	146	56	277	210,440
10/25/2018	139	52	267	200,598
10/26/2018	132	71	271	189,679
10/27/2018	161	68	248	232,011
10/28/2018	173	71	324	249,776
10/29/2018	133	50	283	191,782
10/30/2018	132	0	274	189,704
10/31/2018	131	58	258	187,235
11/1/2018	141	55	297	203,258
11/2/2018	140	73	264	201,657
11/3/2018	162	70	299	233,766
11/4/2018	183	66	309	263,552
11/5/2018	141	60	296	202,844
11/6/2018	142	72	286	204,496
11/7/2018	139	52	299	200,275
11/8/2018	135	52	261	194,195
11/9/2018	134	52	294	192,913
11/11/2018	160	57	272	229,734
11/12/2018	156	60	270	225,200
11/13/2018	150	48	268	216,258
11/14/2018	144	55	300	208,049
11/15/2018	146	68	272	209,601
11/16/2018	142	53	261	204,732
11/17/2018	155	49	267	223,097
11/18/2018	182	66	295	261,816
11/19/2018	155	50	312	223,677

Site Name	Lincoln Lagoon Flow Monitoring			
	Day Average	Day Minimum	Day Maximum	Day
Label	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Flow Rate	Total Flow
(Units)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)	(gpm)
11/20/2018	149	63	294	215,279
11/21/2018	155	56	301	223,542
11/22/2018	167	58	323	241,092
11/23/2018	137	62	204	197,719
11/24/2018	142	58	245	204,388
11/25/2018	163	61	283	234,525
11/26/2018	137	50	279	196,826
11/27/2018	115	58	297	80,768

# Appendix D

Forcemain Proposed Routes


# Appendix E

Public Meeting Advertisement

City	of
Lun	North Dakota
City of	Lincoln
North E	Dakota
@CityOfL	.incolnND
Home	
About	
Posts	
Photos	
Videos	
Events	

			5
City of Lincoln North Dakota ····	🛟 Paç	e Transparency	See Mor
April 2 · O	Facebook i	s showing information to help you	better
LINCOLN CITY COUNCIL	understand the people	the purpose of a Page. See actio who manage and post content.	ns taken by
Regular Meeting	0		
Thursday, April 4, 2019	ĭ⊠ Page	created - October 17, 2010	
at 7:00pm			
City of Lincoln	Related P	ages	
74 Santee Road			
Lincoln, ND 58504		Tumbleweed Bar & Grill	
1. Call to order by the mayor	0	Jon Odell likes this	🖌 Like
2. Attendance – Roll Call	- Martine	Bar & Grill	
3. Agenda Approval			
4. Approval of Minutes	AL	Lincoln Police Depart	
Regular Meeting – March 28, 2019	LINCOLN	Pauly Schumacher likes this	🖌 Like
5. Old Business		Law Enforcement Agency	
NEW BUSINESS			
6. Burleigh County Tax Equalization		Lincoln Fitness	
7. Drainage at McDougall & 28th Avenue	LINCOLN	Steve Mariner likes this	👍 Like
8. Rusch Addition		Gym/Physical Fitness Center	
Reconsider the Revised Rusch Addition			
o Motion for Possible Approval of Final Plat, Zoning Change, Storm Water			
Management Plan and Annexation	Pages Lik	ed by This Page	
9. S.E.H. Report			
Public Works Building	AL		
o In Contracting Phase with Contractors	LINCOL N	Lincoln Police Depart	🖌 Like
Waste Water PER			
o Possibility of Public Meeting			
o Meeting Date			
water transmission Line 19-01 – (12 Water Main Project)	Lincoln	City of Lincoln North	🖌 Like
o Project is Publicly Advertised as of April 1st			

See More

🖌 Like

🖌 Like

Like

>

### **PUBLIC NOTICE**

### TAX EQUALIZATION MEETING

Driscoll Township will be holding their Tax Equalization Meeting on Thursday, April 25, 2019 at 5:30 PM at the old Driscoll Cafe. Carol Gear - Township Clerk

4/15 - 20968136

#### NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING FOR IMPROVEMENT

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Notice is hereby given that the City of Lincoln will hold a Public Information & Input Meeting on May 14, 2019 at the Lincoln City Hall at 7:00 PM, to consider wastewater facility improvements.

This will be an informational meeting to discuss the City wastewater treatment facility improvement. alternatives, including the economic and environmental impacts, service areas, and potential funding sources. Selection of alternative will not take place at meeting, rather public information and input will be facilitated. At this time, all residents and property owners within the City of Lincoln are encouraged to attend.

4/15, 22 & 29 - 20967999

### **Public Notice**

The City of Lincoln will hold a public meeting to address the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Program annual report that is filed with the North Dakota Department of Health (NDDOH) on May 9, 2019 at 6:30 to 7:00 PM at Lincoln City Hall. The public will have the opportunity to review the annual report for Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) and discuss - upcoming storm water management in 2019. This public meeting will include an overview and the impacts of the recently adopted Ordinance 217, which covers penalties for noncompliance to Chapter 10 Storm Water Management of the City of Lincoln's Code of Ordinances.

#### 4/8 & 15 - 20965705

PUBLIC NOTICE OF ZONING CHANGE Notice is hereby given that the Bismarck City Commission, on Tuesday, September 26, 2017, approved an ordinance rezoning from the RM15-Residential zoning district to the R10-Residential zoning district on South Meadows Addition Second Replat. This ordinance is available for copying and inspection during normal working hours in the office of the City Administrator. By K.J. Hunke, City Administrator Dated this 10th day of April, 2019. 4/15 - 20968321

#### **OIL & GAS LEASE ONLINE AUCTION**

The Board of University and School Lands will conduct an online oil and gas lease auction for two-hundred-fifty-nine (259) tracts in Billings, Burke, Divide, Dunn, Golden Valley, McKenzie, McLean, Mountrail, Slope, Stark, Ward, and Williams Counties, ND, Bidding will commence April 30, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. CST and end May 7, 2019. The representative, of the above estate. All persons having claims against the said deceased are required to present their claims within three months after the date of the first publication or mailing of this notice or said claims will be forever barred. Claims must either be presented to Kevin Schmidt, personal representative of the estate at P.O. Mandan, Box 1266, North Dakota 58554-7266 or filed with the Court. Dated this 3rd day of April, 2019. /s/Kevin Schmidt Kevin Schmidt Personal Representative First Publication on the 8th day of April 2019.

4/8, 15 & 22 - 20967583

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA COUNTY OF BURLEIGH IN JUVENILE COURT SOUTH CENTRAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT IN THE INTEREST OF M.S.J., A CHILD State of North Dakota, ) Petitioner, ) vs. )

N.S.J., Child; ) Kiana Starr, Mother; ) Arrow St. John, Father, ) Barb Oliger, Guardian ad Litern; ) and the Executive Director of ) Human Services Department, ) State of North Dakota; ) Respondents. ) File No. 08-2019-JV-00005

THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA TO THE ABOVE-NAMED RESPONDENTS:

You are hereby summoned to appear personally at the Juvenile Couru in the Burleigh County Courthouse, North Dakota, on the **10th day of May. 2019. at 9:00a.m.** for the purpose of hearing the Petition made and filed with this Court. The Petition claims the child is alleged to be a deprived child, as more fully appears from the Petition. A copy of the Petition can be obtained at the Clerk of Court's office.

RIGHT TO HEARING BEFORE JUDGE You are entitled to have the Petition heard by a Judge of the Juvenile Court, instead of by a Referee, by filing a written request for a Judge with the Clerk of this Court within seven (7) days after receiving this Summons.

### **RIGHT TO COUNSEL**

If you desire the assistance of an attorney, and are unable without undue financial hardship to employ one, the Court, upon your request, will appoint an attorney for you. Dated this 10th day of April, 2019

Dated this 10th day of April, 2019

### Judicial Referee

4/15, 22 & 29 - 20968271

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS BISMARCK PUBLIC WORKS CITY/COUNTY BUILDING SANITARY MODIFICATIONS, BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA The City of Bismarck is accepting proposals for the City/County Building Sanitary Modif-

#### **RIGHT T**

If you desire the as and are unable whardship to employ your request, will you. Dated this 10th day

/s/ Judicial Referee

4/15, 22 &

### REQUEST FOR FOR ARCHITEC Library HV

The City of Bismard ment requests writ professional engine for services for the fo Provide consulting contract document and contract admir ans Memorial Publ vation Project. Pro tion includes upg units, space contro humidifiers. This p bidding and comple Submittal requireme tations for the project tal instructions avail the City of Bismarc contacting Kim Bol bismarcknd.gov or 70 Written proposals s experience and abi fined services in a mary items for cons limited to, the firm's:

1. Technical capabil posed project team 2. Experience and p of proposed project te 3. Understanding o work approach

4. Knowledge of reditions

5. Project personnel fications

6. Ability to respond The architect will b Statements of Qual views. A selection mend a single firm Commissioners. A of will be developed a ated with the select an agreement accep marck will result in r ond most qualified f vices agreement will obtine

gle firm. All inquiries shall be kbohrer@bismarcknc Qualifications Stat ants will be accep on Monday, April 22 Submit six (6) copi Bruce Schirado, Fac PO Box 5503 (Mailir Bismarck, ND 58506 601 South 26th Stre 4/1, 8 & 1

### **PUBLIC NOTICE**

Bismarck U-Haul Moving and Storage, 1453 Interstate Loop Bismarck, ND 58503 will be having a silent auction on May 7, 2019 at 9:00AM. Jnits - Tenants: 2223-25 - Marshall, 0073 -

 Forguson, 0081 - Gruver, 0230 - Coleman, 1074 - Baird, 0075 - Lee, 1076 - Baird, 1019 - Baker, 2115 - Spoon, 1152 - Kuntz 4/24 & 29 - 20967505

No. 1 N.S.J., Child; ) Kiana Starr, Mother; ) Arrow St. John, Father, ) Barb Oliger, Guardian ad Litem; ) and the Executive Director of ) Human Services Department, ) State of North Dakota; ) Respondents, )

File No. 08-2019-JV-00005 SUMMONS THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA TO THE ABOVE-NAMED RESPONDENTS: You are hereby summoned to appear per-sonally at the Juvenile Court in the Burdeigh County Courthouse, North Dakota, on the 10th day of May. 2019. at 9:00a.m. for the purpose of hearing the Petition marke and

purpose of hearing the Petition made and filed with this Court. The Petition claims the child of leged to be a deprived child, as or fully appears from the Petition. A copy of the Petition can be obtained at the Clerk of Courte difference.

of Court's office. <u>RIGHT TO HEARING BEFORE JUDGE</u> HIGHT TO HEARING BEFORE JUDGE You are entitled to have the Petition heard by a Judge of the Juvenie Court, instead of by a Referee, by filing a written request for a Judge with the Clerk of this Court within seven (2) days after receiving this Sum-mons.

mons. <u>BIGHT TO COUNSEL</u> If you desire the assistance of an attorney, and are unable without undue financial hardship to employ one, the Court, upon your request, will appoint an attorney for

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA COUNTY OF BURLEIGH IN JUVENILE COURT SOUTH CENTRAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT IN THE INTEREST OF S.A.S.J., A CHILD

Respondents.) File No. 08-2019-JV-00006 SUMMONS THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA TO THE ABOVE-NAMED RESPONDENTS:

THE STATE OF NORTH DAROTA TO THE ABOVE-NAME DESPONDENTS. You are hereby summoned to appear per-sonally at the Jourenile Court in the Bunkigh Courth yourile Court in the Bunkigh Courth yourile Court in the Bunkigh Din day of May Chief additione. Nor the din day of May Chief additione. Nor the field with this Court. The Petition Cairns the child is alleged to be a deprived child, as more fully appears from the Petition. A corpy of the Petition can be obtained at the Clerk of Courts office. BIGHT TO HEANING BEFCORE JUDGE You are entitled to have the Petition heady y a Judge of the Clerk of the Clerk of the Clerk of Judge with the Clerk of the Court yabin savan (2) days after receiving this Sum-mons.

RIGHT TO COUNSEL

If you desire the assistance of an attorney, and are unable without undue financial hardship to employ one, the Court, upon your request, will appoint an attorney for

4/15.228.29 - 20968274
 4/15.228.29 - 20968274
 CHAPTER 13-03 (WEED CONTROL)
 13-03-01 Authority
 1. The City Forester shall have the duties
 and authority as provided by this section.
 2. All weeds, tall grasses exceeding (6)
 eight inches in height, and unheatity wegetation exceeding eight (6) inches in height
 growing within the limits of the city are
 hereby declared to be a public nuisance. It
 shall be the duty of every person owning,
 occupying, or in charge of any premises, toi
 rent of an in the city to description by cutting or destroying
 them at all times during the growing sets
 and the induced in the city duties actions
 shall no the dution by cutting or destroying
 them at all times during the growing sets
 and. Hold match section his catedon city action the included in the requirements of
 alther add the section this charger shall in a.' Weeds! as used in this charger shall in a.' Weeds!

A train greace they are provided in the planted on the public nght-chway without the written permission of the city traffic engineer. C. Tall grasses may not be planted or maintained within a sight triangle, as defined by Section 14-02-05, in excess of thirty-ski (36) inches in height above the adjacent curb level.

Indices in regime accord to separate level. d. Plantings of tall grasses must be main-tained in a weed free condition. 5. "Unhealthy vegetation" shall include, but not be limited to the following: a. Volunteer trees capable of being cut with moutine nationent.

mowing equipment. b. Ornamental plantings overgrown with

you. Dated this 10th day of April, 2019

/s/ Judicial Referee 4/15, 22 & 29 - 20968274

you. Dated this 10th day of April, 2019 Judicial Referee 4/15, 22 & 29 - 20968271

State of North Dakota, ) Petitioner, )

Yellowier, ) S.A.S.J., Child; ) Kiana Starr, Mother; ) Arrow St. John, Father; ) Barb Oliger, Guardian ad Litem; ) and the Executive Director of ) Human Services Department, ) State of North Dakota; )

Respondents. ) File No. 08-2019-JV-00005

PUBLIC NOTICE OF ZONING CHANGE Notice is hereby given that the Bismarck City Commission, on Tuesday, April 23, 2019, approved an ordinance rezoning from the Conditional RT-Residential zoning district on that RT-Residential zoning district on Lot 1, Block 2, Good Shepherd North Addi-

Lot 1, brown 2, occur and the second second

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING FOR

CONCE OF PUBLIC MEETING FOR TRAVOVEMENT TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERNI: Notice is hereby given that the Gity of Lin-coin will hold a Public Information & Ingut Meeting on May 14, 2019 at the Lincoin City Hall at 700 PM, to consider wastewater fai-cility improvement alternatives, including the coronnic and eventormental improvement alternatives, including the coronnic and eventormental improvement alternatives, including the economic and eventormental improvement selection of alternative will not take place at meeting, rather public information and input uil be facilitated At this time, alternative and property owneds within the City of Lin-cont are encouraged to atternat.

Alts, 22 & 29 - 2046/999 ADVERTISEMENT The Board of City Commissioners of the City of Bismarck will receive sealed bids for the city of Bismarck will receive sealed bids for the city of Bismarck will receive sealed bids for the city of a sealer of the city of the red for the city of the sealer of the city of the strater by 300 pm. Monday, May 13, 2019. Such work to be completed according to the schedule, plane and specifications on file in the Office of the City Administrator Bids will be opened at 4:00 pm. Monday, May 13, 2019, in the Office of City Adminis-tration.

The proposals must be mailed to or depos-ited with the City Administrator and shall be sealed and endorsed "Proposal for Con-struction of Part B-3, Repairs - Miscellane-one".

be availed and balance their bids accord-ingly. Bids shall be made on the basis of cash-payment for the work to be done. All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a written order from the Beard of City Commissioners. Work shall consist of approximately 3500 SF of 4-inch, 2500 SF of 6-inch, and 800 SF of 8-inch concrete removals; valve box, manhole, and various sized inite adjust-ments; and related items. Each bid shall be accompanied by a sepa-rate envelope containing a bidder's bond in the amount of the bid as required by Section 49-012. North Dakta Century Code, as amended, and executed as provided by law.

amended, and executed as provines or law. The Board of City Commissioners reserves the right to hold alb bids for a period of thirty (30) days after the date fixed for the open-ing thereof and reject any or alb bids and to waive irregularities whenever it is for the best interest of the City of Bismarck. The City of Bismarck is committed to provid-ing non-discriminatory service. No person shall, on the basis of a person's nation or fin, race, color, disability, sex, age and/or income status, be excluded from participa-tion or be subjected to discrimination or har assment by the City of Bismarck or any of the locations.

its locations. The City of Bismarck will consider every re-quest for reasonable accommodation to

provide: • an accessible meeting facility or other ac-commodation for people with disabilities, • language interpretation for people with limited English proficiency (LEP), and • translations of written material necessary to access City of Bismarck programs and in-formation

Appropriate provisions will be considered when the City of Bismarck is notified at least 10 days prior to the meeting date or the date the written material translation is proceed.

City of Bismark, at State Control and Cont

keith I Hunke

City Administrator Dated this 24th day of April, 2019 4/29 & 5/6 - 20969688

#### To Place a Legal Advertisement Call 355-8816, Fax 250-0195, or email: legals@bismarcktribune.com

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA COUNTY OF BURLEIGH IN JUVENILE COURT SOUTH CENTRAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT IN THE INTEREST OF M.S.J., A CHILD State of North Dakota, ) Petitioner, ) vs. ) serve as the official notice to property own-ers to cut weeks, tail grass and unhealthy vegetation. Other methods of notification, such as the media and City of Bismarck's website may also be used to notify land-owner, occupants or persons in charge to control weeks, tail grass and unhealthy veg-etation. (Ord. 5487, 03-14-06): (Ord. £479

etation. (Ord. 5487, 03-14-06); (Ord. 6039, 04-08-14; Ord. 6156, 10-13-15; Ord. 6202,

(d-d-8): (a) CID, 10:5-15; ULL ecc., 42:8-16].
(d-28:6)
(d-28

clude but not be limited to property that: 1. Cannot be salely moved. 2. Is highly eradible. 3. Is undevelopable. 4. Is located in an undisturbed natural area. 5. Is densely woodd. 6. Is too wet to mow, such as marsh, wetland or storm water drainage, pond, or feature, either natural or marmade. 7. Jone for agricultural rankens. 8. Jone 5. Jone 5

INVITATION NO'S: IFB 19-15 CIVIL CON-

"Weeds" as used in this chapter shall in-clude all weeds contained in North Dakota Administrative Code Section 7-06-01-02 as it defines "noisulos weeds."
 Tail grasses" shall mean all weeds not contained in North Dakota Administrative Code Section 7-06-01-02 in excess of leght (b) inches in height and all grasses in esc-ses may be used for omamental plantings subject to the following conditions:
 a. Tail grasses may not be used as lawn cover.

INVITATION NO'S: IFB 19-15 CIVIL CON-STRUCTON IFB 19-16 GENERAL CONSTRUCTION IFB 19-17 MECHANICAL CONSTRUCTION IFB 19-18 CENTRAL CONSTRUCTION IFB 19-18 CENTRAL CONSTRUCTION INVITATION DBD MATONAL ARCONSTRUCTION INVITATION DBD State of North Dakida at Fraine Barracks, Building 030, Bismarck, North Dakota, at State of North Dakida at Fraine Barracks, Building 030, Bismarck, North Dakota, at State of North Dakida at Fraine Barracks, Building 030, Bismarck, North Dakota, at Dakida Method Registrate Al Holds re-ceived after the scheduled opening time will be returned to the idders unopened. Bidders may submit separate bids only for Chancial Construction Work (IFB 19-16), Me-chanical Construction Work (IFB 19-17) and Electhal Construction Work (IFB 19-17), and Electhal Construction Work (IFB 19-16), Me-MONTANTIN Sub-Bachon, Merchander State State Interview Dakie Bachon, Market Bates will apply on this projed. ATTENTION PERSONS WITH DISABILI-

separate dus will be accepted. IMPCHTAIN: Dexi-Bacon Wage Rates will apply on this project. ATTENTION PERSONS WITH DISABILI-TIES: If you plan to attend the bid opening and will need special facilities or assistance relating a sub-etained and the second second second second to a sub-tion of the contrast documents are available on the Architect's contrast the office or access to download these documents, be viewed or download these documents, the Arbitect's contrast declines desired the ord access to download these docu-rents, contact Salvely Demsers at the office of Larger Arbitects, (701) 280-0187. Contractors and halfs courses to the office of the Owner upon deposit of \$500.00 per set Owner upon deposit of \$500.00 per set

In only equipries: b. Bronsmetrial plantings overgrown with b. Bronsmetrial plantings overgrown with (Ord. 5487, 03-14-06; Ord. 5715, 04-28-09); (Ord. 6039, 04-08-14; Ord. 6156, 10-13-15, Ord. 6220, 04-26-16) 13-03-02; Control/Duy, It is the dury of every person owning, occupying or in charge of any premises, lot or parcel of land to cut, eradicate or control any weeds, tall grasses exceeding (8) eight inches in height, and unhealthy vegetation exceeding eight (8) inches in height, to prevent them from becoming a public nuisance. (076, 6339, 04-06-14) 13-06-08, Note: be height, to prevent them from becoming a public nuisance. (076, 6339, 04-06-14) 13-06-08, Note: be a notice of the contents of this chapter to be publications of ordi-sister to cause a oncion of the contents of this chapter to be publications shall serve as notice to all landowners, occupants or persons in charge of land of the requirements of this chapter. These publications and all as all also

ERAL, STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA). The deposit will be returned to contractors who submit a bona fide bid, and who return the contract documents to the Owner in ummul-lated condition within ten (10) days after the opening of bids. All nonresponse bidders shall forfeit their deposit to the Owner. Cop-ies of the proposed contract documents are limited to one (1) set per bidder. Additional sets may be purchased from the Owner at the rate of \$500.00 (non-refundable) per set.

Requests for project documents must be

Hequests for project documents must be written on the Contractor's own letterhead and must include a copy of their North Device Contractor's own letterhead Contract Networks of Longer or Contraction OWNER I OWNER I OWNER I Device Internet Contraction Contract P.O. Box 5511 Bienarck, North Dakota 58506-5511 Telephone (701) 332-2008 In addition, copies of the project documents are on flie at the Construction Plans Ex-change in Bismarck, Builders Exchanges in Dicknson, Fayo, Grand Forks, Mardan, area for the Construction Plans Ex-change in Bismarck, Builders Exchanges in Dicknson, Fayo, Grand Forks, Mardan, area for the Construction Plans Ex-change in Bismarck, Builders Exchanges in the offices of the Antheta and the Owner. Each bid shall be submitted in duplicate copy on the forms provided by the Owner and enclosed in a sealed opaque envelope upon which there is disclosed in a separ-tic bid shall be submitted in duplicate executed by the Didder a principie of the Augu-tand shall be accompanied by the Supple-tendrary instructions to Bidders. Each bidder shall be accompanied to the Adju-tand formation as required by the Supple-tand enclosed in a sealed opaque envelope and the study and the adjust to the bidder by the Supplet of the Adju-tand General, State of North Dakota, and executed by the bidder as principie and by a surety company authorized to do tus-mess in North Dakota, in a sum equal to five percent (5%) of the bidder's highest total bid the bidders in accounted that if bidders and the required the advection the contract avarded to him, he with the (10) days at total a contractor's bond as of his bid and a contractor's bond as enveloper, must have a copy of the North Dakota Contractor's bond as enveloper. And the required the the principi and allemates; and such licenses and the North Dakota Contractor's bond as enveloper. And the required the the bidpersit amount of his total bid combination includ-g advector the such contractor's bond as enveloper. must have a copy of the North Dakota Contract

deficient bid submitted will be resealed and returned to bidder immediately. The Owner reserves the right to hold all le-glimate bids for a period of forky-five (45) days after the date fixed for the opening thereof. It is the intent of the Owner to award a contract to the lowest and best bid-er. The Owner further reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive impu-ted the apprendix of any monits un-tie State for the payment of any monits un-til the contract is awarded and approved by the proper authorities.

til the contract is awarded and approved by the proper authorities. In compliance with Section 48-012-10 of the North Backa Century Code, the suc-cessful bidder shall be required to furnish bords covering the faithful performance of the Contract and the payment of all obliga-tions thereunder, and all additional obliga-tions thereunder, and had the bin an amount equal to the full contract sum. DATED: Anji 29, 2019 OFFICE OF THE ADJUTANT GENERAL Bismarck North Dakda OFFICE OF THE ADJUTANT GENI Bismarck, North Dakota By: /s/ ROBERT J. BECKLUND Brigadier General, NDNG Deputy Adjutant General Contracting Officer 4/29, 5/6 & 19 - 20969527

NOTICE OF HEARING N.D. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OIL AND GAS DIVISION The North Dakota Industrial Commission will hold a public hearing at 9:00 a.m. Wednesday, May 22, 2019, at the N.D. Oil & Gas Division. 1000 East Cagany Ave, Bismarck, N. D. At the hearing the Commis-sion will receive testimonry and exhibits. Persons with any interest in the cases listed below, take notice.

Bismack, N. D. At the hearing the Commission will receive testimory and exhibits. Persons with any interest in the cases listed below, take notice. PERSONS WITH DISABULTIES: If at the hearing you need special facilities or assistance, contact the Oil and Gas Division at 1071-282-8038 threads, D. 2019. STATE OF NORTH DISABULTIES: If at the hearing you need special facilities or assistance, contact the Oil and Gas Division at 1071-282-8038 threads, D. 2019. STATE OF NORTH DISABULTIES: If at the first or the hearing you need the special facilities or assistance, contact the Oil and Gas Division at the format of the transmitter of th

be appropriate. Case No. 27521: Application of Hess Bakken Investments II, LLC for an order granting relief from the 1220 foot setback

policy for wells in four 1280-acre spacing units for the Tioga-Bakken Pool described as Sections 5 and 8; Sections 6 and 7; Sec-tions 17 and 20; and Sections 18 and 19, T.158N, R.94W, Mountrail County, ND, and for such other relief as may be appro-ted.

and for such other relief as may be appro-priate. Case No. 27444: (Continued) Application of Hess Bakken Investments III, Lick for an or-der amending the applicable orders for the Toga-Bakken Pool to estabilish an overlap-ping 2560 acre spacing unit described as Sections 5, 6, 7 and 8, T158M, R,94W, Mountrail County, ND, and authorize one horizontal well to be drilled on such unit, and for such other relief as may be appro-priate.

and for such other relief as may be appro-priate. Case No. 27445: (Continued) Application of Hess Bakken Investments II, LLC for an or-der amending the applicable orders for the Toga-Bakken Pool to establish an overlap-ping 2560: acre spacing unit described as sections 17, 18, 19 and 20, T.158N, R.94W, Mountral County, ND, and author-ize one horizontal well to be drilled on such unit, and for such other relief as may be ap-propriate. Case No. 27522: Application of True Oil LC for an order amendition the anolicable

Case No. 27522: Application of True Oil Case No. 27522: Application of True Oil LLC for an order amending the applicable orders for the Red Wing Creek Madison Pool to allow the Williston Basin State 42-86 S-1MH well (File No. 35030) to be drilled and completed in such fashion that portions of the velobre may be less than 500 feet from the southern and western boundary of the spacing unit consisting of Section 38, T.148M, R.101W, and Section 1, T.147M, R.101W, McKreic County, NO, as an ex-ception to the application er Bruin ELP operating. LLC for an order authorizing treaters to be located closer than 125 feet to a wellhead to their field as any be appropriate. Case No. 27524: Application of Patro-Hunt, LLC. for an order amending the applicable org ranting such other relief as any be ap-propriate.

tabilis an overlapping 2560-acre spacing unit consisting Sections 2, 3, 10 and 11, T.153N, R.95W, McKenzie County, ND, and authorize one horizontal well to be drilled on such unit, and granting such other cleals an xy be appropriate Case No. 27440; (Continued) Application of Petro Harvester Operating Co., LLC for an order amending the applicable orders for the Northeast Foodhil-Bäckker pool to es-tabilish four 1280- acre spacing units de-extabilish four 1280- acre spacing units de-each such unit, and granting such other re-lief a smay be appropriate Case No. 27441; (Continued) Application of each such unit, and granting such other re-lief a smay be appropriate. Case No. 27441; (Continued) Application of Petro Harvester for the Little Buffer County, ND, to (i) extend the outline and amend the patiecable orders for the Little Buffer County, ND, to (i) extend the outline and amend the Little Buffer Stab-acre spacing unit in the Little Buffer and be addited on the unit, and (i) establet a la Obacion 31, T.161N, R.91W;, with one horizontal well to be diffed on the unit, and Case No. 27565. Application of ErviroVault La Deviron Acre and Buffer and Buffer and Buffer Case No. 27565. Application of ErviroVault

my graning other brick taking bet of the taking of the propriate. Case No. 27525: Application of EnviroVault LP for an order allowing an indirect flame-less tank heating unit to be located within a tank, within a tank farm in ND, as an excep-tion to the requirements of NDAC Section 43-02-03-28, and such other relief as is ap-

43-02-03-28, and such other relief as is ap-propriate. Case No. 27258: (Continued) On a motion of the Commission to review the authoriza-tion and permit under Order No. 26960 for Berg Specialty Fluids-Holding, LLC to oper-ate a treating plant located in the NVNW of Section 12, -1614N, R33W, Black Slough Field, Burke County, ND, known as the FluidTech No. 1 Treating Plant (Facility No. 700138-01) and such other relief as is ap-propriate.

FluidTech No. 1 Treating Plant (Facility No. 700138-01) audx ch other relief as is ap-propriate. Case No. 27450: (Continued) Application of Blue Appaloosa, Inc. for an order pursuant to NAC § 43-2035 et seg. authorating the construction of a treating plant to be to New Day County, ND and such other relief as is appropriate. Case No. 27524: Application of Petro-Hunt, LLC. for an order amending the applicable corters for the West Ambross-Basening unit described as Sections 3 and 10, TrEXN, R100W, DWde County, ND and graning such other relief as may be appropriate. Case No. 27524: Application of Petro-Hunt, LLC. for an order amending the applicable corters for the West Ambross-Basening unit described as Sections 3 and 10, TrEXN, authorize up to four horizontal wells to be drilled on a standy graning such other relief as Rev Day 27524; Application of Heret-Hankle orders for the Alexandria-Bakken Pool hourits described se Sections 1 and 10; and Sections 4 and 9, TrENN, R100W, DWde Sake Applicable on their relief as Bakken Investments II, LLC provent to NOA 54 34:2023-88.11 for an order allow mit of described as Sections 1 and 10; and Sections 4 and 9, TrENN, R100W, DWde Sake Applicable on there relief as may be appropriate. Case No. 2752:28: Application of Herss Bakken Investments II, LLC provent NOA 54 34:202-88.11 for an order allow mit of described as 106; and 21, NOA 54:30; GO-Hauge 1569:72:116H-143; File No. 36159; GO-Hauge 1569:72:116H-143; File

and 19, 11-34%, 14-24%, Santsh-Bakkell Pool, Mountal County, ND, as provided by NDCC 53-368, 2016, and such other relief as Case No. 2754-2. Application of Whiling Oli and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to DDAC § 43-02-388,1 pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 28, as provided by NDCC § 33-06-86, and such other relief as is appropriate. Case No. 2754: Application of Whiling Oli and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to DDAC § 43-02-388,1 pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 18, as provided by NDCC § 33-06-86, and such other relief as is appropriate. Case No. 2754: Application of Whiling Oli and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-388,1 pooling, and such ther relief as is appropriate. Case No. 2754: Application of Whiling Oli and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-384,1 pooling all interests an a spacing unit described as Sections 13, a spacing unit described as Sections 25, and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-384, pooling all interests and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to NDAC § 44-02-03-881, pooling all interests and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to NDAC § 44-02-03-881, pooling all interests Case No. 27545: Application of Whiling Oli and Gas Corp. Or an order pursuant to NDAC § 44-02-03-881, pooling all interests Case No. 27545: Application of Burlingford a certail production far hor the State Dodge 22 THH (File No. 2393), decimas 16 and 21, T151N., R36W, McKanzie Case No. 27546; Application of Burlingford a certail production far on order allow-such other and unther relief as may be ap-propriate. Case No. 27546; Application of Burlingford a certail production far on order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-36-381, pooling all interests 16 and 21, T151N., R36W, McKanzie 16 and

NDAC § 4302-03-88.1 for an order allow-ing oil and gas produced from the GO-Hauge 156-97-2116H-2 (File No. 36158), GO-Hauge 156-97-2116H-3 (File No. 36159), GO-Hauge 156-97-2116H-4 (File No. 36159), GO-Hauge 156-97-2116H-4 (File No. 36159), GO-Hauge 156-97-2116H-4 (No. 2016), No. 56, 47, No. 161, No. 161, No. 161, No. 161, 17, No. 161, No. House Na. 27546: Application of Bruin E&P Operating. LLC for an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881 hooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 25, 26, 35 and 36, T.148N, R.94W, McGreg-ory Buttes-Backen Pool, Dunn County, ND, as provided by NDCC § 38-08-08, and such other relief as is appropriate case No. 27547: Application of Petro Har-vester Operating Co, LLC for a order pur-vester Operating Co, LLC for a order pur-sellwater disposal into the Dakka Group in the LICS 2WD et well. NEW Section 2, T.162N, R91W, Lignite Field, Burke County, ND, pursuant to NDAC Chapter 43-02-05 and such other relief as is appro-priate.

R-97%, pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-43. or granting such other and turther relief as may be appropriate. Case No. 27529: Application of Hess Bakken Investments II, LLC pursuant to DDAC § 43-02-03-88.11 for an order allow-ing oil and gas produced from the SH-starstad 155-91-0433H-4 (File No. 38258), RS-Harstad 155-91-0433H-4 (File No. 38226), and RS-Harstad-155-91-0433H-5 (File No. 38255), Section 33, T.158N, R.91M, and Section 4, T.155V, R.91M, Mountal County, ND, wells to the comminged in a central solution (Physical County), and the solution of the solution (Physical County), pursuant to NDAC (Physical County), and (Physical County), pursuant to NDAC (Physical County), and (Physical County), pursuant to NDAC (Physical County), pursuant (Physical County), pursuant to NDAC (Physical County), pursuant to Solution (Physical Physical County), pursuant to pursuant pursuant

43-02-00-priate. Signed by, Doug Burgum, Governor Chairman, NDIC 4/29 - 20969732

PUBLIC NOTICE DEADLINES 
 PUBLISH BY
 RECEIVE BY

 Mon.
 Thurs. 12 Noon

 Tues.
 Fri. 12 Noon

 Wed.
 Fri. 5PM

.Mon. Noor

Tues. Noon ed. 12 Noon

Bakken Investments II, LLC, for an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-88.1 pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 27, 28, 33 and 34, T.156N, R.94W, Manitou-Bakken Pool, Mountrail County, ND, as provided by NDCC § 38-08-08, and such other relief as is appro-priate.

38-36-368, and such other reliet as is appropriate. Case No. 27532: Application of Hess Backen Investments II, LLC, for an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-88.1 pooling all interests in a spacing unit desrobed as Sections 31 and 32, T148N, R96W, and Guidch-Backen and/or Codar Coulee-Bakken Sections 4, T147N, R96W, Big Guidch-Backen and/or Codar Coulee-Bakken Pools, Dunn County, ND, as provided by NDCC § 38-06-08, and such other reliet as anomantias.

Peols, Dunn Courty, ND, as provided by NDCs § 38-0409, and such other relief as is appropriate. Case No. 27333: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to DNAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 34 and 35, T155N, R29V, and Sections 2 and 35, T155N, R29V, and Sections 1 and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to DNAC § 43-02-38-81, pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 1, a, sprovided by NDCC § 38-0469, and such other relief as is appropriate. Case No. 2755: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Corp. for an order pursuant to DNAC § 43-02-058-1, pooling all interests in on Sa and and the N2 of Sections 9 and On T155N, R29V, Sanish-Barken Pool, Mountrail Courty, ND, as provided by NDCC § 38-040-80, and such other relief as is appropriate.

10, 1154N, H2/W, Sansh-Bakkel Pool, Mountrail County, ND, as provided by NDCC § 39-08-08, and such other relief as leaptopoints: Grad Gas Cons. for an order pursuant to DNAC § 43-02-08-881, pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 4, 5, a provided by NDCC § 33-08-08, and such other relief as is appropriate. Case No. 27537: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Cons. For an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 7, 8, and 19, T154N, R32W, Sansh-Bakken Pool, Mountrail County, ND, Case No. 27537: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Conp. For an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 7, 8, and Gas Conp. For an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as Sections 7, 8, and 16, T154N, R32W, Sansh-Bakken Pool, Mountrail County, ND, as provided by NDCC § 33-060-80, and such other relief as appropriate. Case No. 27538: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Conp. For an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests is appropriate. Case No. 27538: Application of Whiting Oli and 16, T154N, R32W, Sansh-Bakken Pool, Mountrail County, ND, as provided by NDCC § 33-06-03, and such other relief as is appropriate. Case No. 27530: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Conp. For an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests is appropriate. Case No. 27540: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Conp. Tor an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests is appropriate. Case No. 27540: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Conp. Tor an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests is appropriate. Case No. 27541: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Conp. For an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests is appropriate. Case No. 27541: Application of Whiting Oli and Gas Conp. For an order pursuant to NDAC § 43-02-03-881, pooling all interests is approximate.

tractory sportadow, and source fuller telefa as appropriate. Cast Gass, Carp. for an order pureuant to NDAC § 4.3 Cod-88.1 pooling all interests in a spacing unit described as the W/2 of Sections 17 and 20 and all of Sections 18 and 19, T.154N, R.92W, Sanish-Bakken Pool, Mountali County, NLD as provided by NDCC § 38/46/48, and such other relief as is anomonial.

### **PUBLIC NOTICE**

PUBLIC NOTICE OF ZONING CHANGE PUBLIC NOTICE OF ZONING CHANGE Notice is hereby given that the Bismarck City Commission, on Tuesday, February 26, 2019, approved an ordinance rezoning from the RR-Residential zoning district to the RT-Residential and Conditional GG-Commercial zoning districts on Wash-ington Square Addition. This ordinance is available for copying and inspection during normal working hours in the office of the City Administrator Dy K.J. Hunke, City Administrator Dated this 17th day of April, 2019. 4/22 - 20969000

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING FOR IMPROVEMENT

IMPROVEMENT TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: Notice is hereby given that the City of Lin-coln will hold a Public Information & Input Meeting on May 14, 2019 at the Lincoln City Hall at 7:00 PM, to consider wastewater fa-dible increasements

cility improvements. This will be an informational meeting to dis-This will be an informational meeting to dis-cuss the City wastewater treatment facility improvement alternatives, including the economic and environmental impacts, serv-ice areas, and potential funding sources. Selection of alternative will not take place at meeting, rather public information and input will be facilitated. At this time, all residents and property owners within the City of Lin-coh are encouraged to attend. coln are encouraged to attend. 4/15, 22 & 29 - 20967999

Benjamin W. Keup, #07013 PEARCE DURICK PLLC P.O. Box 400 Bismarck, ND 58502 (701) 223-2890 E-file: #bwkefile@pearce-durick.com Attorneys for the Personal Representative of the Estate of Carol Anderson IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF BURLEIGH, STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA In the Watter of the Estate of Carol Anderson, Deceased. Probate No. 08-2019-PR-00063 NOTICE TO CREDITORS NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the under-signed has been appointed personal repre-sentative of the above estate. All persons being elibre activet the decensed are ac having claims against the deceased are re quired to present their claims within three quired to present their claims within three months after the date of the first publication or mailing of this notice or the claims will be forever bared. Claims must be presented to Scott Odegaard, personal representa-tives of the estate, at P-O. Box 400, Bis-marck, ND 58502-0400 or filed with the Court. Court. Dated this 3rd day of April, 2019.

/s/ Scott Odegaard Scott Odegaard c/o PEARCE DURICK PLLC P.O. Box 400 Bismarck, ND 58502-0400 4/8, 15 & 22 - 20967607

4/8, 15 & 22 - 20967607 NOTICE OF BIDS NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Bur-leigh County Board of Commissioners, Bur-leigh County, North Dakota will accept bids until Monday, April 29, 2019 at 1:30 P.M. (Local Time), Bids will be opened and read at that time in the 1st Floor Conference Room of the City/County Building, located at 221 N. 5th SL in Bismarck, ND. The re-sults and final disposition of the bid opening will be presented to the County Commission on Monday, May 6, 2019, beginning ap-prosimately at 5:00 PM (Local Time), in the Tom Baker room of the City/County build-ing, for the following item: Project No. 0151 SAD 657 NISTA SOUTH ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Project No. 0152 SAD 65 RAYMAR ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Project No. 0153 SAD 65 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Project No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Propet No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS PROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS PROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS PROADWAY IMPROVEM

Project No. 0156 SAD 68 RUSTIC ACRES ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS Proposed work includes Reshaping Aggre-gate Base, Hot Mix Asphati Paving, Seal Coat, and Incidentals on 4 tied Special As-sessment District projects within the limits of Burleigh County. All materials and proce-dures shall be in accordance with the cur-rent NDDOT Standard Specifications for Road & Bridge Construction, dated October 2014 and all supplemental material. Bid packets shall consist of two separate envelopes (plain) marked as Project No. 0151, 0152, 0153, & 0156 on the outside), the outside envelope containing a current copy of Contractor's License and 5% Bid-der's Bond with the second envelope con-taining the bid on the County's bid form. The successful bidder must submit evi-dence of general liability insurance cover-age prior to award of bid. Further information detailed specifications, bidding documents, etc., are available from the Burleigh County Engineer, 8100 437d Ave NE, Bismarck, ND S8503. Phone 701-204-7748.

Ave NE, Bis 701-204-7748.

701:204-748. Plans are also available at the Burleigh County Project Website: https:// connex.mn.uccs.com Bids should be mailed to: COUNTY AUDITORTREASURER, P.O. Box 5518, 221 N. 5715. BISMARCK, NORTH DA-KOTA 58506. The Board reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive technicalities or to ac-cept such as may be determined to be in the best interest of the County. BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF

COMMISSIONERS BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA This 18th day of March, 2019 This 18th day of March, 2019 **KEVIN J. GLATT,** Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 4/8, 15 & 22 - 20967314

To Place a Legal Advertisement Call 355-8816, Fax 250-0195, or email: legals@bismarcktribune.com

Missouri, Telfer, and Boyd Townships Zoning Board will have a meeting to discuss R1 zoning regulation on parcels 40-138-78-00-15-810,

40-138/7400-13-8410, 40-138-76-00-23640, 45-137.79-00-18-600, permitting process, and other general zoning business. A meeting will be held on May 9, 2019 at 7:00PM at Menoken School, 412 Bismarck STN, Menoken ND 58558. Andy Buntrock, clerk Missouri, Telfer, Boyd Township Zonick, clerk Missouri, Telfer, Boyd

Township Zoning 4/22 - 20969002

OIL & GAS LEASE ONLINE AUCTION OIL & GAS LEASE ONLINE AUCTION The Board of University and School Lands will conduct an online oil and gas lease auc-tion for two-hundred-fifty-nine (259) tracts in amings. Burke, Divide, Dunn, Golden Val-ley, McKenzie, McLean, Mountrail, Slope, Stark, Ward, and Williams Counties, ND. Bidding will commence April 30, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. CST and end May 7, 2019. The link to view the tract and participate in the auction is:

https://www.energynet.com/govt\_listing.pl

A 2% convenience fee will be assessed. A 2% convenience fee will be assessed. Anyone needing auxiliary aista of services should call Susie at (701) 328-1948 by 04/24/2019. 3/29/2019 /s/ Jodi Smith Commissioner 4/15 & 22 - 20967919

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS Notice is hereby given that proposals for oup Self-Funded Dental and Vision Insur-ance for Bismarck Public Schools in Bis-marck, North Dakota will be received electronically until Wednesday, May 8, 2019 at 2:00 PM local time. All proposals received after the scheduled time will be returned un-

after the scheduled time will be telumed un-opened. A copy of the Request for Proposal is avail-able at 3600 American Bivd W, Suite 500, Bloomigdon, MN 55431, by calling Lori Hayes at 952-356-0712 or emailing Lori Hayes@aijcom or on our website www.bismarkschools.org.

www.bismarckschools.org. Each proposal shall be submitted electroni-cally to Gallagher Benefit Services at

cally to Gallagher Benefit Services at Lori Hayes/Rajcom. The Owner reserves the right to hold all le-gitimate bids for a period of Thirty (30) days after the date fixed for the opening thereof. The Owner further reserves the right to re-ject any and all bids or portions thereof and to waive irregularities, and the Owner shall incur no legal liability for the payment of any monies until the contract is awarded and anorrowed hy the more authorities. approved by the proper authorities. Dated this 22nd day of April 2019

/s/ Darin Scherr Darin Scherr, Business and Operations

Manager Bismarck Public School District #1

806 North Washington Street Bismarck, North Dakota 58501 4/22 - 20968467

NOTICE OF BIDS

NOTICE OF BIDS NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Bur-leigh County Board of Commissioners, Bur-leigh County, North Daktos Will accept bids until Monday, April 29, 2019 at 1:30 P.M. (Local Time), Bids will be opened and read at that time in the 1st Floor Conference Room of the City/County Building, located at 221 N. 5th St. in Bismarck, ND. The re-sults and final disposition of the bid opening will be presented to the County Commission on Monday, May 6, 2019, beginning ap-proximately at 5:00 PM (Local Time), in the Tom Baker room of the City/County build-ing, for the following item: Project No. 1004(19)-31 & 1004(19)-38 BURLEIGH COUNTY TOWNSHIP SEAL COAT PACKAGE Proposed work includes Seal Coat, and In-cidentals on Hay Creek and Lincoln Town-ship Roadways within the lumits of Burleigh County. All materials and procedures shall construction, dated October 2014 and all supplemental material. Bid packets shall consist of two separate envelopes (plainty marked as Projeet County

Bid<sup>®</sup> packets shall consist of two separate envelopes (plainly marked as Project 1004(19)-31 & 1004(19)-38 Burleigh County Township Seal Coat Package on the out-side), the outside envelope containing a current copy of Contractor's License and 5% Bidder's Bond with the second envelope containing the bid on the County's bid form. The successful bidder must submit evi-dence of general liability insurance cover-age prior to award of bid. Further information detailed specifications, bidding documents, etc., are available from the Burleigh County Engineer, 8100 43rd Ave NE, Bismarck, ND 58503. Phone 701-204-7748.

701-204-7748. Plans are also available at the Burleigh County Project Website: https:// connex.mn.uccs.com Bids should be mailed to: COUNTY AUDITORT/TREASURER, P.O. Box 5518, 221 N. 51T S., BISMARCK, NORTH DA-KOTA 55506. The Board reserves the right to reject any

KOTA 55506. The Board reserves the right to reject any and all bids; to waive technicalities or to ac-cept such as may be determined to be in the best interest of the County. BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF

COMMISSIONERS

COMMISSIONERS BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA This 7th day of January, 2019 KEVIN J. GLATT, Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 4/8, 15 & 22 - 20967325

PUBLIC NOTICE DEADLINES 
 PUBLIC NUTICE DEADLINES

 PUBLISH BY
 RECEIVE BY

 Mon.
 Thurs, 12 Noon

 Tues.
 Fri. 12 Noon

 Wed.
 Fri. SPM
 Friday .... ... Tues. Noon Wed. 12 Noon Sat.....\*Early Deadlines For Holidays.

TODD D. KRANDA ) State Bar ID No. 04512 ) KELSCH RUFF KRANDA NAGLE & LUD-

WIG) 103 Collins Avenue PO Box 1266 )

103 Collins Avenue, PO Box 1266) Mandan, ND 58554) Teleptone: (701) 663-9818) Fax: (701) 663-9810) Email: kranda @kelschlaw.com) Attorneys for: Estate) IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, SOUTH CENTRAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT, STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA In the Metter of the State of

EDGAR W. SCHMIDT, Deceased Probate No. 08-2019-PR-00070

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the under-signed has been appointed personal representative of the above estate. All persons having claims against the said de-ceased are required to present their claims within three months after the date of the first within three months after the date of the first publication or mailing of this notice or said claims will be forever barred. Claims must either be presented to Kevin Schmidt, per-sonal representative of the estate at P.O. Box 1266, Mandan, North Dakota 58554-7266 or filed with the Court. Dated this 3rd day of April, 2019. /s/Kevin Schmidt Kevin Schmidt

Personal Representative First Publication on the 8th day of April, 2019 4/8 15 & 22 - 20967583

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

STATE OF INORTH DAROTA COUNTY OF BURLEIGH IN JUVENILE COURT SOUTH CENTRAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT IN THE INTEREST OF M.S.J., A CHILD State of North Dakota, ) Petitioner, )

State of North Dakota, ) Petitioner, ) NS.J., Child; ) Ki.S.J., Child; ) Ki.S.J., Child; ) Kiana Starr, Mother; ) Arrow St. John, Father, ) Barb Oliger, Guardian ad Litem; ) and the Executive Director of ) Human Services Department, ) State of North Dakota; ) Respondents, ) File No. 08-2019-JV-00005 SUMMONS THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA TO THE ABOVE-NMED RESPONDENTS: You are hereby summoned to appear per-sonally at the Juvenile Court in the Burleigh Courty Courthouse, North Dakota, on the purpose of hearing the Petition made and filed with this Court. The Petition. A copy of the Petition can be obtained at the Clerk of Court's office.

You are entitled to have the Petition heard by a Judge of the Juvenile Court, instead of by a Referee, by filing a written request for a Judge with the Clerk of this Court within seven (Z) days after receiving this Sum-mons seven mons.

mons. <u>BIGHT TO COUNSEL</u> If you desire the assistance of an attorney, and are unable without undue financial hardship to employ one, the Court, upon your request, will appoint an attorney for

you. Dated this 10th day of April, 2019

Judicial Referee 4/15. 22 & 29 - 20968271

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

COUNTY OF BURLEIGH

CUUNTY OF BURLEIGHT IN JUVENILE COURT SOUTH CENTRAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT IN THE INTEREST OF S.A.S.J., A CHILD State of North Dakota, ) Petitioner, ) vs. )

vs.) S.A.S.J., Child; )

Kiana Starr, Mother; ) Arrow St. John, Father; ) Barb Oliger, Guardian ad Litem; ) and the Executive Director of )

ano the Executive Director of ) Human Services Department, ) State of North Dakota; ) File No. 08-2019-JV-00006 SUMMONS THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA TO THE ABOVE-NAMED RESPONDENTS: You are bareful summonad to anonar per ABOVE-NAMED RESPONDENTS: You are hereby summoned to appear per-sonally at the Juvenile Court in the Burleigh County Courthouse. North Dakota, on the **10th day of May. 2019. at 9:00a.m.** for the purpose of hearing the Petition dams the child is alleged to be a deprived child, as more fully appears from the Petition. A acoy of the Petition can be obtained at the Clerk of Court's office. <u>RIGHT TO HEARING BEFORE\_JUDGE</u> You are entitled to have the Petition hear

You are entitled to have the Petition heard by a Judge of the Juvenile Court, instead of by a Refere, by filing a written request for a Judge with the Clerk of this Court within seven (2) days after receiving this Sum-mons.

mons. <u>BIGHT TO COUNSEL</u> If you desire the assistance of an attorney, and are unable without undue financial hardship to employ one, the Court, upon your request, will appoint an attorney for you. Dated this 10th day of April, 2019

Judicial Referee 4/15, 22 & 29 - 20968274

North Dakota newspapers also post public notices that are printed in newspapers ON www.ndpublicnotices.com at no additional charge to units of government.



City of Lincoln North Dakota May 14 ·

Public Input Meeting tonight at City Hall at 7 pm to discuss wastewater options.

1		4 Shares
Like	Comment	Share
Write a comment		

City of Lincoln North Dakota May 17 · The packet that was handed out at the Wastewater informational meeting is linked below on the City of Lincoln Website. http://www.cityoflincolnnd.com/						
	CITYOFLINCOLNND.COM Welcome to City of Lin	icoln, ND				
2		1 Comment 1 Share				
Like	Comment	Share				
Most Relevant						
Write a commen	t					
Jody Stewart W Like · Reply · 30w	here? It only takes me to the city	/ of Lincoln page.				

;

# Appendix F

Solicitation Response Letters



December 11, 2019

Aaron Wellman Environmental Engineer North Dakota Department of Evironmental Quality 918 E. Divide Ave., 3rd Floor Bismarck, ND 58501

Dear Mr. Wellman:

The City of Lincoln is in the process of performing a Preliminary Environmental Review pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act in order that it may assess the environmental impacts due to construction and operation of a mechanical treatment facility that will replace the City's existing lagoon system.

The funding for this project consists of State Revolving Fund through the ND Department of Health and City of Lincoln funds.

This project will involve construction of a Biological Nutrient Removal (BNR) continuous discharge mechanical wastewater treatment facility in order to increase the City's wastewater treatment capacity. The new facility will be constructed on city property next to the existing lagoon ponds and will consist of an influent lift station, control/laboratory building, preliminary treatment building, package plant tankage, dewatering building, and a cake storage structure, all to be located on the south side of the existing pond system. The existing wastewater discharge location will be utilized for a continuous discharge. Once the facility is operational, lagoon cell 2 will function as an equalization pond, while the other three cells will be decommissioned and reclaimed. An easement may be required for extension of utilities to the treatment site.

To ensure that all social, economic, and environmental effects are considered in the development of this project, we are soliciting your views and comments on the proposed project pursuant to Section 102(2) (D) (VI) of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended. We are particularly interested in any comments in regards to the decommissioning and reclamation of the lagoon pond area.

It is requested that any comments be forwarded to our office on or before January 20, 2020. If no reply is received by this date, it will be assumed that you have no comments on this project.

Letter of Solicitation December 11, 2019 Page 2

Responses can be mailed to:

ATT: Matthew Schaible, PE Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, ND 58503

If further information is desired regarding the proposed water transmission line project, you may call me at (701) 354-7121.

Sincerely,

SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC.

Maudur likesple

Matthew Schaible Project Engineer

CLH Attachments: Lincoln Municipal Boundary and Existing Wastewater Treatment Facility Proposed Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility Location



Proposed Decommissioning

Proposed Decommissioning

Proposed Decommissioning

Facility Location

Х

Exisiting wastewater discharge location to Apple Creek

AppleCreet

## Sec 18 T138 R79W

あっからのない あいのないのないない 「 」 「 」 「 」

allo - an alwant to the

City of Lincoln









**Environmental Quality** 

December 26, 2019

Matthew Schaible Project Engineer Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, ND 58503

Re: City of Lincoln Biological Nutrient Removal system to replace city lagoons in Burleigh County

Dear Mr. Schaible:

The North Dakota Department of Environmental Quality has reviewed the information concerning the above-referenced project received at the department on December 11, 2019, with respect to possible environmental impacts.

This department believes that environmental impacts from the proposed construction will be minor and can be controlled by proper construction methods. With respect to construction, we have the following comments:

- 1. All necessary measures must be taken to minimize fugitive dust emissions created during construction activities. Any complaints that may arise are to be dealt with in an efficient and effective manner.
- 2. Care is to be taken during construction activity near any water of the state to minimize adverse effects on a water body. This includes minimal disturbance of stream beds and banks to prevent excess siltation, and the replacement and revegetation of any disturbed area as soon as possible after work has been completed. Caution must also be taken to prevent spills of oil and grease that may reach the receiving water from equipment maintenance, and/or the handling of fuels on the site. Guidelines for minimizing degradation to waterways during construction are attached.
- 3. Projects disturbing one or more acres are required to have a permit to discharge storm water runoff until the site is stabilized by the reestablishment of vegetation or other permanent cover. Further information on the storm water permit may be obtained from the department's website or by calling the Division of Water Quality (701-328-5210). Also, cities may impose additional requirements and/or specific best management practices for construction affecting their storm drainage system. Check with the local officials to be sure any local storm water management considerations are addressed.

The city must notify the North Dakota Pollutant Discharge Elimination System program of any planned changes to the waste water facility which may result in discharging new or different pollutants, or an increased amount of pollutants. This includes facility expansions, production increases and process modifications. Changes which result in a facility being designated a "new source" as determined in 40 CFR 122.29(b) must be reported, also.

	918 East Divide Avenue	e   E	Bismarck I	ND 58501-1947	1	Fax 701-328-5200	I	deq.nd.gov
Director's Office 701-328-5150	e Division of Air Quality 701-328-5188	Divisior Municipal F 701-328-	n of acilities 5211	Division of Waste Managem 701-328-5166	ient S	Division of Water Quality 701-328-5210	Division 701- 2635 E Bismar	of Chemistry 328-6140 ast Main Ave ck ND 58501

Sludge removal must be handled in accordance with the facility's NDPDES wastewater discharge permit, and applicable state and federal requirements. Further information regarding sludge or biosolids management may be obtained from the US EPA website (www.epa.gov).

- 4. The proposed construction project overlies the Apple Creek glacial drift aquifer, which is a sensitive groundwater area. Care should be taken to avoid spills of any materials that may have an adverse effect on groundwater quality. All spills must be immediately reported to this department and appropriate remedial actions performed.
- 5. All necessary measures must be taken to minimize the disturbance of any asbestos-containing material and to prevent any asbestos fiber release episodes. Any facility that is to be renovated or demolished must be inspected for asbestos. Notification of the department's Division of Waste Management (701-328-5166) is required before any demolition. Removal of any friable asbestos-containing material must be accomplished in accordance with section 33-15-13-02 of the North Dakota air pollution control rules.
- 6. Noise from construction activities may have adverse effects on persons who live near the construction area. Noise levels can be minimized by ensuring that construction equipment is equipped with a recommended muffler in good working order. Noise effects can also be minimized by ensuring that construction activities are not conducted during early morning or late evening hours.
- 7. All solid waste materials must be managed and transported in accordance with the state's solid and hazardous waste rules. Appropriate efforts to reduce, reuse and/or recycle waste materials are strongly encouraged. As appropriate, segregation of inert waste from non-inert waste can generally reduce the cost of waste management. Further information on waste management and recycling is available from the department's Division of Waste Management at (701) 328-5166.

The department owns no land in or adjacent to the proposed improvements, nor does it have any projects scheduled in the area. In addition, we believe the proposed activities are consistent with the State Implementation Plan for the Control of Air Pollution for the State of North Dakota.

If you have any questions regarding our comments, please feel free to contact this office.

Sincerely,

L. David Glatt, P.E., Director North Dakota Department of Environmental Quality

LDG:dlp Attach.



### **Construction and Environmental Disturbance Requirements**

The following are the minimum requirements of the North Dakota Department of Environmental Quality for projects that involve construction or environmental disturbance in or near waters of the State of North Dakota. They ensure that minimal environmental degradation occurs as a result of construction or related work which has the potential to affect waters of the state. All projects must be constructed to minimize the loss of soil, vegetative cover, and pollutants (chemical or biological) from a site.

### Soils

Prevent the erosion of soil and sediment loss using erosion and sediment controls. Fragile and sensitive areas such as wetlands, riparian zones, delicate flora, and land resources must be protected against compaction, vegetation loss, and unnecessary damage.

### **Surface Waters**

All construction must be managed to minimize impacts to aquatic systems. Follow safe storage and handling procedures to prevent the contamination of water from fuel spills, lubricants, and chemicals. Stream bank and stream bed disturbances must be controlled to minimize slit movement, nutrient upsurges, plant dislocations, and any physical, chemicals, or biological disruption. The use of pesticides or herbicides in or near surface waters is allowed under the department's pesticide application permit with notification to the department.

### **Fill Material**

Any fill material placed below the ordinary high-water mark must be free of topsoil, decomposable materials, and persistent synthetic organic compounds; including, but not limited to, asphalt, tires, treated lumber, and construction debris. The department may require testing of fill materials. All temporary fill must be removed. Debris and solid wastes must be properly disposed or recycled. Impacted areas must be restored to near original condition.

1

918 East	Divide Avenue	Bismarck ND 58501	-1947   Fax 701-328	3-5200   deq.n	d.gov
Director's Office 701-328-5150	Division of Air Quality 701-328-5188	Division of Municipal Facilities 701-328-5211	Division of Waste Management 701-328-5166	Division of Water Quality 701-328-5210	Division of Chemistry 701-328-6140 2635 East Main Ave Bismarck ND 58501

## RECEIVED DEC 2 6 2019

GOVERNOR, Doug Burgum DIRECTOR, Terry Steinwand DEPUTY, Scott A. Peterson



**"VARIETY IN HUNTING AND FISHING"** 

NORTH DAKOTA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT

100 NORTH BISMARCK EXPRESSWAY BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 58501-5095 PHONE 701-328-6300 FAX 701-328-6352

December 17, 2019

Matthew Schaible SEH 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, North Dakota 58503

Dear Mr. Schaible:

Re: Lincoln Mechanical Treatment Facility

The North Dakota Game and Fish Department has received notification of the City of Lincoln's proposed construction of a new mechanical treatment facility that will replace the existing lagoon system. The new facility will be constructed on city property next to the existing lagoon ponds and will consist of an influent lift station, control/laboratory building, preliminary treatment building, package plant tankage, dewatering building and a cake storage structure. The existing wastewater discharge location will be utilized for a continuous discharge. The proposed tract is located in Section 18, Township 138 North, Range 79 West in Burleigh County, North Dakota.

It appears from the solicitation that there are wetlands within the project site. If the wetland is impacted by the construction or if it is utilized as a receiving basin for stormwater runoff, it should be mitigated off-site to maintain a no net loss of wetlands due to this project. A wetland delineation should be conducted to determine exact acreage. The Department recommends a mitigation plan be submitted with any necessary permit applications to facilitate the review process.

Sincerely,

Greg Lin

Chief Conservation & Communication Division

blk



Water Commission

Be Legendary.™

RECEIVED JAN 1 4 2020 BY:

January 13, 2020

Matthew Schaible SEH 4719 Shelburne Street, STE 6 Bismarck, ND 58503

Dear Mr. Schaible:

This is in response to your request for a review of the environmental impacts associated with the Lincoln's lagoon system project.

The proposed project has been reviewed by State Water Commission staff, and the following comments are provided:

- There are floodplains identified and/or mapped where this proposed project is to take place. Areas are designated to be in Zone AE. North Dakota has no formal 'permitting' authority as a state entity in NFIP identified floodplain areas. The permitting is always done by the local entity, which has jurisdiction in the area in question. Please work closely with the City Floodplain Administrator.

- Initial review indicates the project does not require a conditional or temporary permit for water appropriation. However, if surface water or groundwater will be diverted for construction of the project, a water permit will be required per North Dakota Century Code § 61-04-02. Please consult with the Water Appropriations Division of the Office of the State Engineer if you have any questions at (701) 328-2754 or waterpermits@nd.gov.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide review comments. Should you have further questions, please contact me at 701-328-4970 or stevebest@nd.gov.

Sincerely.

Steven Best Planner III

SB:dm/1570



HISTORY FOR EVeryone.

December 30, 2019

Mr. Mattew Schaible Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 4719 Shelbourne St, Ste 6 Bismarck, ND 58503-5677

ND SHPO Ref.: 20-0150, City of Lincoln Biological Nutrient Removal continuous discharge mechanical wastewater treatment facility in portions of [T138N R79W Section 18] in Burleigh County, North Dakota

Dear Mr. Schaible,

We reviewed ND SHPO Ref.: 20-0150, City of Lincoln Biological Nutrient Removal continuous discharge mechanical wastewater treatment facility in portions of [T138N R79W Section 18] in Burleigh County, North Dakota. We recommend a Class III (pedestrian survey) of archaeological resources in the area that will be disturbed for the facility construction.

Thank you for the opportunity to review this project to date. We look forward to review of the Class III survey for archaeological resources.

Thank you for the opportunity to review this project. If you have any questions please contact Lorna Meidinger, Historic Preservation Specialist at (701) 328-2089 or <a href="https://www.ubweidinger@nd.gov">lbmeidinger@nd.gov</a>

Sincerely,

for Claudia J. Berg
State Historic Preservation Officer
(North Dakota)

North Dakota Heritage Center & State Museum 612 East Boulevard Avenue Bismarck, ND 58505-0830

701.328.2666 histsoc@nd.gov

history.nd.gov statemuseum.nd.gov



United States Department of Agriculture



Natural Resources Conservation Service

Bismarck State Office PO Box 1458 Bismarck, ND 58502-1458

Voice 701.530.2000 Fax 855-813-7556

RE: City of Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Plant Lagoon System Replacement

Dear Mr. Schaible:

Bismarck, ND 58503

January 15, 2020

ATT: Matthew Schaible, PE

Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc.

4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6

Thank you for the opportunity to provide technical input to the City of Lincoln Wastewater Treatment Plant Lagoon System Replacement. Given the limited details provided in the letter and plan map, we are not entirely clear on your specific plans for decommissioning and reclamation, but will provide you with some general recommendations.

- All requirements of 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Ch. 503 Standards for the Use of Disposal of Sewage Sludge are followed. A notable inclusion is that surface disposal is not allowed in a wetland.
- Decommissioned pond cell 1 is located in the Apple Creek 1% Annual Chance floodplain, according to FEMA FIRM. The BFE 1645 is aligned through the middle of the pond. Therefore, it would be recommended that final grading allow for natural floodplain function, and maintain sheet flow conditions over a vegetated area.
- The proposed decommissioning pond cells are located within the Apple Creek Aquifer delineation. The aquifer appears to be very shallow, a nearby groundwater well (138-79-18 DBC) shows water level range is 1635-1640, which is 8-13 feet below natural ground elevation at cell 1. The natural soils hydraulic conductivity is ~8 micrometers/sec, which with shallow groundwater levels translates to less than a week travel time. Therefore, it would seem critical to either protect existing liner material that may be in place on the ponds, or to ensure full removal of sludges and contaminated soils.
- NRCS Conservation Practice Standard 360- Waste Facility Closure, applies to closure of animal waste ponds, however it likely provides some considerations applicable to your project- see attached.
- The Web Soil Survey Suitabilities and Limitations for Use regarding Sanitary Landfill (Area) is considered "Very Limited" for Pond 1. The reason for this rating is due to flooding, ponding, and shallow depth to saturated zone. All decommissioning should consider these suitabilities and limitations. For example, cap the ponds with very low hydraulic conductivity soil, or testing of onsite soils should be considered.

In summary, decommissioning and reclamation activities should consider surface as well as ground water quality. The nearby Apple Creek, wetlands, and Apple Creek Aquifer should be protected from disposal of sewage or remnant sludge. As you

Helping People Help the Land

Mr. Schaible Page 2

know, the USDA-NRCS is not a regulatory agency, but we do provide technical input upon request as staff time allows.

Sincerely,

CHRISTI FISHER State Engineer

de 1

Enclosure: Web Soil Survey Suitabilities and Limitations for Use regarding Sanitary Landfill (Area)

cc: Jonathan Petersen, NRCS State Hydrologist Wade Bott, NRCS State Soil Scientist



**Conservation Service** 

ġ?

Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey

1/16/2020 Page 1 of 11 Sanitary Landfill (Area)—Burleigh County, North Dakota

<ul> <li>Area of meles, (AU)</li> <li>If Rating Polygons</li> <li>Very limited</li> <li>Somewhat limited</li> <li>Not rated or not available</li> <li>Not rated or not available</li> <li>Somewhat limited</li> <li>Not rated or not available</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.</li> <li>Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.</li> <li>Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.</li> <li>Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping and accuracy of so line placement. The maps do not shown the small areas of contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detail scale.</li> <li>Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map measurements.</li> <li>Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey URL:</li> <li>Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)</li> <li>Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Merca projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as t Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more accurate calculations of distance or area are required.</li> <li>This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data of the version date(s) listed below.</li> <li>Soil Survey Area: Burleigh County, North Dakota Survey Area Data: Version 20 Sen 16, 2019</li> </ul>
r Features Streams and Canals sportation + Rails	Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 1:50,000 or larger. Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Oct 19, 2014—J 2016
Interstate Highways US Routes Major Roads	The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines wer compiled and digitized probably differs from the background imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.
Local Koads	

Natural Resources Conservation Service

Adsu

Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey

1/16/2020 Page 2 of 11

i,

10

# Sanitary Landfill (Area)

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Component name (percent)	Rating reasons (numeric values)	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI	
C19A Magnus silty clay loam, 0 to 1 percent slopes	Very limited	Magnus (80%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)	4.0	2.1%		
	1. T.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Dusty (0.05)				
		· · · . ·	Straw, rarely flooded (5%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)			
		1.1.1.1		Flooding (0.40)			
	×-	5- a .	-	Dusty (0.03)			
			Harriet,	Flooding (1.00)			
			flooded (4%)	Ponding (1.00)			
		Depth to saturated zone (1.00)					
		$= \  e^{-i t} e^{-i t} e^{-i t} y - e^{i t} e^{-i t} y - e^{-i t} y - e^{-i t} e^{-i t} e^{-i t} y - e^{-i t} e^{-i t} e^{-i t} y - e^{-i t} e^{-i t}$		Dusty (0.04)			
		1 You see at	Ludden,	Flooding (1.00)			
		flooded (4%	flooded (4%)	Ponding (1.00)			
				1997 1997 1997 - 1997	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
		6 - 1 <sup>0</sup> - 1	D	Dusty (0.05)			
			· · · · ·	Fluvaquents,	Flooding (1.00)		
			channeled, frequently	Ponding (1.00)			
			flooded (2%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)			
			at the second	Seepage (1.00)	·		
		5	Du	Dusty (0.01)		9	
		2 2 - 19 - 19 5 - 19	Daglum (2%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)	· 2		
<i>ii</i>		- E		Dusty (0.05)			
317B	Lihen-Telfer	Very limited	Lihen (50%)	Seepage (1.00)	0.1	0.1%	
	sands, 0 to 6		Telfer (35%)	Seepage (1.00)			
	percent slopes		Appam (4%)	Seepage (1.00)			
			Flaxton (4%)	Seepage (1.00)			
			Parshall (4%)	Seepage (1.00)			
				Dusty (0.01)			

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Component name (percent)	Rating reasons (numeric values)	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI
			Hamar (3%)	Ponding (1.00)		
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Seepage (1.00)	<u> </u>	-
C457A	Grassna silt	Somewhat	Grassna (88%)	Dusty (0.05)	11.2	5.7%
	loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes	limited	Wilton (4%)	Dusty (0.05)		
		1. 150 Million	Temvik (3%)	Dusty (0.05)		
			Linton (2%)	Dusty (0.05)		
			Mandan (2%)	Dusty (0.05)		
C490A	Straw loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes	Very limited	Straw, rarely flooded (75%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)	22.5	11.4%
				Flooding (0.40)		
		and the second of the	121 11 1	Dusty (0.03)		
	2		Velva, rarely flooded (5%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
	0	ć- , -		Seepage (1.00)		
		d fe was		Flooding (0.40)		
				Dusty (0.00)		
			Korchea,	Flooding (1.00)		-
			occasionally flooded (5%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
		gen ander	and the second	Dusty (0.03)		
			Daglum (4%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
		11 A.		Dusty (0.05)		141
	, *	1.	Fluvaquents,	Flooding (1.00)		· · · ·
			channeled, frequently	Ponding (1.00)		
			flooded (4%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
		100	_	Seepage (1.00)		
		i dan sa	200 g.c.	Dusty (0.01)		
		a georgene	Lowe,	Flooding (1.00)		
		- 1. No	occasionally flooded (4%)	Ponding (1.00)		
17 <b>3</b> .	- · · ·	and e at the star		Depth to saturated zone (1.00)	X	

Å

6

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Component name (percent)	Rating reasons (numeric values)	Acres in AOI	Percent of AO
			Ranslo,	Flooding (1.00)		
			occasionally flooded (3%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.04)		
C491A	Straw-	Very limited	Straw, frequently	Flooding (1.00)	13.6	6.9%
	channeled, complex, 0 to 2 percent		1100ded (40%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
	slopes, frequently		x	Dusty (0.03)		
	flooded	-	Fluvaquents,	Flooding (1.00)		
			frequently	Ponding (1.00)		
			flooded (30%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
		5 1 std		Seepage (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.01)		
			Velva, rarely flooded (10%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		-
			1 m	Seepage (1.00)		
	а. С	i.		Flooding (0.40)		
				Dusty (0.00)		
			Ranslo,	Flooding (1.00)		
	=	نانی جان <sup>ی مر</sup>	flooded (6%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Dusty (0.04)		
			Rhoades (5%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
·				Dusty (0.05)		
			Lallie, frequently	Flooding (1.00)		
			1100ded (5%)	Ponding (1.00)		
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		-
				Dusty (0.05)		
			Lehr (4%)	Seepage (1.00)		
_		1.1		Dusty (0.02)		
C525A	Daglum-Belfield- Harriet occasionally flooded	Very limited	Daglum (39%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)	0.6	0.3%

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Component name (percent)	Rating reasons (numeric values)	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI
	complex, 0 to			Dusty (0.05)		
	2 percent slopes	slopes	Belfield (30%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.05)		
			Harriet,	Flooding (1.00)		
		flooded (18%)	Ponding (1.00)			
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.04)		
		-	Straw, rarely flooded (10%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
		7	Grail (1%)	Flooding (0.40)		
				Dusty (0.03)		
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.05)		
C584A	584A Harriet Ioam, 0	Harriet Ioam, 0 to 2 percent slopes Ranslo, occasior flooded	Harriet,	Flooding (1.00)	4.0	2.0%
	to 2 percent slopes		occasionally flooded (76%)	Ponding (1.00)		
	siopes			Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		Ţ
				Dusty (0.04)		
			Ranslo,	Flooding (1.00)		
			occasionally flooded (7%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.04)		
			Fluvaquents,	Flooding (1.00)	]	
			frequently	Ponding (1.00)		
		flooded (5	flooded (5%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Seepage (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.01)		
			Lowe,	Flooding (1.00)		
			occasionally flooded (5%)	Ponding (1.00)		
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		

USDA

ė

ŝ.

ii.

symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Component name (percent)	Rating reasons (numeric values)	Acres in AOI	Percent of AO
			/	Dusty (0.04)		
			Marysland (3%)	Ponding (1.00)		
				Seepage (1.00)		
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.03)		
			Straw,	Flooding (1.00)		
			flooded (2%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)	بر المراجع المراجع المراجع	
		100		Dusty (0.03)		÷.
			Stirum,	Flooding (1.00)		
			occasionally flooded (2%)	Ponding (1.00)		
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
	·			Seepage (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.01)		
661A	Niobell-Noonan Ioams, 0 to 3 percent slopes	Very limited	Niobell (46%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)	0.2	0.1%
				Dusty (0.04)		
			Noonan (37%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.04)		
			Hamerly (5%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.04)	44 - Alexandria	
			Bowbells (3%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.04)		
			Hamerly, moderately saline (2%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.04)		
	~		Miranda (2%)	Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.04)		
-			Heil (2%)	Ponding (1.00)		



Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Component name (percent)	Rating reasons (numeric values)	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.05)		
			Parnell (1%)	Ponding (1.00)		
				Depth to saturated zone (1.00)		
				Dusty (0.05)		
C710D	Linton-Mandan silt loams, 9 to	n Somewhat to limited	Linton (47%)	Slope (0.63)	1.6	0.8%
				Dusty (0.05)		
	slopes		Mandan (32%)	Slope (0.63)		
				Dusty (0.05)		
			Bryant (3%)	Slope (0.63)		
				Dusty (0.05)		
			Temvik (3%)	Slope (0.63)		
				Dusty (0.05)		1
C740A	Temvik silt loam,	k silt loam, Somewhat 3 percent limited es	Temvik (89%)	Dusty (0.05)	53.2	27.0%
	0 to 3 percent		Mandan (3%)	Dusty (0.05)		
	Siches		Wilton (3%)	Dusty (0.05)		
			Williams (2%)	Dusty (0.04)		* 2
			Linton (2%)	Dusty (0.05)		
C740B	Temvik silt loam, 3 to 6 percent slopes	Somewhat limited	Temvik (85%)	Dusty (0.05)	19.2	9.7%
			Wilton (5%)	Dusty (0.05)		
			Williams (4%)	Dusty (0.04)		
			Linton (3%)	Dusty (0.05)		
			Mandan (2%)	Dusty (0.05)		
C740C	Temvik silt loam, 6 to 9 percent slopes	n, Somewhat ht limited	Temvik (83%)	Dusty (0.05)	16.0	8.1%
			Williams (5%)	Dusty (0.04)		
			Sutley (5%)	Dusty (0.05)		
			Wilton (4%)	Dusty (0.05)		
			Linton (2%)	Dusty (0.05)		
C761A	Parshall-Lihen fine sandy loams, 0 to 2 percent slopes	nen Very limited y to 2 slopes	Parshall (65%)	Seepage (1.00)	5.9	3.0%
				Dusty (0.01)		s
			Lihen (28%)	Seepage (1.00)		
			Appam (2%)	Seepage (1.00)		
			Flaxton (2%)	Seepage (1.00)		
C964D	Sen-Werner complex, 9 to	Very limited	Sen (40%)	Depth to bedrock (1.00)	0.9	0.5%



Г

Г

Map unit symbol	Map unit name	Rating	Component name (percent)	Rating reasons (numeric values)	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI
4	15 percent	1.1.1	inata ta Pa	Slope (0.63)		
	oloped		2 No. 12	Dusty (0.04)		
			Werner (35%)	Depth to bedrock (1.00)		
				Slope (0.63)		
	1		- 1 C - 1 C - 1 C -	Dusty (0.03)	<u>.</u>	11 12 11
			Cohagen (8%)	Depth to bedrock (1.00)	a stille Saletta	
				Slope (0.63)		
			Vebar (5%)	Depth to bedrock (1.00)	1 - 1 2 - 1 2 - 1	
				Seepage (1.00)		
	····· 31 ···	· · · · ·	i state	Slope (0.63)		
		2. 	Janesburg (4%)	Depth to bedrock (1.00)		
				Slope (0.37)		
		· · · · · · · · · · · ·	Statistics and	Dusty (0.05)		
996	Water	Not rated	Water (100%)		3.1	1.6%
998	Water, miscellaneous	Not rated	Water, miscellaneous (100%)		41.1	20.8%
tals for Area o	of Interest	197.2	100.0%			

Rating	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI	
Somewhat limited	101.1	51.3%	
Very limited	51.9	26.3%	
Null or Not Rated	44.2	22.4%	
Totals for Area of Interest	197.2	100.0%	

### Description

In an "area sanitary landfill," solid waste is placed in successive layers on the surface of the soil. The waste is spread, compacted, and covered daily with a thin layer of soil from a source away from the site. A final cover of soil material at least 2 feet thick is placed over the completed landfill. A landfill must be able to bear heavy vehicular traffic. It can result in the pollution of ground water. Ease of excavation and revegetation should be considered.

The ratings are based on the soil properties that affect trafficability and the risk of pollution. These properties include flooding, saturated hydraulic conductivity (Ksat), depth to a water table, ponding, slope, and depth to bedrock or a cemented pan. Flooding is a serious problem because it can result in pollution in areas downstream from the landfill. If Ksat is too rapid or if fractured bedrock, a fractured cemented pan, or the water table is close to the surface, the leachate can contaminate the water supply. Slope is a consideration because of the extra grading required to maintain roads in the steeper areas of the landfill. Also, leachate may flow along the surface of the soils in the steeper areas and cause difficult seepage problems.

The ratings are both verbal and numerical. Rating class terms indicate the extent to which the soils are limited by all of the soil features that affect the specified use. "Not limited" indicates that the soil has features that are very favorable for the specified use. Good performance and very low maintenance can be expected. "Somewhat limited" indicates that the soil has features that are moderately favorable for the specified use. The limitations can be overcome or minimized by special planning, design, or installation. Fair performance and moderate maintenance can be expected. "Very limited" indicates that the soil has one or more features that are unfavorable for the specified use. The limitations generally cannot be overcome without major soil reclamation, special design, or expensive installation procedures. Poor performance and high maintenance can be expected.

Numerical ratings indicate the severity of individual limitations. The ratings are shown as decimal fractions ranging from 0.01 to 1.00. They indicate gradations between the point at which a soil feature has the greatest negative impact on the use (1.00) and the point at which the soil feature is not a limitation (0.00).

The map unit components listed for each map unit in the accompanying Summary by Map Unit table in Web Soil Survey or the Aggregation Report in Soil Data Viewer are determined by the aggregation method chosen. An aggregated rating class is shown for each map unit. The components listed for each map unit are only those that have the same rating class as listed for the map unit. The percent composition of each component in a particular map unit is presented to help the user better understand the percentage of each map unit that has the rating presented.

Other components with different ratings may be present in each map unit. The ratings for all components, regardless of the map unit aggregated rating, can be viewed by generating the equivalent report from the Soil Reports tab in Web Soil Survey or from the Soil Data Mart site. Onsite investigation may be needed to

9 I L

validate these interpretations and to confirm the identity of the soil on a given site.

### **Rating Options**

Aggregation Method: Dominant Condition Component Percent Cutoff: None Specified Tie-break Rule: Higher


\* I - C

•





United States Department of Agriculture

USDA-NRCS – North Dakota FOTG – Section IV – Conservation Practices Page 1 of 5

## Natural Resources Conservation Service CONSERVATION PRACTICE STANDARD

## WASTE FACILITY CLOSURE

(No.)

#### **CODE 360**

#### I. DEFINITION

The decommissioning of facilities, and/or the rehabilitation of contaminated soil, in an environmentally safe manner, where agricultural waste has been handled, treated, and/or stored and is no longer used for the intended purpose.

#### II. PURPOSE

- Protect the quality of surface water and groundwater resources.
- Mitigate air emissions.
- Eliminate a safety hazard for humans and livestock.
- Safeguard the public health.

## **III. CONDITIONS WHERE PRACTICE APPLIES**

This practice applies to agricultural waste facilities or livestock production sites that are no longer needed as a part of a waste management system and are to be permanently closed or converted for another use. These facilities include liquid/dry waste storage facilities, confined animal housing, feedlots, livestock yards, or composting facilities.

This practice applies where impoundments that are to be converted to fresh water storage meet current NRCS standards.

Where structures that include agricultural waste storage, such as confined animal housing, are to be decommissioned, this practice will apply to the removal of the waste and rehabilitation of soil within the facility.

This practice applies to remediation of soil contaminated by agricultural wastes that have been stored onsite.

It does not apply to sites contaminated by materials that require the issuance of a hazardous waste permit, such as fuel or pesticides.

#### **IV. CRITERIA**

#### General Criteria Applicable to All Purposes

The closure shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, and regulations including national pollutant discharge elimination system (NPDES) requirements.

All necessary local, state, and federal permits shall be obtained by the producer or their designee. Construction specifications and/or drawings will specify that NRCS be provided copies of all required permits prior to construction.

#### USDA-NRCS – North Dakota FOTG – Section IV – Conservation Practices Page 2 of 5

Excavation or embankment work within or near streams and wetlands may require a permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in accordance with Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (Bismarck Regulatory Office 701-255-0015). Projects that disturb more than 1 acre are required to develop a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan, and submit it along with a Notice of Intent to the ND Department of Health (stormwater@nd.gov). Projects within the ordinary high-water mark of navigable lakes and streams require a Sovereign Lands Permit from the ND State Water Commission (sovereignlands@nd.gov). Ensure that proposed embankments and/or overall site gradings involving fill do not increase the Base Flood (100-year recurrence interval) Elevation within Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) by more than the allowable as defined by the local County Floodplain Administrator. Obtain a floodplain development permit through the local County Floodplain Administrator and the ND State Water Commission Floodplain Management Regulatory Program as necessary.

In addressing the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) for conservation practices within or near wetlands, sequencing must be conducted as per Executive Order 11990 included in Section G. Wetlands of the NRCS-CPA-052. Sequencing must include avoiding impacts if feasible. If avoidance is not feasible, a determination will be made using the North Dakota Minimal Effect Evaluation Worksheet. If the effects are determined to be minimal, the determination will be included in the NRCS-CPA-052. If the determination is not minimal, wetland mitigation must be completed. Implementation of the conservation practice(s) impacting the wetland(s) may begin upon obtaining all signatures on the wetland mitigation plan and agreement.

Existing waste transfer components that convey to waste facilities or provide drainage from the facility area shall be removed and replaced with compacted earth material or otherwise rendered unable to convey waste.

Remove manure, agricultural waste, and contaminated soil to the maximum extent practicable. All manure and agricultural waste that could negatively impact water and/or air quality or pose a safety hazard shall be removed as deemed practicable. All liquid, slurry, sludge, and solid waste, and soil removed from the facility shall be utilized in accordance with NRCS Conservation Practice Standards, Nutrient Management, Code 590 and/or Waste Utilization, Code 633.

Precautions (fencing and warning signs) shall be used where necessary to ensure that the facility is not used for purposes incompatible with the facility modification.

**Erosion and Pollution Control.** All disturbed areas shall be re-vegetated or treated with other suitable measures used to control erosion and restore the aesthetic value of the site. Sites, not suitable for re-vegetation through normal cropping practices, shall be vegetated in accordance with NRCS Conservation Practice Standard, Critical Area Planting, Code 342.

**Liquid and Slurry Waste Removal**. Liquid and slurry wastes shall be agitated and pumped to the maximum extent practicable. Water shall be added as necessary to facilitate the agitation and pumping. The wastewater shall be utilized in accordance with NRCS Conservation Practice Standard, Nutrient Management, Code 590 and/or Waste Utilization, Code 633.

**Sludge Removal**. During sludge removal operations, the integrity of the liner, if one is present, shall be maintained. Sludge shall be removed to the maximum extent practicable. Where manure has infiltrated into earthen storage facilities, sludge and contaminated soil shall be excavated to a depth beyond where manure-caused soil discoloration occurs.

**Sludge shall be hauled to an approved waste disposal site or** utilized in accordance with NRCS Conservation Practice Standard, Nutrient Management, Code 590 and/or Waste Utilization, Code 633.

**Impoundment Closure.** Three options are associated with the decommissioning of liquid waste impoundments. One of the following will be used. Waste and sludge shall be removed prior to breaching, backfilling, or conversion unless otherwise specified.

- Embankment Impoundments (those with a depth of water at the design water level of three feet or more above natural ground) may be breached so that they no longer impound water. The embankment material can then be graded into the impoundment area, and the area vegetated for another use. Or the embankment may remain if the impoundment area surface has been sufficiently cleaned so that runoff leaving the site would not be considered as contaminated by the wastes.
- 2. Excavated Impoundments may be backfilled so that these areas may be reclaimed for other uses.
- 3. Impoundments may be converted to fresh water storage.

<u>Embankment Impoundments</u>. Waste and sludge shall be removed from the impoundment before the embankment is breached. Concrete and flexible membrane liners shall be removed or rendered unable to impound water and properly disposed of. The slopes and bottom of the breach shall be stable for the soil material involved, however the side slopes shall be no steeper than three horizontal to one vertical (3:1). **Excavate sludge can be removed post-breaching**.

Excavated Impoundments. Concrete and flexible membrane liners shall be removed or rendered unable to impound water and properly disposed of. The backfill height shall exceed the height to the design finished grade by a minimum of 5 percent to allow for settlement. The top one foot of the backfill shall be constructed of the most impervious soil material readily available and mounded to shed rainfall runoff. Incorporate available topsoil where feasible to aid establishment of vegetation.

<u>Conversion to Fresh Water Storage</u>. The converted impoundment shall meet the requirements as set forth in the appropriate NRCS practice standard for the intended purpose. Where the original impoundment was not constructed to meet NRCS standards, the investigation for structural integrity shall be in accordance with National Engineering Manual (NEM) 501.23. When it is not practical to remove the sludge from a waste impoundment that is being converted to fresh water storage, the impoundment shall not be used for fish production, swimming, or livestock watering until the water quality is adequate for these purposes.

**Fabricated Liquid Waste Facilities**. If fabricated structures are to be demolished, disassembled or otherwise altered, it shall be done to such an extent that no water can be impounded. Disassembled materials such as pieces of metal shall be temporarily stored in such a manner that they do not pose a hazard to animals or humans until their final disposition.

Demolished materials shall be buried on-site or moved off-site to locations designated by state or local officials. If buried on-site, the materials are to be covered with soil to a settled depth of at least one foot. The backfill height shall exceed the height to the design finished grade by a minimum of 5 percent to allow for settlement, and the backfill be sufficiently mounded such that runoff will be diverted from the site after the backfill settles.

**Dry Waste Storage or Treatment Facilities.** The soil at dry waste facilities such as confined animal housing, feedlots, livestock yards, or composting facilities with earthen floors must be evaluated.

The evaluation shall include laboratory analyses of the soil profile for any nutrients for which specific information is needed to determine the required depth of rehabilitation. Soil samples shall be taken at multiple locations and depths within the facility. One sample per depth interval per acre of the area being decommissioned with a minimum of 3 samples per depth interval shall be taken. Samples taken for each specified sampling depth interval may be consolidated into a single set (e.g., 3 samples taken at the 0 to 6 inch depth interval may be consolidated into a single for testing). The samples shall be collected, prepared and tested in accordance with NRCS Conservation Practice Standard, Nutrient Management, Code 590.

The results of the soil analysis will be used to prepare a plan to recover the site for its intended use. The following site appropriate options shall be utilized, if needed:

- Adjust pH to restore desired crop growing conditions. The desired range should be between 4.5 and 8.5 and will ultimately depend upon the planned use of the soil. Refer to NDSU Extension Service <u>SF-1321</u> "Effectiveness of Gypsum in the North Central Region of the U.S." and UNL Fact Sheet <u>G-1504</u> "Lime Use for Soil Acidity Management."
- 2. Plant salt tolerant plants to restore the site to desired crop conditions. The harvested vegetation quality should be monitored for N, P, and K removal.
- 3. Select plants and erosion control practices to minimize phosphorus transport from the site and facilitate remediation of excessively high phosphorus levels.

If nutrient or salt stratification is an issue, performing tillage (i.e., plowing ripping, etc.) can be used to mix layers and dilute undesirable levels of nutrients and salts to allow vegetation establishment. Careful consideration must be given to prevent erosion and nutrient sediment loss from the site.

Although in-situ processes are the preferred method for adjusting the soil conditions, removal of a portion of the soil may be necessary. The removed soil shall be land applied in accordance with NRCS Conservation Practice Standard, Nutrient Management, Code 590 and/or Waste Utilization, Code 633. Excavated areas shall be graded and or backfilled to shed rainfall and prevent ponding of runoff. Where feasible, available topsoil should be used to aid the establishment of permanent vegetation.

#### **V. CONSIDERATIONS**

Conduct pre-closure soil and water (surface and subsurface) testing to establish base line data surrounding the site at the time of closure. Establishing baseline data can be used in the future to address soil and water issues.

Where the surface is covered by a dense mat of floating vegetation, pumping effort to empty waste impoundments may be reduced by first applying herbicide to the vegetation and then burning the residue. Appropriate permits must be obtained before burning. When burning is conducted, take necessary actions to ensure that smoke is managed to minimize impacts to downwind populations. Follow NRCS Conservation Practice Standard, Prescribed Burning, Code 338 for applicable criteria regarding a planned burn.

Alternative methods of sludge removal may be required where the impoundments contain large amounts of bedding, oyster shells, soil, or other debris.

Minimize the impact of odors associated with land applying dry wastes and with agitation, emptying, and land applying wastewater and sludge from a waste impoundment by conducting these operations at a time when the humidity is low, when winds are calm, and when wind direction is away from populated areas. Adding chemical and biological additives to the waste prior to agitation and emptying can reduce odors. Odor impacts from land application can also be mitigated by using an incorporation application method.

Minimize agitation of the wastes to only the amount needed for pumping to reduce the potential for release of air emissions.

Soil to fill excavated areas should not come from important farmlands (prime, statewide, local, and/or unique).

Waste facility closure may improve utilization and aesthetics of the farmstead.

Breached embankments may detract from the overall aesthetics of the operation. Embankments should be removed and the site returned to its original grade.

Disassembled fabricated structures may be suitable for assembly at another site. Care should be taken during closure to minimize damage to the pieces of the facility, particularly coatings that prevent corrosion of metal pieces.

Conservation Practice Standard – 360 August 2018 Measures should be taken during contractor's activities to minimize site erosion and pollution of downstream water resources. This may include such items as silt fences, hay bale barriers, temporary vegetation, and mulching.

To minimize potential impacts to livestock, such as nitrate poisoning, initiate a testing and monitoring program of nutrient levels in crop products, particularly livestock feeds, harvested from sites of closed animal confinement facilities.

#### VI. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

Plans and specifications for the decommissioning of abandoned waste facilities and the rehabilitation of contaminated soil shall be in keeping with this standard and shall describe the requirements for applying the practice to achieve its intended purpose. At a minimum, include the following:

- 1. A plan view showing the location and extent of the practice.
- 2. Pertinent elevations of the closed facility and excavation limits.
- 3. Number, capacity, and quality of facility(ies) and estimate of soil volume to be moved.
- 4. Location of known utilities.
- 5. Requirements for salvage and disposal of structural materials.
- 6. Vegetative requirements.
- 7. Utilization Plan for animal wastes and soil.
- 8. Odor management or mitigation requirement.
- 9. Safety plan requirements. Note: Per Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) confined space entry protocol, personnel shall not enter confined space of an enclosed waste facility without breathing apparatus or taking other appropriate measures.

#### **VII. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE**

The proper decommissioning and rehabilitation of a waste facility should require little or no operation and maintenance. However, if it is converted to another use, such as a fresh water facility, operation and maintenance shall be in accordance with the needs as set forth in the appropriate NRCS conservation practice standard for the intended purpose.

#### **VIII. REFERENCES**

Rice, J.M., D.F. Caldwell, and F.J. Humenik. Ed. 2006. Closure of Earthen Manure Structures in Animal Agriculture and the Environment: National Center for Manure and Animal Waste Management White Papers, pp. 263-282. ASABE. Pub. Number 913C0306.



RECEIVED DEC 1 2 2019

Building a Better World for All of Us<sup>®</sup>

December 11, 2019

Scott Larson Ecological Services U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 3425 Miriam Avenue Bismarck, ND 58501

Dear Mr. Larson:

The City of Lincoln is in the process of performing a Preliminary Environmental Review pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act in order that it may assess the environmental impacts due to construction and operation of a mechanical treatment facility that will replace the City's existing lagoon system.

The funding for this project consists of State Revolving Fund through the ND Department of Health and City of Lincoln funds.

This project will involve construction of a Biological Nutrient Removal (BNR) continuous discharge mechanical wastewater treatment facility in order to increase the City's wastewater treatment capacity. The new facility will be constructed on city property next to the existing lagoon ponds and will consist of an influent lift station, control/laboratory building, preliminary treatment building, package plant tankage, dewatering building, and a cake storage structure, all to be located on the south side of the existing pond system. The existing wastewater discharge location will be utilized for a continuous discharge. Once the facility is operational, lagoon cell 2 will function as an equalization pond, while the other three cells will be decommissioned and reclaimed. An easement may be required for extension of utilities to the treatment site.

To ensure that all social, economic, and environmental effects are considered in the development of this project, we are soliciting your views and comments on the proposed project pursuant to Section 102(2) (D) (VI) of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended. We are particularly interested in any comments in regards to the decommissioning and reclamation of the lagoon pond area.

It is requested that any comments be forwarded to our office on or before January 20, 2020. If no reply is received by this date, it will be assumed that you have no comments on this project.

Letter of Solicitation December 11, 2019 Page 2

Responses can be mailed to:

ATT: Matthew Schaible, PE Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, ND 58503

If further information is desired regarding the proposed water transmission line project, you may call me at (701) 354-7121.

Sincerely,

SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC.

Mattlew Chaible

Matthew Schaible **Project Engineer** 

CLH Attachments: Lincoln Municipal Boundary and Existing Wastewater Treatment Facility Proposed Continuous Discharge BNR Mechanical Facility Location

> U.S. FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE ND Ecological Service Field Office Project as described is not expected to have significant impact on fish and wildlife resources. Contact this office if changes to the project are made or new information becomes available.

<u>[] [] []</u> Date

Ð North Dakota State Supervisor



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, OMAHA DISTRICT NORTH DAKOTA REGULATORY OFFICE 3319 UNIVERSITY DRIVE BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 58504-7565

RECEIVED DEC 2 3 2019

December 20, 2019

## NWO-2004-60385-BIS

Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. Attn: Mr. Matthew Schaible 4719 Shelburne Street, Suite 6 Bismarck, North Dakota 58503

Dear Mr. Schaible:

This is in response to your letter dated December 11, 2019, requesting comments on the proposed City of Lincoln; Biological Nutrient Removal (BNR) continuous discharge mechanical wastewater treatment facility construction project. The project is located in the NW ¼ of Section 18, Township 138 North, Range 79 West, Burleigh County, North Dakota.

U. S. Army Corps of Engineers Regulatory Offices administer Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (Section 404). A Section 404 permit would be required for the discharge of dredge or fill material (temporarily or permanently) in waters of the United States. Waters of the United States may include, but are not limited to, rivers, streams, ditches, coulees, lakes, ponds, and their adjacent wetlands. Fill material includes, but is not limited to, rock, sand, soil, clay, plastics, construction debris, wood chips, overburden from mines or other excavation activities and materials used to create any structure or infrastructure in waters of the United States.

Based on the information contained in your letter, the Corps has determined that your proposed project may need a Clean Water Act Section 404 permit. The permit application and instructions for completing the application are enclosed and may also be found at: http://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/Civil-Works/Regulatory-Program-and-Permits/Obtain-a-Permit. Be sure to accurately describe all proposed work and construction methodology. Once the application is complete, mail it to the letterhead address or to the email address below.

The North Dakota Regulatory office can accept (and prefers) electronic submissions to the following email: CENWO-OD-RND@usace.army.mil.

Please refer to identification number NWO-2004-60385-BIS in any correspondence concerning this project. If you have any questions, please contact Jeremy Nygard at U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, North Dakota Regulatory Office, 3319 University Drive, Bismarck, North Dakota 58504-7565, by email at *Jeremy.S.Nygard@usace.army.mil*, or telephone at (701) 255-0015 X 2006. For more information regarding our program, please visit our website at

http://www.nwo.usace.army.mil/Missions/RegulatoryProgram/NorthDakota.aspx.

Sincerely,

MCQUEARY.PATRI Digitally signed by MCQUEARY.PATRICIA.L.1369971 936 Date: 2019.12.20 11:15:36 -06'00'

Patricia L. McQueary State Program Manager North Dakota

Enclosure

- ENG 4345 Permit Application Form
- Permit Application Instructions

### U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) APPLICATION FOR DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY PERMIT

33 CFR 325. The proponent agency is CECW-CO-R.

Form Approved -OMB No. 0710-0003 Expires: 02-28-2022

The public reporting burden for this collection of information, OMB Control Number 0710-0003, is estimated to average 11 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or burden reduction suggestions to the Department of Defense, Washington Headquarters Services, at <u>whs.mc-alex.esd.mbx.dd-dod-information-collections@mail.mil</u>. Respondents should be aware that notwithstanding any other provision of law, no person shall be subject to any penalty for failing to comply with a collection of information if it does not display a currently valid OMB control number. PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR APPLICATION TO THE ABOVE EMAIL.

#### PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

Authorities: Rivers and Harbors Act, Section 10, 33 USC 403; Clean Water Act, Section 404, 33 USC 1344; Marine Protection, Research, and Sanctuaries Act, Section 103, 33 USC 1413; Regulatory Programs of the Corps of Engineers; Final Rule 33 CFR 320-332. Principal Purpose: Information provided on this form will be used in evaluating the application for a permit. Routine Uses: This information may be shared with the Department of Justice and other federal, state, and local government agencies, and the public and may be made available as part of a public notice as required by Federal Iaw. Submission of requested information is voluntary, however, if information is not provided the permit application cannot be evaluated nor can a permit be issued. One set of original drawings or good reproducible copies which show the location and character of the proposed activity must be attached to this application (see sample drawings and/or instructions) and be submitted to the District Engineer having jurisdiction over the location of the proposed activity. An application that is not completed in full will be returned. System of Record Notice (SORN). The information received is entered into our permit tracking database and a SORN has been completed (SORN #A1145b) and may be accessed at the following website: <a href="http://dpcld.defense.gov/Privacy/SORNsIndex/DOD-wide-SORN-Article-View/Article/570115/a1145b-ce.aspx">http://dpcld.defense.gov/Privacy/SORNsIndex/DOD-wide-SORN-Article-View/Article/570115/a1145b-ce.aspx</a>

	(TEMS THRO 4 TO BE		E CORFS)				
1. APPLICATION NO.	2. FIELD OFFICE CODE		3. DATE RECEIVED	4. DATE APPLICATION COMPLET			
(ITEMS BELOW TO BE FILLED BY APPLICANT)							
5. APPLICANT'S NAME		8. AUTHORIZED AGENT'S NAME AND TITLE (agent is not required)					
First - Middle -	Last -	First -	Middle -	Last	-		
Company -		Company -					
E-mail Address -		E-mail Address	3 -				
6. APPLICANT'S ADDRESS:		9. AGENT'S A	DDRESS:				
Address-		Address-					
City - State -	Zip - Country -	City -	State -	Zip -	Country -		
7. APPLICANT'S PHONE NOS. w/AREA COD	E	10. AGENTS PHONE NOs. w/AREA CODE					
a. Residence b. Business	c. Fax	a. Residence	b. Business	C.	Fax		
	STATEMENT OF	AUTHORIZATIO	ON				
11. I hereby authorize, to act in my behalf as my agent in the processing of this application and to furnish, upon request, supplemental information in support of this permit application.							
·	SIGNATURE OF APPLICA	NT	DATE				
NA	ME, LOCATION, AND DESCRIF	TION OF PRO	JECT OR ACTIVITY				
12. PROJECT NAME OR TITLE (see instructio	ns)						
13. NAME OF WATERBODY, IF KNOWN (if ap	oplicable)	14. PROJECT	STREET ADDRESS (if a	applicable)			
		Address					
15. LOCATION OF PROJECT							
Latitude: •N Longitu	ıde: ∘W	City -	Sta	ite-	Zip-		
16. OTHER LOCATION DESCRIPTIONS, IF K	NOWN (see instructions)						
State Tax Parcel ID	Municipality						
Section - Township -		Range	-				
ENG FORM 4345, FEB 2019	PREVIOUS EDI	TIONS ARE OB	SOLETE.		Page 1 of 3		

17.	DIREC	TIONS	то	THE	SITE
-----	-------	-------	----	-----	------

18. Nature of Activity (Description of project, include all features)

19. Project Purpose (Describe the reason or purpose of the project, see instructions)

#### USE BLOCKS 20-23 IF DREDGED AND/OR FILL MATERIAL IS TO BE DISCHARGED

20. Reason(s) for Discharge

21. Type(s) of Material Being Discharged and the Amount of Each Type in Cubic Yards: Type Type

Amount in Cubic Yards

Type Amount in Cubic Yards

Type Amount in Cubic Yards

22. Surface Area in Acres of Wetlands or Other Waters Filled (see instructions)

Acres

or Linear Feet

Linear ree

23. Description of Avoidance, Minimization, and Compensation (see instructions)

24. Is Any Portion of the	e Work Already Complete?	Yes No IF YES, D	ESCRIBE THE COMPLI	ETED WORK	NTEEN-MOTOR DE COMMENSATION
25 Addresses of Adjoin	ing Property Owners, Lessee	s Etc. Whose Property Adi	oins the Waterbody //fma	ro than one ha entered here, places of	
Address-		s, Etc., Whose Property Auj	onis the waterbody (initia	re man can be entered nere, please at	tach a supplemental list).
ity -		State -		Zip -	
. Address-					
ity -		State -		Zip -	
Address-					
ity -		State -		Zip -	
Address-					
ity -		State -		Zip -	
. Address-					
N14		01-1-		<b></b> .	
		State -		Zip -	
6. List of Other Certifica	ttes of Approvals/Denials rece TYPE APPROVAL*	IDENTIFICATION	ate, or Local Agencies fo	or Work Described in This App DATE APPROVED	DATE DENIED
		NUMBER		DATERATIONED	BATE BEINED
Would include but is not	restricted to zoning, building.	and flood plain permits			1999
7. Application is hereby omplete and accurate. I oplicant.	made for permit or permits to further certify that I possess t	authorize the work describe he authority to undertake th	ed in this application. I c e work described herein	ertify that this information in t or am acting as the duly auth	his application is norized agent of the
SIGNATURE	OF APPLICANT	DATE	SIGNATU	RE OF AGENT	DATE
ne Application must b athorized agent if the	e signed by the person wh statement in block 11 has	o desires to undertake the been filled out and signe	ne proposed activity (a	applicant) or it may be sigr	ned by a duly
3 U.S.C. Section 1001 lowingly and willfully f atements or represen atements or entry, sha	l provides that: Whoever, i falsifies, conceals, or cove tations or makes or uses a all be fined not more than	in any manner within the rs up any trick, scheme, any false writing or docun \$10,000 or imprisoned no	jurisdiction of any dep or disguises a materia nent knowing same to ot more than five year	partment or agency of the al fact or makes any false, o contain any false, fictitiou s or both.	United States fictitious or fraudulent is or fraudulent

5

#### Instructions for Preparing a Department of the Army Permit Application

Blocks 1 through 4. To be completed by Corps of Engineers.

**Block 5. Applicant's Name.** Enter the name and the E-mail address of the responsible party or parties. If the responsible party is an agency, company, corporation, or other organization, indicate the name of the organization and responsible officer and title. If more than one party is associated with the application, please attach a sheet with the necessary information marked Block 5.

**Block 6. Address of Applicant.** Please provide the full address of the party or parties responsible for the application. If more space is needed, attach an extra sheet of paper marked Block 6.

Block 7. Applicant Telephone Number(s). Please provide the number where you can usually be reached during normal business hours.

Blocks 8 through 11. To be completed, if you choose to have an agent.

**Block 8. Authorized Agent's Name and Title.** Indicate name of individual or agency, designated by you, to represent you in this process. An agent can be an attorney, builder, contractor, engineer, or any other person or organization. Note: An agent is not required.

Blocks 9 and 10. Agent's Address and Telephone Number. Please provide the complete mailing address of the agent, along with the telephone number where he / she can be reached during normal business hours.

Block 11. Statement of Authorization. To be completed by applicant, if an agent is to be employed.

Block 12. Proposed Project Name or Title. Please provide name identifying the proposed project, e.g., Landmark Plaza, Burned Hills Subdivision, or Edsall Commercial Center.

Block 13. Name of Waterbody. Please provide the name of any stream, lake, marsh, or other waterway to be directly impacted by the activity. If it is a minor (no name) stream, identify the waterbody the minor stream enters.

Block 14. Proposed Project Street Address. If the proposed project is located at a site having a street address (not a box number), please enter it here.

**Block 15.** Location of Proposed Project. Enter the latitude and longitude of where the proposed project is located. If more space is required, please attach a sheet with the necessary information marked Block 15.

**Block 16. Other Location Descriptions.** If available, provide the Tax Parcel Identification number of the site, Section, Township, and Range of the site (if known), and / or local Municipality that the site is located in.

**Block 17. Directions to the Site.** Provide directions to the site from a known location or landmark. Include highway and street numbers as well as names. Also provide distances from known locations and any other information that would assist in locating the site. You may also provide description of the proposed project location, such as lot numbers, tract numbers, or you may choose to locate the proposed project site from a known point (such as the right descending bank of Smith Creek, one mile downstream from the Highway 14 bridge). If a large river or stream, include the river mile of the proposed project site if known

**Block 18. Nature of Activity.** Describe the overall activity or project. Give appropriate dimensions of structures such as wing walls, dikes (identify the materials to be used in construction, as well as the methods by which the work is to be done), or excavations (length, width, and height). Indicate whether discharge of dredged or fill material is involved. Also, identify any structure to be constructed on a fill, piles, or float-supported platforms.

The written descriptions and illustrations are an important part of the application. Please describe, in detail, what you wish to do. If more space is needed, attach an extra sheet of paper marked Block 18.

**Block 19. Proposed Project Purpose.** Describe the purpose and need for the proposed project. What will it be used for and why? Also include a brief description of any related activities to be developed as the result of the proposed project. Give the approximate dates you plan to both begin and complete all work.

**Block 20. Reasons for Discharge.** If the activity involves the discharge of dredged and/or fill material into a wetland or other waterbody, including the temporary placement of material, explain the specific purpose of the placement of the material (such as erosion control).

Block 21. Types of Material Being Discharged and the Amount of Each Type in Cubic Yards. Describe the material to be discharged and amount of each material to be discharged within Corps jurisdiction. Please be sure this description will agree with your illustrations. Discharge material includes: rock, sand, clay, concrete, etc.

Block 22. Surface Areas of Wetlands or Other Waters Filled. Describe the area to be filled at each location. Specifically identify the surface areas, or part thereof, to be filled. Also include the means by which the discharge is to be done (backhoe, dragline, etc.). If dredged material is to be discharged on an upland site, identify the site and the steps to be taken (if necessary) to prevent runoff from the dredged material back into a waterbody. If more space is needed, attach an extra sheet of paper marked Block 22.

Block 23. Description of Avoidance, Minimization, and Compensation. Provide a brief explanation describing how impacts to waters of the United States are being avoided and minimized on the project site. Also provide a brief description of how impacts to waters of the United States will be compensated for, or a brief statement explaining why compensatory mitigation should not be required for those impacts.

Block 24. Is Any Portion of the Work Already Complete? Provide any background on any part of the proposed project already completed. Describe the area already developed, structures completed, any dredged or fill material already discharged, the type of material, volume in cubic yards, acres filled, if a wetland or other waterbody (in acres or square feet). If the work was done under an existing Corps permit, identity the authorization, if possible.

Block 25. Names and Addresses of Adjoining Property Owners, Lessees, etc., Whose Property Adjoins the Project Site. List complete names and full mailing addresses of the adjacent property owners (public and private) lessees, etc., whose property adjoins the waterbody or aquatic site where the work is being proposed so that they may be notified of the proposed activity (usually by public notice). If more space is needed, attach an extra sheet of paper marked Block 24.

Information regarding adjacent landowners is usually available through the office of the tax assessor in the county or counties where the project is to be developed.

**Block 26. Information about Approvals or Denials by Other Agencies.** You may need the approval of other federal, state, or local agencies for your project. Identify any applications you have submitted and the status, if any (approved or denied) of each application. You need not have obtained all other permits before applying for a Corps permit.

**Block 27. Signature of Applicant or Agent.** The application must be signed by the owner or other authorized party (agent). This signature shall be an affirmation that the party applying for the permit possesses the requisite property rights to undertake the activity applied for (including compliance with special conditions, mitigation, etc.).

#### DRAWINGS AND ILLUSTRATIONS

#### **General Information.**

Three types of illustrations are needed to properly depict the work to be undertaken. These illustrations or drawings are identified as a Vicinity Map, a Plan View or a Typical Cross-Section Map. Identify each illustration with a figure or attachment number.

Please submit one original, or good quality copy, of all drawings on 8½ x11 inch plain white paper (electronic media may be substituted). Use the fewest number of sheets necessary for your drawings or illustrations.

Each illustration should identify the project, the applicant, and the type of illustration (vicinity map, plan view, or crosssection). While illustrations need not be professional (many small, private project illustrations are prepared by hand), they should be clear, accurate, and contain all necessary information.



# Building a Better World for All of Us®

Sustainable buildings, sound infrastructure, safe transportation systems, clean water, renewable energy and a balanced environment. Building a Better World for All of Us communicates a companywide commitment to act in the best interests of our clients and the world around us.

We're confident in our ability to balance these requirements.

